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Hansteen Holdings PLC is a leading 
owner and asset manager of a diverse 
portfolio of industrial property located 
predominantly across the UK.
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, Chairman, commented: “The last 12 months have been an extremely busy and successful period for 

Hansteen with the three key elements of our business model working well. We have acquired properties in a competitive market 

up of space. E-commerce continues to enhance demand, which combined with limited availability and little new supply is driving 

capital growth”.

Strategic report Governance Financial statements

Find more information about us at: 

www.hansteen.co.uk

Melvyn Egglenton

at good prices through the corporate acquisition of IMPT, managed our assets e�ectively with increases in rent, occupancy and 

value and �nally sold a signi�cant part of the portfolio which realised a material amount of capital that has been returned to 

shareholders. Alongside that we have simpli�ed the Company’s Balance Sheet, settling the €100 million of convertible bonds. 

Notwithstanding the real challenges surrounding the EU exit process, we have not seen any negative e�ect on our tenants’ take 

rental growth. We are well positioned to continue to bene�t from this demand. Our built portfolio has a yield of 7.5% which 

compares with an all-in cost of borrowing cost of 2.7%. We continue to believe that our diverse portfolio of urban industrial and 

warehouse properties presents a relatively rare opportunity in today’s property sector to achieve a combination of income and 
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(FY 2016: £109.5 million) (FY 2016: £64.5 million) (FY 2016: £69.4 million)

(FY 2016: 124.0p) after return of capital at 11.1p premium to (FY 2016: 5.9p)

31 December 2016 EPRA NAV of 128.9p

(FY 2016: 40.9%)

01

Highlights

Financial highlights

Operational highlights

Post balance sheet events

IFRS pro�t before tax Normalised income pro�t Normalised total pro�t

£204.3m £51.9m £107.6m

135.1p 130.6p 6.1p

27.6%

1,2 1,2

1

1

IFRS NAV per share EPRA NAV per share Full-year dividend

Net debt to property value ratioFor more information 

See pg. 12-15
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German and Dutch portfolio sold  Like-for-like UK rent roll improvement 

for  generating a  of  per annum

Property valuation increase of 

 returned to  or 

shareholders

 of sales (excluding 

Acquisition of Industrial Multi German and Dutch portfolio) 

Property Trust PLC (“IMPT”)

Like-for-like UK occupancy 

improvement of 358,000 sq ft or 

 of the vacant space at the 

start of the year

Contracts exchanged for the sale Saltley Compulsory Purchase Proposed return of capital of  

with Order (“CPO”) notice 

completion due on 26 March 2018 irrevocably served, completed 

on 13 March 2018

£1.12 billion £2.1 million

£49.2 million

£578.1 million 8.2%

£68.1 million

£5.7 million

29.6%

£116 million 35p per share

pre-tax pro�t of 

generating pro�ts of 

of  IMPT for 

3

3

£62.0 million

Important Explanatory Notes about Alternative Performance Measures used in this Report:
1. The Group uses a number of Alternative Performance Measures (“A PMs”) which are not de�ned or speci�ed within IFRS. The Directors use 

but do not consider them to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures. Key A PMs used are Normalised Income Pro�t (“NIP”), 
Normalised Total Pro�t (“NTP”), measures de�ned by EPRA and adj usted EPS.

 NIP and NTP are adj usted measures intended to show the underlying earnings of the Group before fair value movements and other 
non-recurring or otherwise non-cash items. Fair value movements include those in relation to investment property, �nancial assets and 
�nancial liabilit ies. Non-recurring or otherwise non-cash items include foreign exchange gains or losses and the Founder LTIP charge. 
A reconciliation of NIP and NTP to the Pro�t for the year prepared in accordance with IFRS is set out in note 6. A reconciliation of EPRA 
measures and adj usted EPS is included within note 14. A calculation of net debt and the net debt to value ratio is shown in the Joint Chief 

2. The sale of the German and Dutch assets in June 2017 generated one-o� pro�ts which are included in Normalised Total Pro�t but the sale of 
these assets reduced Normalised Income Pro�t in the year.

3.  Like-for-like occupancy improvement and like-for-like rent roll improvement are de�ned in the Joint Chief Executives’ Review.

these measures in order to assess the underlying operational performance of the Group and allow greater comparability between periods 

Executives’ Review.
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A year in review

2017 was an extremely busy and successful year for Hansteen with the three key 

managed our assets e�ectively with increases in rent, occupancy and value and 

�nally sold a signi�cant part of the portfolio which realised a material amount of 

elements of our business model working well. We have acquired properties in a 
competitive market at good prices through the corporate acquisition of IMPT, 

capital that has been returned to shareholders. 

June

July

The German and Dutch Portfolio was sold for €1.28 billion cash 
which represented a premium of approximately €76 million (6%) to 
the 31 December 2016 valuation. The scale of the transaction 
required shareholder consent by way of a circular and a Shareholders 
General Meeting where the sale was overwhelmingly supported.

Hansteen completed the acquisition of management team was able to 
all of the issued share capital of IMPT. 
With a yield on the passing rent of 9.4% ERV from acquisition and as a result, 
and a vacancy rate of 8.2%, the 
acquisition represented a good at 31 December 2017. On 5 February 

2018 we announced that we had 
amount of light industrial property exchanged unconditional contracts 

Sale of German and 

Acquisition of IMPT

Dutch Portfolio

increase the occupancy, rent roll and 

the portfolio was valued at £109.7 million 

opportunity to acquire a signi�cant 

at an attractive price. Our UK asset to sell the portfolio for £116.0 million.
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November

The sale of the German and Dutch most appropriate means of distributing price on 20 March 2017 (the day before 
portfolio was in line with our long-term the cash which should be treated as a the announcement of the proposed sale 
business and portfolio strategy of buying capital event. In November 2017, we of the German and Dutch portfolio) and a 
at a low point in the cycle, adding value premium of 11.1p or 8.6% to the EPRA 
through improved asset management and NAV per share at 31 December 2016. 
subsequently realising the investment at a opportunity to sell at least 1 in every 2 
higher point in the cycle. shares for 140p per share. The tender 

After exploring various options for the shares were purchased for a total of 
method of returning the capital, it was £578.1 million. The price represented a 

premium of 13.8% over the closing share 

completed the tender o�er whereby 

qualifying shareholders were o�ered the 

o�er was successful and 412.9 million 

determined that a tender o�er was the 

£578.1m returned to our shareholders

The Group’s �nancial 
performance during 2017 
was outstanding and we are 
pleased to present another 
set of strong results.” 

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones

Joint Chief Executives
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Company overview

We buy undervalued portfolios, often with high levels  

of vacancy or other opportunities to add value. We apply  

an intensive programme of improvement using our local 

management teams and sell to realise the value added.  

We have created a high-yielding property portfolio that  

is managed from our regional o�ces across the UK.

Midlands

662

4.4

14.2

Scotland

603

2.4

9.9

Yorkshire

506

2.0

8.1

North East

662

2.3

7.9

South West & Wales

416

2.3

7.4

North West

465

1.8

7.1

South East

110

0.6

2.9

Total

3,424

15.9

59.0

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

Number of units 
Area (million sq ft) 
Contracted rent (£m) 

1

2

3

2

4
4

3

5

6

61

5

7

7

5

Our UK properties

Total value

£734.8m
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05

Ofces 

Occupancy

Square feet of lettable space 

Contracted rent roll per annum 

Tenants 

Total portfolio at a glance
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Chairman

The Group has sold the German and Dutch The Group’s IFRS Net Asset Value (“NAV ”) 
portfolio, acquired the entire issued share was 135.1p per share at 31 December 2017 
capital of Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC (2016: 124.0p). The Group’s EPRA Net Asset 
(“IMPT”), settled the €100 million of Value was 130.6p per share at 31 December 

of the Group during 2017 which produced convertible bonds and returned £578.1 
million (53.4% of the Company’s capital) to for 2016 is not a like-for-like comparison with 
our shareholders. The UK portfolio has 2017. During the year the EPRA NAV has 

increase in the full year dividend. The interim changed as a result of:
dividend paid on 27 October 2017 was 

occupancy levels. The high level of activity › The return of capital of £578.1 million at a increased to 2.3p per share (November 

has continued into 2018 with the sale of the premium to December 2016 EPRA NAV 2016: 2.2p per share) and the second 
ongoing dividend will be increased to 3.8p IMPT portfolio and the Saltley Compulsory of 11.1p per share.

Purchase Order (“CPO”). › The settlement of the convertible bonds. per share (May 2017: 3.7p per share) and will 

› The introduction of an accrual for the be paid on 17 May 2018. The ex-dividend 

2016–2018 Founder Long-Term date is 5 April 2018 and the dividend is 
payable to shareholders on the register at Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”).

› Dividend payments of 3.7p and 2.3p the close of business on 6 April 2018. A 

during the year. Property Income Distribution (“PID”) of 3.7p 
is included in this second interim dividend 

of £121.4 million from the sale of the payment. The total dividends therefore Full details of these transactions are found in 
amount to 6.1p (2016: 5.9p).

Despite the reduced earnings following the 
European sale, the business produced Hansteen has paid a prudently progressive 

dividend for many years and it is the Board’s 
intention to maintain the policy (as far as 
possible). We are currently in a period in 
which we have been substantial sellers of 
property and as a result have been returning 
capital to shareholders. Therefore, the 
progressive policy will apply in proportion to 
any reduction in the capital base.

06

Melvyn Egglenton 

Following the strong �nancial performance 

2017 (2016: 128.9p). The comparative �gure 
record realised pro�ts (Normalised Total 
Pro�t), the Board is pleased to announce an 

continued to perform strongly, enj oying a 
signi�cant valuation uplift and record 

Hansteen’s IFRS pro�t for the year 
increased by 86.6% to £204.3 million (FY 
2016: £109.5 million) which includes a pro�t 

German and Dutch portfolio in June 2017. the Joint Chief Executives’ Review.

Normalised Income Pro�ts (“NIP”) of 
£51.9 million (FY 2016: £64.5 million) and 
Normalised Total Pro�t (“NTP”) increased 
by 55.0% to £107.6 million (FY 2016: 
£69.4 million). 

Dividend and future return 

Results

Hansteen’s IFRS pro�t 
for the year increased 
by 86.6% to £204.3 
million (FY 2016: 
£109.5 million) which 
includes a pro�t of 
£121.4 million from 
the sale of the 
German and Dutch 
portfolio in June 2017.”

I am pleased to present Hansteen’s results and 
strategic report for the year ended 31 December 
2017. We have delivered another year of record 

challenging and value-enhancing transactions. 
�nancial results and completed several complex, 

Chairman’s Statement

of capital
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As referred to above, since the year-end we 
have contracted to sell the IMPT portfolio 

The last 12 months have been an extremely 
and Saltley Business Park has become the 

successful period for Hansteen with the 
three key elements of our buy, work and sell 

5 February 2018 and 13 March 2018 
business model working well. We have 

respectively. On completion, the combined 
acquired properties in a competitive market 

net proceeds are expected to be at least 
at good prices as shown with the corporate 

£150.0 million and, with no debt to repay as 
acquisition of IMPT, then managed our 

the properties were not secured, the 
Group’s cash balance of £71.2 million at 

Owing to the current high level of demand 
disposal of the German and Dutch assets. 

for industrial property investments, 
Alongside that we have returned capital to 

opportunities to reinvest these substantial 

Balance Sheet, settling the €100 million of 
Hansteen business model are likely to be 

convertible bonds. In 2018 we have already 
limited. As the cash deposits would earn 

contracted to sell in excess of £150.0 million 
virtually no interest and therefore materially 

of property.
dilute the returns from the business, we 
consider that returning more capital is in 

Notwithstanding the real challenges 
surrounding the EU exit process, we have 

Therefore, the Board is proposing a capital 
distribution of 35p per share (£144.5 million) 

take up of space. The extraordinarily broad 
spread of economic activities carried out in 
our properties brings both resilience and 

which will be posted to shareholders on 
growth to our earnings. E-commerce 
continues to enhance demand for UK urban 
industrial and logistics space and limited 
availability combined with little new supply is 

Rebecca Worthington has stepped down as driving rental growth. The Group retains a 

Non-Executive Director and Chair of the portfolio of mainly UK multi-let industrial 
property which is well positioned to continue Audit Committee of the Company following 

her appointment to the Board of British Land 
PLC. Rebecca has been a Non-Executive portfolio has a yield of 7.5% which compares 

with an all-in cost of borrowing of 2.7%. 

20 March 2018. On behalf of the Board, portfolio of urban industrial and warehouse 
properties presents a relatively rare 

guidance in our deliberations and her opportunity in today’s property sector 

contribution and commitment to the 
Company's development. We wish her the 
very best in her new role with British Land 
PLC. As announced on 22 February 2018, 

Independent Non-Executive Director with 

Chartered Accountant, has extensive 

succeed Rebecca Worthington as Chair Chairman 
19 March 2018

07

subj ect of a CPO as announced on 

assets e�ectively with increases in rent, 

occupancy and value and �nally sold a 
31 December 2017 will rise signi�cantly. 

signi�cant part of the portfolio through the 

shareholders and simpli�ed the Company’s 
cash deposits in properties that �t the 

the best interests of all shareholders. 

not seen any negative e�ect on our tenants’ 

to shareholders in the �rst half of 2018. 

More details will be contained in the circular 

20 March 2018.

to bene�t from this demand. Our built 

Director of the Company since June 2014 

and will depart the Board with e�ect from We continue to believe that our diverse 

I would like to thank Rebecca for her 

to achieve a combination of income and 

capital growth.

the Board has appointed Jim Clarke as an 

e�ect from 27 February 2018. Jim, a 

board experience of listed companies in 

the property and leisure sectors and will 

of the Audit Committee. 

Outlook

Board changes

Melvyn Egglenton
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Our business model

Fundamentals

that provides a high yield, and the other 

asset management initiatives.

should lead to increased values.

We then aim to realise and distribute the 

We  

buy

We  

manage

We  

sell

Disciplined investment

Local expertise

Realise value

assessment of the opportunities in order to create a 
high-yielding portfolio with potential to add value.

We have 7 o�ces with experienced management 

Returns come from rental income and selling at 

We pick our investments based on a thorough 

teams across the UK.

increased value. 

Our balance sheet is strong and we remain 

We work hard at creating the right relationships with 
our stakeholders so that we are in the prime position 
to react when opportunities arise. We apply an 
active asset management strategy to our properties 
in order to improve occupancy and drive rental 
income which should lead to increased values.

We supplement our buy, manage, sell business model 

can be made, including deals in other sectors, especially 
land where we believe we can make planning gains.

committed to �nancing on a prudent basis.

with other opportunity types where we think good pro�ts 

The Group buys undervalued 
portfolios, often with high levels 

opportunities to add value, 

of improvement using its local 
management teams, and sells 

of vacancy or other tangible 

applies an intensive programme 

to realise the value added.

We target two types of investments, one 

that, although lower yielding, o�ers the 

potential for capital growth through intense 

We seek to produce sustainable growth in 

our rental income and occupancy, which 

pro�ts to our shareholders.
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Our resources Established strengths

Our properties Industrial property is the  

commercial property type 

audience

Our tenants The fundamental value 
dynamics are strong

Our team Opportunities exist for  
adding value

Our portfolio is made up of 325 properties and is 
focused on urban distribution and light industrial 
warehouses predominantly across the UK. Generally 
our assets are located outside of the South East 
and we buy assets in well-connected locations.

Our properties appeal to a huge range of occupiers which 
means we have an extremely diverse tenant base without 
reliance on any particular tenants or industries. 

Occupational demand is currently strong and with 
 of predominantly industrial property, 

of a diverse mix of tenants.

Our occupiers are generally local businesses that serve 
the towns and cities around which they are based. 
We have a very diverse tenant base, both by sector 
and by number, which brings resilience to our income replacement cost, which limits new supply.
stream as well as asset management opportunities.

a successful mix of experienced surveyors and 
Part of our business model is to reshape our portfolio graduate surveyors. In addition to this established 
through the trade of assets as and when the business asset management team, Hansteen has a group of 
plans have been completed to realise the value added. 

worked together for many years and have considerable 
stages of gaining planning permission which will, in time experience in the industrial property sector.
add value.

Our asset managers are focused primarily on direct 
tenant relationships and the marketing of vacant 
units either for sale or to rent. They are heavily 
involved in the management of the properties in 
their region, although the day-to-day management 
is undertaken by local property managers who 
are contracted on a third party basis. 

Total valuation

Total tenants Total occupancy

£818.1m 16.8m

2,912 92.3%

Square feet of lettable space we have a wide range of space to meet the requirements 

Our properties are valued at signi�cantly below 

We have seven UK regional o�ces that contain 

senior managers and �nancial executives that have 
In addition, we have a signi�cant bank of UK land at various 

most fexible and economical 

with the widest occupational 

16.8 million sq ft
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10

Our strategy

We are an entrepreneurial investor who looks for 

opportunistic investments that will create a 

high-yielding property portfolio.

Our locally based, in-house asset management 

teams have the skills to meet the most complex 

occupier requirements and improve occupancy.

After purchase we aim to maximise rental 

increased values.

We focus on realised returns through rental 

progressive dividend.

income and occupancy through active 

asset management initiatives leading to 

income and pro�t on sales generated from 

a strong and diversi�ed tenant base. This 

allows Hansteen to pay a well-covered and 

1 Acquire selectively

2 Manage intensively

3 Increase values

4 Realise and  
distribute profts

Strategic priorities
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Portfolio yield

2017 7.0%

2016

2015

2014

7.6%

7.8%

8.6%

 

 

 

 

EPRA NAV (per share)

130.6p*

91.2%

88.1%

86.0%

128.9p

111.2p

101.7p

5.9p

5.25p

5.0p

*  After return of capital of 140p per share during 2017 which was at an 11.1p premium to the 

    31 December 2016 EPRA NAV

2017

2016

2015

2014

2016

2015

2014

2016

2015

2014

 Occupancy

92.3%2017

 Dividend (per share)

6.1p2017

We acquired the entire issued ordinary share 

capital of the Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC 

(“IMPT”). With a yield on the passing rent of 9.4% 

and a vacancy rate of 8.2%, the acquisition 

represented a good opportunity to acquire a 

an attractive price.

Our teams have increased the like-for-like 

occupancy by 255,000 sq m. Like-for-like 

passing rent has increased by £2.1 million.

The total uplift in the value of the portfolio was 

£62.0 million or 8.2%.

dividend has been increased to 6.1p per share 

which is also the highest ever full year dividend.

signi�cant amount of light industrial property at 

Normalised Total Pro�ts of £107.6 million are 

the highest in any year for Hansteen. The 2017 

Progress in 2017 Key performance indicators



Joint Chief Executives’ Statement

The Hansteen business model remains 
unchanged and is based on two key strengths: 
an opportunistic and entrepreneurial approach 
to buying and selling property; and a motivated, 
skilled and experienced management platform. 
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Since incorporation in 2005 we have sets out the calculation and results for per share at 31 December 2016. The 2017 
acquired what we believe are the right assets EPRA NAV also introduces an allowance for 
at the right prices and these high yielding “Continuing Operations”, being the Founder LTIP by including an additional 
industrial properties have performed very predominantly the UK portfolio and 13.0 million shares in the EPRA NAV per 
well. Recent years have seen an increased “Discontinued Operations”, being the share calculation, a dilution equivalent to 
appreciation by investors of our type of German and Dutch portfolio which was 4.1p per share.
property and the transactions that we have 
completed both in 2017 and into 2018 have The EPRA NAV per share at 31 December 
indicated this appetite is continuing. We set The Group uses a number of alternative 2016 was 128.9p and prior to the return of 
out the full details of these transactions in performance measures which are not capital in mid-November 2017, shareholders 
this report as we summarise what has been had received two dividends of 3.7p and 2.3p 
a very successful year for the business. measures in order to assess the underlying per share. The return of capital provided 

140p per share for 50% of the shares, and 
such these measures should be considered the EPRA NAV per share at 31 December 
alongside the IFRS measures. 2017 was 130.6p, a return of 10% during 

2017 was outstanding and we are pleased to The sale of the German and Dutch portfolio shareholders on the same basis is 32%.
present another set of strong results. The 
German and Dutch portfolio was sold in 2017 NTP. There was an additional £72.2 

million of realised exchange gains included in and the Founder LTIP are contained later in 
the annualised rent from the portfolio of 

£109.5 million) of which £57.0 million was reconciliation of NIP and NTP to the IFRS 
(“NIP”) for the year to 31 December 2017 previously credited to reserves in the 
was £51.9 million (FY 2016: £64.5 million). balance sheet and £15.2 million arose during 

2017. Basic IFRS EPS was 28.2p (FY 2016: reconciled to EPRA NAV per share in note 14 
of properties and valuation movements and 

received from the portfolio after the 
deduction of costs and debt interest. LTIP charge as shown in note 14. The German and Dutch Portfolio was sold 

on a debt free basis for cash to funds 
£107.6 million (FY 2016: £69.4 million). NTP The Board regards EPRA NAV per share 

L.P. and M7 Real Estate. The value given to 
the properties was € 1.28 billion which 

share at 31 December 2017 was 130.6p represented a premium of approximately 
(31 December 2016: 128.9p). However, this €76 million (6%) to the 31 December 2016 

The Board believes that these normalised year’s EPRA NAV per share is not a true valuation. The scale of the transaction 
comparative number to last year because in required shareholder consent by way of a 
addition to deducting a dividend of 6.0p per circular and a Shareholders General Meeting 

before considering property and other share, we have also returned capital at an where the sale was overwhelmingly 
revaluation movements. Table 1 opposite 11.1p premium per share to the EPRA NAV 12 supported. 

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones Joint Chief Executives’

NIP and NTP with a breakdown between 

sold in June 2017. 

de�ned within IFRS. The Board uses these 

realised pro�ts from the business and as 

The Group’s �nancial performance during the year. Over two years the return to 

contributed a pro�t of £49.2 million to the 
Further details of the �nancial performance 

June 2017 for €1.28 billion but despite losing 

the £204.3 million IFRS pro�t (FY 2016: the Joint Chief Executives’ Review and the 
€93.1 million, the Normalised Income Pro�t 

pro�t before tax is contained in note 6 to the 
�nancial statements. Basic NAV per share is 

NIP excludes pro�ts or losses from the sale 

14.8p) and adj usted EPS was 6.9p (FY 2016: to the �nancial statements.
therefore re�ects the net rental income 6.7p). Adj usted EPS is based on EPRA EPS 

adj usted for the fair value of the Founder 

Normalised Total Pro�ts (“NTP”) were 

advised by a�liates of the Blackstone Group 
comprises NIP plus pro�ts or losses from plus dividends as the best measure of 
the sale of properties and realised pro�ts value growth. The Group’s EPRA NAV per 
from one-o� items.

pro�t measures (NIP and NTP) re�ect the 
underly gin  realised pro�ts from the business 

Financial results for 2017

Normalised Total Pro�t

Sale of German and Dutch Portfolio

+55%
(FY 2017:£107.6 million) 
(FY 2016: £69.4 million)
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Property rental income

Direct operating expenses

Property management fees

Share of associates

Administrative expenses

Net interest payable

Other operating income

The net cash received by Hansteen from the After exploring various options for the 
sale was approximately €1.276 billion after method of returning the capital, it was 
the deduction of €25 million which was On 17 February 2017, Hansteen and the 
retained by Blackstone to satisfy 50% of the appropriate means of distributing the cash Independent Directors of IMPT reached 
latent tax liabilities relating to the German to shareholders. The scale of the return of agreement on the terms of a recommended 
properties. Immediately upon completion capital required shareholder approval and 
€471 million was used to repay debt secured again this was overwhelmingly supported share capital of IMPT. Through a 
against the German and Dutch Portfolio and combination of stock market purchases and 
approximately €36 million was used, or has valid acceptances of the 330p per share 
been retained to meet costs and other tax 
liabilities associated with the sale. Following opportunity to sell at least 1 in every 2 
these deductions and repayments, the net 
cash increase was approximately €769 was successful and 412.9 million shares were vacancy rate of 8.2%, the acquisition 
million which was partly used to settle the purchased for a total of £578.1 million. The represented a good opportunity to acquire 
convertible bonds and partly used for the price represented a premium of 13.8% over 
return of capital as explained below. the closing share price on 20 March 2017 property at an attractive price.

(the day before the announcement of the 
proposed sale of the German and Dutch Our UK asset management team was able 

The sale of the German and Dutch portfolio portfolio) and a premium of 11.1p or 

was in line with our long-term business and 
portfolio strategy of buying at a low point in 31 December 2016. portfolio was valued at £109.7 million at 
the cycle, adding value through improved 31 December 2017. On 5 February 2018 
asset management and subsequently 
realising the investment at a higher point unconditional contracts to sell the portfolio 

for £116.0 million.

13

UK rental growth

(“IMPT”)

Return of capital

Pro�t on sale of properties

determined that a tender o�er was the most 

all-cash o�er for the entire issued ordinary 

by our shareholders. In November 2017, 

we completed the tender o�er whereby 

qualifying shareholders were o�ered the o�er, Hansteen acquired all of the issued 

share capital of IMPT by 23 July 2017. With 
shares for 140p per share. The tender o�er a yield on the passing rent of 9.4% and a 

a signi�cant amount of light industrial 

to increase the occupancy, rent roll and 
8.6% to the EPRA NAV per share at ERV since acquisition and as a result, the 

we announced that we had exchanged 

in the cycle. 

The UK portfolio �nished 2017 with a 

£3.41 per sq ft at December 2016 to 

£3.71 per sq ft at 31 December 2017. The 

by taking the passing rent at the start of 

the year, adding rent from purchases, 

the end of the year.

portfolio has increased by 8.8% from 
record high occupancy rate of 93.6% as 
occupational demand continued to outstrip 
supp yl . Limited new developments net like-for-like improvement in passing 
combined with this strong demand is rent for 2017 was £2.1 million. This 
driving rental growth. We have a relatively like-for-like improvement is calculated 
short weighted average unexpired lease 
term (“WAULT”) on our UK portfolio of 3.2 
years which allows this rental growth to be deducting rent lost from sales and then 
achieved relatively quickly and as a result, comparing that with the passing rent at 
the passing rent per let sq ft across the UK 

Table 1: Normalised Income Proft and Normalised Total Proft
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued 

Operations Operations Operations Operations 

2017 2017 2016 2016

£m £m £m £m

Total Total 

2017 2016

£m £m

59.0 35.8 34.2 75.2

(5.0) (4.2) (4.1) (10.6)

– 2.0– –

– 9.6– –

(13.4) (4.4) (13.7) (7.0)

(9.3) (6.6) (5.3) (15.8)

5.6 49.3 3.2 1.5

0.6 0.2 0.1 0.1

94.8 109.4

– 2.0

– 9.6

31.3 20.6 51.9 22.7 41.8 64.5

54.9 4.7

0.8 0.2

(9.2) (14.7)

(17.8) (20.7)

(15.9) (21.1)

Normalised Income Pro�t

Normalised Total Pro�t 37.5 70.1 107.6 26.0 43.4 69.4

Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC 
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Joint Chief Executives’ Statement | continued

Property portfolio
The built portfolio has a yield of 7.5% on the 
passing rent and 8.0% on the contracted 
rent. Including the 452 acres of undeveloped 
land, the total portfolio has a yield on the 
passing rent of 7.0% and a yield on the 
contracted rent of 7.5%. The summary 
analysis of the portfolio, at 31 December 
2017, is set out in table 2 below.

Like-for-like net occupancy (measured by 
taking the vacant area at the start of the 
year, adding vacancy on purchases and then 
comparing that with the vacancy at the end 
of the year) has improved in total by 255,000 
sq m (2.75 million sq ft). A significant 
proportion of this improvement was due to 
the disposal of the vacancy contained within 
the German and Dutch portfolio. However, 
the UK portfolio has shown a significant 
like-for-like improvement of 33,297 sqm 
(358,410 sq ft) or 29.5% of the vacancy at 
the start of the year. This achievement has 
come through a combination of letting 
vacant space and selling vacant units, 
both an important part of the Hansteen 
business model.

The UK portfolio finished 2017 with a 
record high occupancy rate of 93.6% as 
occupational demand continued to 
outstrip supply. Limited new developments 
combined with this strong demand is driving 
rental growth. We have a relatively short 
weighted average unexpired lease term 
(“WAULT”) on our UK portfolio of 3.2 years 
which allows this rental growth to be 
achieved relatively quickly and as a result, 
the passing rent per let sq ft across the 
UK portfolio has increased by 8.8% from 
£3.41 per sq ft at December 2016 to £3.71 
per sq ft at 31 December 2017. The net 
like-for-like improvement in passing rent 
for 2017 was £2.1 million. This like-for-like 
improvement is calculated by taking the 
passing rent at the start of the year, adding 
rent from purchases, deducting rent lost 
from sales and then comparing that with 
the passing rent at the end of the year.

Our properties are extremely flexible and 
appeal to a large range of occupiers. With 
an average rent of just under £20,000 per 
annum, we are not dependent on any 
particular sectors or industries, which makes 
our rent roll very resilient. We have benefited 
from the growth in e-commerce in recent 
years and approximately a third of the 900 
new lettings and renewals completed in 2017 
were to companies that trade on the internet.

Property valuation and property 
disposals
The value of the portfolio has increased by 
£62.0 million or 8.2% since December 2016. 
Despite the valuation increase, the built 
portfolio has a high yield of 7.5% (passing 
rent divided by value). 

The sustained investor appetite for UK 
multi-let light industrial property allowed for 
the disposal of 38 assets during the year for 
a combined consideration of £68.1 million. 
Purchasers ranged from individual owner 
occupiers to listed property companies and 
the sales generated profits of £5.7 million or 
9.2% above the 31 December 2016 valuation.

Net Asset Value
The net assets attributable to equity 
shareholders at 31 December 2017 were 
£557.5 million (2016: £923.6 million). The 
movement in IFRS net assets is summarised 
in table 3 opposite.

Gearing
At 31 December 2017, net debt was 
£225.4 million (31 December 2016: £710.1 
million) and net debt to value was 27.6% 
(31 December 2016: 40.9%). Table 4 
opposite sets out the calculation of net 
debt and the net debt to value ratio.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 
total bank facilities of £334.1 million 
(31 December 2016: £771.1 million), of which 
£297.1 million were drawn (31 December 
2016: £712.5 million). Borrowings are in the 
same currency as the assets against which 
they are secured. Cash resources at the 
year-end were £71.2 million (31 December 
2016: £82.5 million). The weighted average 
debt maturity, at 31 December 2017, was 
3.6 years and the weighted average maturity 
of hedging was 3.6 years.

Analysis of the Group's bank loan facilities 
at 31 December 2017 is set out in table 5 
opposite. 

In addition to the bank loan facilities, the 
Group has a £2.5 million finance lease in 
place to fund a property in Belgium. As at 
31 December 2017, the lease had an 
unexpired term of five years and an interest 
rate implicit in the lease of 2.8%.

Table 2: Property Portfolio Summary

No. props
Acres  

of land
Built area 

(million sq ft)

Vacant  
area 

%

Passing  
rent 

£m

Contracted 
rent 

£m
Value 

£m

Yield on 
passing  

rent

Yield on 
contracted 

rent

UK 316 – 15.9 6.4% 55.3 59.0 734.8 7.5% 8.0%
Belgium & France 9 – 0.9 30.4% 2.2 2.3 31.7 7.1% 7.2%

Total built portfolio 325 – 16.8 7.7% 57.5 61.3 766.5 7.5% 8.0%

UK Land – 452 – – – – 51.7 – –

Like-for-like occupancy

+255,000 sq m

Like-for-like passing rent

+£2.1 million

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 
borrowings including obligations under 
finance leases, of £299.6 million 
(31 December 2016: £816.6 million, which 
also included the convertible bond) of which 
£150.0 million was swapped at an average 
rate of 0.53% and £50.0 million was capped 
at an average rate of 0.75%. The average 
all-in borrowing rate for the Group, at 
31 December 2017, was 2.7% (31 December 
2016: 3.2%).

Convertible Bond
In June 2017 Hansteen offered to buy and/or 
convert the €100 million of convertible 
bonds due in 2018. All of the bondholders 
chose to settle their bonds with 15.9% 
opting to receive cash and 84.1% opting to 
receive shares. The cash settlement was 
paid on 5 July 2017 and the shares were 
issued on 10 July 2017. Further details on the 
convertible bonds are shown in note 26 of 
the financial statements.

Currency
Following the sale of the German and Dutch 
portfolio during 2017, the Group’s exposure 
to changes in the Euro/GBP exchange rate 
is now significantly reduced. As such, the 
Board has decided not to renew the options 
that were hedging a total of €67.5 million of 
net euro income which expired during the 
year. Hansteen reports its results in sterling 
and as at 31 December 2017, approximately 
8.9% (£49.6 million or €56.0 million) of the 
Group’s net assets were denominated 
in euros. 

Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(“Founder LTIP”)
The Founder LTIP was established at IPO 
in November 2005. Under the scheme, if 
the growth in the Group’s EPRA NAV per 
share plus dividends (and other returns to 
shareholders) exceeds compound growth of 
more than 10% per annum over a fixed three 
year period, the Joint Chief Executives will 
each receive an award of shares with a value 
of 12.5% of the outperformance multiplied 
by the number of shares in issue at the end 
of the performance period. The current 
performance period runs from 1 January 
2016 to 31 December 2018 and as previously 
reported, after consultation with 
shareholders and the directors, this will be 
the final performance period for which 
Founder LTIP shares can be awarded.

The returns so far are ahead of the target 
levels. There is a further 12 months to go 
and therefore the potential awards can only 
be estimated at this stage and is dependent 
on the performance in the final year.
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The calculation of performance in the 
current period has been materially affected 
by the tender offer of November 2017 and as 
explained in the return of capital circular and 
in the Remuneration Committee report, the 
Founder LTIP calculation will be adjusted and 
measured over two periods, being pre and 
post the return of capital date of 
14 November 2017.

EPRA NAV per share includes the impact of 
dilutive shares and dilution is required only to 
the extent that the results to date have 
exceeded the full target to 31 December 
2018. Under this methodology the accrual 
to 31 December 2017 is 6.5 million shares to 
each of the Joint Chief Executives. As the 
full three year hurdle has been met by 
31 December 2017, the value of the awards 
will increase by 25% of all additional returns 
made in 2018.

The IFRS pre-tax profit includes a charge of 
£19.1 million related to the potential Founder 
LTIP awards and associated National 
Insurance contribution. Only the effect of 
the associated National Insurance 
contributions on the Founder LTIP awards 
affects the NAV because, in accordance with 
IFRS, the charge for the potential Founder 
LTIP awards excluding the associated 
National Insurance contribution is credited 
back through equity. 

Performance and outlook
Performance
Hansteen‘s performance measured by 
£100 invested at the time of the Company’s 
IPO in 2005 ranks fourth out of the 120 
property companies publicly quoted at the 
time. The companies who produced a better 
performance over that period were 
Shaftesbury, Derwent London and Great 
Portland Estates. Interestingly their 
performance numbers appear to have 
peaked several years ago whereas ours have 
become stronger more recently reflecting 
the fact that regional urban industrial 
properties are late cycle performers. 

Another feature of Hansteen’s performance 
is that a large proportion of the Company’s 
return is realised.

Since IPO Hansteen has raised £717.9 million 
(including the convertible bonds) and following 
the £144.5 million planned later this year we will 
have returned £722.4 million. We have also 
paid dividends (and convertible interest) since 
IPO of £323.5 million. The NAV of the 
remaining business will be c.£414 million.

For much of the life of Hansteen and its 
predecessor company, Ashtenne, the type 
of properties in which we specialise, regional 
urban industrial and logistics properties, 
have been unfashionable with low rents and 
capital values and high yields. Over the last 
couple of years, it has become clear that 
occupational demand for our kind of 
properties is materially outstripping supply 
and rents have started to significantly grow. 
As a result, a broad and deep collection of 
investors have put our kind of properties on 
their shopping list. This positive dynamic is 
of course good for Hansteen’s existing 
portfolio. However, it does mean that 
acquiring further properties that fit our 
business model will be challenging.

Owning a stabilised diversified portfolio of 
urban industrial and logistics properties with 
a robust and growing rent roll is a strong 
investment. However, we believe in our buy, 
work and sell business model and expect to 
continue to realise investments as they 
mature. This will bring new management 
challenges. Following the IMPT sale and 
Saltley CPO and notwithstanding the 
potential further return of capital, we intend 
to retain meaningful firepower to enable 
us to make acquisitions if we deem them 
value-enhancing. However, if we cannot 
find acquisitions that fit our criteria, we will 
probably continue to return capital.

Outlook
There are two market dynamics that are 
relevant to Hansteen. Firstly, there is tenant 
demand as this governs the strength and 
sustainability of our rent rolls. Secondly 
there is investor demand as this influences 
our buying and selling activity. 

With regard to tenant demand, for a 
sustained period, all of the UK Hansteen 
offices have been reporting high levels of 
occupier enquiries and take up which our 
asset management team have translated 
into increases in like-for-like passing rent 
and like-for-like occupancy. Limited 
availability and little new supply is driving 

rental growth in all UK regions. With a low 
average let rent of £3.71 per sq ft, new urban 
logistics development is unlikely until rents 
and capital values rise further. Our portfolio 
is therefore well placed to benefit. 

With regard to investor demand, we believe 
that our sector of commercial property is 
the only one where values today are still 
lower than they were prior to the global 
financial crisis in 2008 and new buyers are 
emerging in our subsector of the market. 
The challenge is therefore the difficulty of 
buying portfolios at prices reflecting our 
business model. The benefit however, is a 
deeper and appreciative market in our 
subsector for us to sell in to. 

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones 
Joint Chief Executives
19 March 2018

Table 5: Analysis of the Group’s bank loan facilities at 31 December 2017

Lender
Facility

millions

Amount
undrawn

millions
Unexpired 
term years

All-in 
interest 

rate

Loan to 
value 

covenant

Interest 
cover 

covenant

BNP Paribas Fortis £4.1 – 5.6 1.5% – –
Royal Bank of Scotland £330.0 £37.0 3.6 2.7% 55% 2.00:1

Total facilities £334.1 £37.0 3.6 2.7%

Table 3: Movement in IFRS Net Asset Value
2017

£m

Normalised Total Profit 107.6
Property revaluation 62.0
Exchange and fair value movements 5.6
Tax (9.0)
Shares issued and share-based payments 97.3
Dividends paid (46.5)

Cancellation of shares under tender offer including costs (583.1)

IFRS NAV movement (366.1)

Table 4: Gearing
2017

£m
2016

£m

Obligations under finance leases 2.5 2.6
Borrowings 297.1 712.5
Capitalised bank loan fees (3.0) (8.3)
Convertible bonds – 109.8
Convertible bonds mark-to-market – (24.0)
Cash and cash equivalents (71.2) (82.5)

Net debt 225.4 710.1
Carrying value of investment and trading properties 818.1 1,737.9
Net debt to value ratio 27.6% 40.9%
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Underpinned by our values

Corporate and social responsibility

Hansteen continues to support the interns from 
previous years’ intakes who secured permanent 
jobs as Graduate Surveyors.

Environment
In line with Hansteen’s policy of being 
environmentally and sociably responsible, 
environmental legislation and relevant 
codes of practice are adhered to. Where 
possible, Hansteen seeks to reduce 
emissions and pollution. Details of our 
Greenhouse Gas emissions are detailed 
in the Directors’ Report on page 51. 

Community
Hansteen continues to support local and 
national charities. Regular events are held 
in each office to support charitable causes. 
We will support staff who voluntarily give 
up their time to participate in charitable 
programmes during working hours. 
We continue to offer work experience 
opportunities to local schools in London. 

People
The present and future success of Hansteen 
is dependent upon its ability to recruit, 
motivate, manage and retain appropriately 
qualified staff. 

This year our summer internship 
programme provided opportunities for a 
number of students to join the teams in 
our regional offices and gain hands-on 
experience in many aspects of Asset 
Management. Hansteen recruited six paid 
interns across the United Kingdom offering 
them the chance to work closely with our 
experienced members of staff. The scheme 
is designed to offer the interns a 

comprehensive view of asset management 
so that their learning experience as well as 
their employability after graduation is 
enhanced.

In 2017, we utilised a variety of recruitment 
sources so that we could widen our appeal 
to female applicants and this resulted in a 
record number of female interns.

Hansteen continues to support the interns 
from previous years’ intakes who secured 
permanent jobs as Graduate Surveyors. By 
sponsoring their development, Hansteen 
has helped four people to successfully 
complete their Assessment of Professional 
Competence (“APC”). The APC gives the 
interns the practical training and experience 
which, when combined with academic 
qualifications leads to full RICS membership. 
This sponsorship involves providing the 
interns with peer-to-peer learning, 
workshops, senior mentorship and mock 
interview panels. We expect a further five 
staff to qualify in 2018.

We continue to seek new and innovative 
ways to enhance our support of the regional 
universities. We have conducted student 
workshops designed and led by our Asset 
Managers and for the past three years we 
have joined course leaders on judging panels 
to formally assess student presentations. In 
providing direct and constructive feedback, 
we aim to support and stretch the students’ 
personal and professional development in 
board room and interview scenarios.

Record number 
of female 
interns in 2017.”

Trust

We are  
honest,  
open and 
direct in our 
dealings

Entrepreneurship

We forge 
opportunities  
by considering 
investment 
prospects 
from multiple 
angles

Excellence

We strive  
for excellence 
in everything 
that we do

Teamwork

Our people are 
at the heart of 
our success
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Hansteen has a diverse workforce and As at 31 December 2017, the composition of Hansteen’s employees, including both 
commitment to being an equal Executive and Non-Executive Directors, was as follows:
opportunities employer. We understand 

that the performance and engagement of 

our employees is critical to our business 

success. We hire people from a multitude Directors – including Non-Executive Directors 5 2 71 29

Senior managers 4 2 69 31
comprehensive and personal approach 37 33 53 47
allowing us to focus on matching the right 

people to the right roles. Our employment 

decisions are made solely on the basis of 
treats individuals with dignity and allows 

individual capability and potential in relation 
freedom of association. We value the 

to the needs of the business.
contribution of each and every one of our 

employees and together we have created 
We are committed to providing equal 

opportunities and an entirely non-
everyone is engaged, motivated and safe 

discriminatory working environment. 

favourable treatment because of gender, 
All employees are eligible to participate in 

marital status, race, age, sexual preference, 
career development and promotion 

religion, belief or disability. All decisions 
opportunities. Support also exists for 

employees who become disabled to 
concerned. The Group is dedicated to 

continue in their employment or to be 
undertaking its business operations in a 

retrained for other suitable roles.

17

 
Number Percentage

Male Female Male Female

of backgrounds and our training takes a 

All other sta�

policies and practices re�ect a culture where 

an inspiring working environment where 

from discrimination so they can ful�l 
Our diversity policy aims to ensure that 

their potential. 
no j ob applicant or employee receives less 

are based on the merits of the individual 

way which respects individual human rights, 

Equality and Diversity 
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board recognises that effective risk management is 
essential to Hansteen achieving its objectives and has carried 
out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the 
Group, including those that would threaten its business 
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. 

The Board recognises that effective risk 
management is essential to Hansteen 
achieving its objectives and has carried out 
a robust assessment of the principal risks 
facing the Group, including those that 
would threaten its business model, future 
performance, solvency or liquidity. 

The Board, senior management and staff 
continually monitor the significant risks 
which they believe the Group is facing. 
There will always be some risk when 
undertaking property investments and the 
control process is aimed at mitigating and 
minimising these risks where possible, 
rather than eliminating them. Appropriate 

controls are established to mitigate newly 
identified risks, parameters are set under 
which management can operate and, where 
necessary, action is taken to improve 
existing controls. The Audit Committee, as 
part of its remit, also consider in detail the 
significant risks faced by the Group and the 
adequacy of the controls in place. Further 
details regarding the Group’s internal control 
and risk management procedures are set 
out in the Report of the Audit Committee on 
pages 26 to 30.

Following the sale of the German and Dutch 
businesses in the first half of the year the 
Board has re-assessed the principal risks 

facing the Group; the Board considers them 
to be consistent with the prior year with the 
exception of the risks related to foreign 
currency, the probability of which the Board 
considers to have reduced.

The current key risks identified by the Board, 
their potential impact and the steps taken to 
mitigate them are presented below.

Principal risk Cause Impact Probability Risk management

Over reliance 
on key 
executives.

High dependence 
on Joint Chief 
Executives.

High Medium The Board believes such risk is to some extent 
mitigated through the appointment and support of 
high calibre employees and professional advisers. All 
such appointments are approved by a member of the 
Board and performance is monitored regularly. 

Significant 
tenant failure.

Recession and 
reduced 
profitability.

High Low Whilst there is always a risk that recession or new 
legislation may affect specific industry types, the 
Board is satisfied that Hansteen’s exposure is 
mitigated by operating with an extremely diverse 
tenant base without reliance on any particular 
tenants or industries. Vacancy rates, arrears and bad 
debts are monitored on a regional basis with trends 
investigated to determine any systematic problems 
with a portfolio or type of tenant.

Lack of 
availability 
of capital.

Banks under 
internal pressure 
to improve 
liquidity.

Banks considering 
unutilised loans 
too expensive.

High Medium The Board acknowledge that there may be occasions 
when banks are under internal pressures which may 
conflict with existing financing arrangements and it 
may prove more difficult to secure the more 
challenging properties. Detailed due diligence is 
carried out prior to the purchase of each property. 
Regular meetings are held with a portfolio of banks 
to keep them fully appraised of commercial 
opportunities and alert to any potential issues early 
on. Hansteen also considers alternative sources of 
finance to develop its strategy and reduce exposure.
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Principal risk Cause Impact Probability Risk management

Information 
and cyber 
security 
breaches 
resulting in 
data leakage, 
financial loss, 
reputational 
damage or 
business 
disruption.

Failure to protect 
information and 
information 
systems from 
unauthorised 
access, misuse, 
disruption, 
modification or 
destruction.

High Medium The Board believes this risk to be mitigated to some 
extent by the Group outsourcing much of its 
day-to-day processing to reputable third party 
organisations. Due diligence designed to assess the 
integrity of third party processes and systems is 
undertaken by management as part of the tendering 
and appointment process and is maintained on an 
ongoing basis. Internally, the Group has developed 
policies and procedures designed to mitigate 
information and cyber security risk as far as possible, 
these include: the secure encryption of all payroll and 
personal data, rigorous use of passwords and firewall 
defences, externally facilitated staff training 
programmes, bulletins to raise risk awareness and 
encourage good practice, development of secure 
mobile working policies, incident response and 
disaster recovery procedures and the establishment 
of anti-malware defences.

Poor 
return on 
investment 
and 
deterioration 
in operating 
results.

Over paying for an 
acquisition.

Prices driven up by 
increased 
competition.

Reduced number 
of investment 
opportunities.

High Low Supply and demand is reviewed continuously 
through direct information from Hansteen’s network 
of managing agents and managers. Experienced 
members of management review each acquisition 
and due diligence is carried out by external parties. 
The Board is required to approve all acquisitions and 
disposals over a prescribed amount.

Banking 
counterparty 
disruption.
Lack of 
liquidity.

Financial 
difficulties at 
institutions 
holding significant 
deposits.

Medium Medium The Board believes such risks are reduced by 
adherence to a Cash and Liquidity Management 
Policy that sets out how funds can be invested. Cash 
balances and borrowings are maintained with a 
portfolio of considered counterparties. The Group 
Treasurer reviews the cash balances on a daily basis, 
and where possible, surplus cash is put on interest 
bearing deposit.
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Joined Hansteen on 1 January Appointed an Independent 

2006 as Chief Financial 

independent on appointment 

similar role for Ashtenne 

Founder Director and Joint 

Trafalgar House Property gained in practice and 

Limited and a Director of 

Morgan j oined the Board of Currently he is also a Director 

Trustees of St Christopher’s 

Hospice in January 2002 and 

 Audit Committee  Senior Independent Director

Committee Chair  

 

20

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises �ve Non-Executive Directors, 
including the Chairman, four of whom are independent, and 
three Executive Directors. The Board is responsible to the 

development of the Group and the e�cient management of 
its resources.

shareholders of the Company for the strategy and future 

Morgan Jones Ian Watson Richard Lowes Melvyn Egglenton
Joint Chief Executive Joint Chief Executive Finance Director Non-Executive Chairman

 
  

Experience Experience Experience Experience

Other appointments Other appointments

 

 

Founder Director of Hansteen. Founder Director of Hansteen. 
Member of the Nomination Member of the Nomination Non-Executive to the Board in 
Committee. Committee. O�cer and appointed Finance June 2014 and was considered 

Director in October 2011.
as Non-Executive Chairman 
on 23 August 2016.

Quali�ed as a Chartered Quali�ed as a solicitor with Prior to this he worked in a Melvyn quali�ed as a chartered 
Accountant with Touche Ross. Gouldens. Founder Director accountant and has over 

and Joint Chief Executive of between 1997 and 2005 30 years of broad business 
Chief Executive of Ashtenne Ashtenne from 1989 to 2005. and as Finance Director of experience and knowledge 
from 1989 to 2005. 

commerce.
Ideal Homes Holdings PLC 
from 1988 to 1995. Fellow of 
the ACCA .

of the James Family Trusts, a 
Non-Executive Director of 

was appointed Chairman of Soho Estates Holdings Limited 
the Trustees on 10 December and Irwin Mitchell Holdings 
2013. Limited. 

Formerly he was Chairman of 
Pendragon PLC and Regional 
Chairman of KPMG Midlands. 
Fellow of the ICAEW. Chair of 
the Nomination Committee 
and a member of the 
Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

1 1

Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors

1 Either Morgan Jones or Ian Watson attends the Nomination Committee as only 

one j oint Chief Executive is entit led to attend any one meeting.
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Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board 

accountant and has more than 

companies in the property 

Currently also Chief Financial 

Senior Independent Director the UK’s largest and most 

successful estate agency 

International Asset Director at Land Securities 

Lodestone Capital Partners Management Limited and 

Senior Independent 

Finance Director and Deputy and Company Secretary 

for nine years and Finance 

Chair of the Audit Committee 
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Rebecca Worthington Margaret Young David Rough Jim Clarke 
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

           

Experience Experience Experience Experience

Other appointments Other appointments Other appointments Other appointments

    

in June 2014. in October 2015. in October 2015. in February 2018. 

Rebecca is a Chartered Margaret quali�ed as an David has spent his career Jim, a Chartered Accountant, 
Accountant with more than working in the �nancial has extensive board 
20 years commercial 15 years of board experience services sector, predominantly experience of listed 
experience gained in the real across the logistics, �nancial in investment management 
estate industry. services, food manufacturing and has prior experience in the and leisure sectors.

and fast-moving consumer real estate sector. 
goods sectors. Margaret spent 
most of her executive career in 
investment banking, working 
for NatWest Markets, 
Donaldson Luf kin & Jenrette 
and Credit Suisse.

Currently also a Non- Currently also Non- Formerly Group Chief Financial 
O�cer of Countryside Executive Director of Executive Director and O�cer of Countrywide PLC, 
Properties PLC and Non- BlackRock Group Limited and 
Executive Director of British was formerly a Non-Executive at John Laing Group PLC. 
Land PLC. Formerly Founder Director of BNY Mellon Formerly a Non-Executive and property services 
and Chief Executive O�cer of group, for ten years.

PLC and Xstrata PLC. 
LLP, a Non-Executive Director AA PLC. Chair of the Prior to j oining Countrywide 
of Aga Rangemaster PLC and Remuneration Committee and Director and a member of PLC, he was Finance Director 

a member of the Audit and the Audit, Nomination and 
Chief Executive of Quintain Nomination Committees. Remuneration Committees. of JD Wetherspoon PLC 
Estates and Development 
PLC. Fellow of the ICAEW. Director of David Lloyd Leisure 

(a division of Whitbread 
and a member of the PLC) for three years.
Nomination and 
Remuneration Committees.
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Chairman

› 

› 

› 

› 

It is the Directors’ duty to promote the success of the Company 

 

Chairman
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Chairman’s Corporate Governance Statement

As Chairman, I am pleased to introduce you to 

the 2017 Corporate Governance Report. The 

high standards of corporate governance, which 

we believe enables the Board to promote the 

success of the Company for the bene�t of 

its members. 

Board of Hansteen is committed to maintaining 

Melvyn Egglenton 

Melvyn Egglenton

The Directors and Board are accountable to the shareholders and shareholders. Details are also provided on the extent of the 

must act in the way in which they consider, in good faith, would be Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions of the UK 

most likely to promote the success of the Company for the bene�t Corporate Governance Code and the ways its principles have 

of its members as a whole. This includes overseeing that all been applied.

colleagues act in the right way by creating the right culture and tone 

in which the business will operate. The Board has maintained a set of 

guiding principles which de�nes the character of the business. As a 
On 10 November 2017, Rebecca Worthington advised the Board that Board we look to lead by example by making decisions that re�ect 
she would be standing down during the �rst quarter of 2018. The the culture we wish to encourage and which is then reinforced by the 
Board, assisted by the Nomination Committee, carried out a process Executive management and aligns with the Group values. These 
to recruit a replacement and were delighted to be j oined by Jim enduring qualities are a fundamental strength of our business and 
Clarke as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 27 February we bring all of them to our professional and personal conduct:
2018. Rebecca resigned from the Board with e�ect from 20 March 

2018 and Jim Clarke replaced Rebecca as Audit Committee Chair Trust – we are honest, open and direct in our dealings;
with e�ect from that date. Details of our Diversity Policy are given Entrepreneurship – we forge opportunities by considering 
in the Report of the Nominations Committee on page 31 and the investment prospects from multiple angles;
Corporate and social responsibility section of the Strategic report on Teamwork – our people are at the heart of our success; and

Excellence – we strive for excellence in everything we do. page 17.

having regard to the likely consequences of any decision in the An internal Board and Committee evaluation was undertaken during 
long-term and the interest of the di�ering stakeholders. We the year as an external evaluation was completed in 2016 and I am 
considered carefully the consequences of the disposal of the pleased to con�rm that the Board and Committees were found to be 
German and Dutch businesses to ensure that it was in the best working well with no signi�cant concerns being identi�ed. Following 
interests of our stakeholders. The disposal was in line with the the Board evaluation, I have also conducted individual Director 
Company’s strategy adding value through its business model of evaluations and David Rough, as the Senior Independent Director led 
“buy, work and sell”. The disposal of the businesses at a time when on my own evaluation. Following these evaluations I remain satis�ed 
not only were they at historically high levels of occupancy and rent that the performance of all of the Directors proposed for re-election 
for the period of Hansteen’s ownership and also at a time when the and David Rough remains satis�ed that my performance continues 
Euro/Sterling exchange rate was favourable crystallised signi�cant to be e�ective and that each Director demonstrates commitment to 
gains. This enabled the Company to return a signi�cant amount of their role.
cash to shareholders, bondholders and bank lenders. 

The disposals were undertaken in such a way that the ongoing 

employment of a substantial maj ority of the employees engaged 

in those businesses was protected.

This Corporate Governance Statement describes the Group’s 

corporate governance framework in the context of Leadership, 

E�ectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration and Relations with 19 March 2018

Board changes and diversity

Board evaluation
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Corporate governance framework

This report outlines the key features of the Company’s corporate 
governance framework and sets out how the Company has applied 
the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code published in 
April 2016 (the “Code”) and the extent to which it has complied with 
the Code’s provisions. A copy of the Code is available on the Financial 
Reporting Council website at www.frc.org.uk.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s 
system of internal controls, including the review of its effectiveness 
and suitable monitoring procedures, in order to safeguard 
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group as well as the 
integrity of its accounting records and provide reliable information 
for use within the business and for publication. The Group’s system 
of internal controls is designed to manage rather than eliminate the 
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only 
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control for the period under review and up to the date of this report. 
The process of this review is summarised within the Report of the 
Audit Committee on pages 26 to 30. During the course of its review, 
the Board has not identified nor been advised of any failings or 
weaknesses which it has determined to be significant. Therefore, a 
confirmation in respect of necessary actions is not considered 
necessary. The internal control environment will continue to be 
monitored and reviewed by the Board.

Compliance with the Code
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 the Company 
adhered to all the principles of the Code and complied with all the 
provisions, except in respect of the following provision:

D.1.1 relating to malus and clawback. Prior to the AGM in 2017 the 
remuneration policy did not contain malus and clawback provisions 
for the annual performance related bonus, PSP and Founder LTIP 
schemes because provision D.1.1 was introduced to the Code after 
that remuneration policy and Founder LTIP was approved by 
shareholders in June 2014 and June 2012 respectively. The 2017 
AGM Remuneration proposals, which were approved on 13 June 
2017, incorporated malus and clawback provisions for the annual 
performance related bonus, PSP scheme and Founder LTIP.

The Company complies with the Corporate Governance Statement 
requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure 
Guidance and Transparency Rules by virtue of the information 
included in this Corporate Governance Statement supplemented by 
the information contained in the Directors’ Report on pages 47 to 51, 
the Report of the Audit Committee on pages 26 to 30, the Report of 
the Nomination Committee on pages 31 and 32 and the Report of 
the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 to 46.

Leadership
The role of the Board of Directors
The Board is responsible and accountable to the shareholders of the 
Company for the long-term success of the Company, strategy and 
future development of the Group and the efficient management of 
its resources. Accordingly, there is a clear division of responsibilities, 
with the Executive Directors running the Company’s day-to-day 
business and the Non-Executive Directors and Chairman 
constructively challenging the Executive Directors, please refer 
to page 23. To facilitate this team working, the Board has a schedule 
of matters reserved for its decision, which includes approval of 
annual budgets, acquisition and divestment policy, approval of major 
capital projects, the raising of finance and management policies. 
The Non-Executive Directors also meet the property valuers, 
independent of management, to discuss the year-end and half-year 
property valuations. The Board meets at least five times a year with 
ad hoc meetings as required.

Board and Committee meeting attendance
There were seven scheduled Board meetings held in 2017 and seven 
Board meetings are scheduled for 2018, including one Strategic 
specific meeting. At the Strategic meeting the Board reviews, 
considers and discusses the ongoing strategic development of 
the Group and the key strategic focuses for year and beyond. Six 
additional ad-hoc Board meetings were held during the year to 
discuss specific business matters, including the disposal of German 

and Dutch business, the acquisition of IMPT and return of £578.1 
million capital to shareholder. The scheduled Board and Committee 
meetings have standing agenda items, which ensures that all 
aspects of the business are given due consideration as appropriate. 
The Board regularly reviews strategic matters as part of the standing 
agenda items.

Board activities during the year 
The Board dedicates one of its meetings every year to focus on 
reviewing the Group’s strategy and to consider annual objectives. 
The Board monitors the achievement of the Company’s objectives 
through regular reports which include updates from the Joint Chief 
Executives, the Finance Director and other key personnel. There is a 
rolling agenda of items that are regularly considered by the Board 
and this agenda is continually updated to include any topical matters 
that arise.

The roles of the Chairman and Joint Chief Executives
The division of responsibilities between the role of Chairman and the 
roles of the Joint Chief Executives is clearly defined, set out in writing 
and reviewed annually by the Board.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective working 
of the Board, ensuring that all members of the Board, including in 
particular, the Non-Executive Directors, have an opportunity to 
contribute effectively, and that there is appropriate and timely 
communication with shareholders.

The Joint Chief Executives are responsible for the strategic direction 
and operational and financial performance of the Group, having been 
delegated this responsibility by the Board.

Effectiveness
Composition of the Board
To meet the business requirements, the Board during the year has 
comprised of the Chairman, three Independent Non-Executive 
Directors and three Executive Directors. The biographies of these 
Directors are set out on pages 20 and 21. Non-Executive Directors 
are typically expected to serve two three-year terms and may be 
invited to by the Board to serve an additional three-year period. Any 
term renewal is subject to Board Review and annual re-election by 
the shareholders. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance 
Code all Directors with one exception will offer themselves for 
re-election at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Rebecca Worthington, Non-Executive Director and Audit 
Committee Chair gave notice of her resignation on 10 November 
2017, will step down from the Board on 20 March 2018 and will not be 
seeking re-election. Following Rebecca’s resignation, the Company 
commenced a search for a Non-Executive Director to replace her 
the details of which are given in the Nomination report.

All of the Directors are considered to be able to allocate sufficient 
time to the Company to discharge their responsibilities effectively. 
At the time of appointment, all Directors are made aware of the time 
commitment necessary to discharge their responsibilities and the 
letters of appointment for the Chairman and each Non-Executive 
Director set out an anticipated time commitment. In addition to his 
role as Chairman of Hansteen Holdings PLC, Melvyn Egglenton is 
Director of the James Family Trusts, Non-Executive Director of 
Soho Estates Holdings Limited, Irwin Mitchell Holdings Limited 
and was Chairman of Pendragon PLC until 20 October 2017.

Board
Audit 

Committee
Nomination 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Melvyn Egglenton 7 – 2 3
Ian Watson1 7 – 1 –
Morgan Jones1 7 – 1 –
Richard Lowes 7 – – –
David Rough 7 3 2 3
Margaret Young 7 3 2 3
Rebecca Worthington 7 3 2 3

Number of meetings 
during the year

7 3 2 3

1Either of the Joint Chief Executives attends the Nomination Committee
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Corporate governance framework | continued

The Board is satisfied that the Chairman who was independent on 
appointment and the Non-Executive Directors, each of whom has 
no day-to-day involvement in the running of the Company, are 
independent from management, have no commercial, financial or 
other connection with the Company, other than as a shareholder, 
and are able to exercise independent judgement.

The service agreements of the Executive Directors and terms and 
conditions of the Non-Executive Directors’ appointments are 
available for inspection at the Company’s Annual General Meeting 
or at the Company’s registered office.

Appointments to the Board
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established a 
Nomination Committee. The primary role of the Nomination 
Committee is to keep under review the composition of the Board, to 
plan for its refreshment, with regard to balance of skills, experience, 
independence, knowledge and structure, and to consider issues of 
succession. The appointment of new Directors will follow a formal 
rigorous and transparent procedure and is a matter for the Board as 
a whole, following recommendations made by the Nomination 
Committee.

The Nomination Committee works from terms of reference and 
these are available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.

The Nomination Committee’s report is set out on pages 31 and 32, 
and should be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance 
Statement.

Directors’ induction and professional development
The Company has in place an induction programme, led by the 
Chairman and the Joint Chief Executives, for new Directors to 
provide them with a full, formal and tailored introduction on joining 
the Board, which ensures that they attain sufficient knowledge of the 
Company to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. 
The programme includes meeting with senior management and 
advisers and visits to the Group’s operational locations. The Board 
calendar is planned to ensure that Directors are briefed on a wide 
range of topics, including updates on accounting standards or on 
corporate governance and regulatory matters.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company 
Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board 
procedures, are complied with and that Directors have access to 
independent and professional advice at the Company’s expense, 
where they judge this to be necessary to discharge their 
responsibilities as Directors. During the year we chose to fully 
outsource the function of Company Secretary and have appointed 
Link Company Matters Limited (part of the Link Group).

Information and support provided to the Board
The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion, with the information it 
needs to enable it to discharge its duties. In between Board 
meetings, the Board receives a monthly performance pack 
containing detailed information on the entire property portfolio. 
The Board is also kept informed of changes in relevant legislation 
and changing commercial risks, and each Director has access to 
independent professional advice and the advice and services of 
the Company Secretary.

Evaluation of the Board and its Committees
In line with the requirements of the Code, during 2017 the Board 
and Committees undertook an informal review of their performance 
having completed a formal evaluation in 2016 facilitated by 
Independent Audit Limited (Independent Audit Limited has no 
other connection with the Company). In addition, the Chairman 
met with each of the Non-Executive Directors to evaluate their 
individual performances and those of the Executive Directors. 
The Non-Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent 
Director met without the Chairman present to evaluate his 
performance as Chairman.

This informal review required the Directors to complete a tailored, 
high-level questionnaire. The questionnaire provided the Directors 
with an opportunity to express their views concerning: 

 › the performance of the Board and its Committees generally such 
as including how the Directors work together as a whole as well as 
the balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of 
the Directors; and 

 › specific topics, including strategy and risk, reward strategy, 
performance and engagement with the auditor.

The main topics considered by the Board during the year included:

Area Agenda Items

Financial Reporting  > Review of Management accounts.
 > Approval of trading updates.
 > Review of cash, debt forecasts and gearing levels.
 > Review of hedging instruments.
 > Review of dividend policy, dividend payment/recommendation (as appropriate).

Budget  > Approval of 2018 and 2019 annual budget.

Internal Control and risk 
management (in conjunction 
with the Audit Committee)

 > Consideration of risk appetite and principal risks.
 > Assessment of effectiveness of internal controls and risk management systems.
 > Consideration of viability statements and going concern.
 > Consideration of cyber-risk and mitigation.

Operations  > Disposal of the Dutch and German businesses.
 > Acquisition of IMPT.
 > Settlement of €100 million Convertible Bonds.
 > Return of £578.1 million Capital to shareholders.

Strategy  > Consideration of overall strategy, strategic projects and monitoring progress.

Shareholder engagement  > Regular updates on views of investors, including independent feedback from brokers following 
investor meetings and AGM.

 > Consideration of market reaction to key announcements.
 > Monthly review of share register and share-dealing reports. 

Board  > Consideration of Board Evaluation results for 2017.
 > Approval of the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts and related documents.

Governance  > Review of Terms of Reference of Committees and matters reserved for the Board.
 > Review of membership of Board Committees, diversity and independence.
 > Review of Company policies and approval of changes to Board delegated authorities.
 > Updates on governance, legal and regulatory matters and the impact of regulatory changes, 

including Corporate Governance reform proposals and Market Abuse Regulations.
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The main topics considered by the Board during the year included:

2017 Board Evaluation Results Actions to take forward

Clarifying the Group strategy following 
the sale of the European business

The Board has debated the strategy post the sale of the Dutch and German business and 
it remains committed to a diverse UK portfolio which provides investors with consistent 
high realised returns.

Continue to review succession planning 
within the Executive Team

The Board has invited senior managers to attend board meetings and to present items 
when appropriate. Senior managers are requested by the Executive Directors to prepare 
briefing notes to the Board on a range of topics. These actions enable the Non-Executive 
Directors to better understand the capabilities and potential of senior managers.

Ensure that the NEDs receive adequate 
information on pay and conditions across 
the Company

The Remuneration Committee review the recommendations of Executive Directors in 
relation to the remuneration of individual senior management and all other employees of 
the Group. 

The responses to the evaluation of the Board and its Committees 
were reviewed with the Chairman and then considered by the 
relevant Committees and Board. Separate meetings were also 
held between the Chairman and individual Directors to discuss the 
Board’s effectiveness and individual performance. The results of 
the evaluation indicated that the Board continues to work well and 
there are no significant concerns among the Directors about its 
effectiveness. It was agreed that the following were key areas of 
focus for the Board in 2017:

The results of the evaluation of the Chairman’s performance 
were considered by the Senior Independent Director and the 
Non-Executive Directors and were discussed between the Senior 
Independent Director and the Chairman. In accordance with the 
Code, the Board will be undertaking an externally facilitated 
evaluation in 2019.

The Board is confident that the performance of the Board and the 
Committees was and is effective and that all Directors demonstrate 
full commitment in their respective roles.

Accountability
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established an Audit 
Committee. The primary role and responsibility of the Audit 
Committee is: 

 › to monitor the integrity of the financial statements and 
announcements of the Company relating to the Company’s 
financial performance, including any significant financial 
judgements;

 › to review the Company’s internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

 › to make recommendations to the Board, for consideration by the 
shareholders for their approval in general meeting;

 › to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and 
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;

 › to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the 
external auditor to supply non-audit services; and

 › to report to the Board on how it has discharged its 
responsibilities.

Thereby providing shareholders with increased confidence in the 
credibility and objectivity of the Group’s published financial 
information.

The Audit Committee works from terms of reference and these are 
available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.

The Audit Committee’s report is set out on pages 26 to 30 and 
should be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance 
Statement.

Remuneration
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established a 
Remuneration Committee. The primary role of the Remuneration 
Committee is to determine and recommend to the Board the 
specific pay and benefits packages for the Executive Directors which 
are designed to promote the long-term success of the Company 
and to ensure that performance related elements are transparent, 
stretching and rigorously applied.

The Remuneration Committee works from terms of reference and 
these are available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.

The Remuneration Committee’s report is set out on pages 33 to 46 
and should be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance 
Statement.

Relations with shareholders
The Executive Directors regularly meet with institutional 
shareholders and analysts. The Board receives regular updates at 
Board meetings on the views of its shareholders, and the Chairman 
and Senior Independent Director are available to meet shareholders 
if they wish to raise issues separately. The Chairman and Joint Chief 
Executives also ensure that there is effective communication with 
shareholders on matters such as governance and strategy, and are 
responsible for ensuring that the Board understands the views of 
major shareholders. Private investors are also encouraged to meet 
with the Board and to participate in the Annual General Meeting. 

The Chairs of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees 
are available to answer questions, where appropriate, at the Annual 
General Meeting. The Senior Independent Director is available to 
shareholders if they have concerns, which contact through the 
normal channels has failed to resolve or for which such contact is 
inappropriate. 

In March 2018, the Company Chairman and Chair of the 
Remuneration Committee wrote to the Company’s major 
shareholders to discuss proposed changes to the remuneration 
packages of the Joint Chief Executives. Further details are set out in 
the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 to 46. 
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Report of the Audit Committee

I am pleased to present my report as Chair 

of the Audit Committee for the year ended 

31 December 2017. 

Rebecca Worthington

Rebecca Worthington

Introduction by the Chair of the Audit Committee This report sets out:

information regarding the composition of the Committee, the 
I am pleased to present my report as Chair of the Audit Committee. 

meetings it held during the year and the evaluation of its 

performance;
The obj ectives of the Committee are to:

the responsibilities of the Committee and the way it discharges 
increase shareholder con�dence in the credibility and obj ectivity 

them; and
of the Group’s published �nancial information;

the areas of signi�cant j udgement considered by the Committee 
assist the Board in meeting its �nancial reporting responsibilities 

during the year.
by ensuring the adequacy and e�ectiveness of the Group’s risk 

On 10 November 2017, I advised the Board that I would be standing 
the principles, policies and practices adopted in the preparation 

down during the �rst quarter of 2018 and I agreed with the Board 
of the Annual Report and Financial Statements comply with 

that my resignation would be e�ective from 20 March 2018 after the 
applicable statutory requirements; and

announcement of the Group’s audited results for the year ended 
strengthen the independent position of the external auditor by 

31 December 2017. Jim Clarke was appointed to the Board as an 
providing channels of communication between them and the 

Independent Non-Executive Director and to the Audit Committee 
Non-Executive Directors.

on 27 February 2018 and succeeds me as Audit Committee Chair 

with e�ect from 20 March 2018.
The Audit Committee is required to report its �ndings to the Board, 

identifying any matters on which it considers that action or 

improvement is needed, and make recommendations on the 

steps to be taken.

19 March 2018
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Composition of the Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are shown on page 
21, these individuals having been selected to provide the right 
balance of knowledge, skill and experience to support the business 
in pursuing its strategy and achieving its objectives.

All Committee members are considered by the Board to be 
independent. Rebecca Worthington, Margaret Young and David 
Rough all have recent and relevant financial experience as required 
by the Code, further details of which are given on page 21. The Chair 
of the Committee, Rebecca Worthington, is considered to have the 
necessary competence in accounting. The Audit Committee as a 
whole have relevant industrial property experience. No members of 
the Committee have links with the Company’s external auditor. 

Jim Clarke who has been appointed to the Board as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director will succeed Rebecca Worthington as Audit 
Committee Chair with effect from 20 March 2018. Jim Clarke has 
recent and relevant financial experience as required by the Code, and 
has the appropriate competence in accounting, further details of 
which are given on page 21.

Meetings
The Committee meets regularly during the year, its meetings being 
aligned to the financial reporting timetable. Senior representatives 
of the external auditors, Executive Directors and senior 
management may be invited to attend the meetings at the 
Committee’s discretion. The Committee holds a private session with 
the external Auditor after the March meeting at which the Annual 
Report is reviewed and at other times during the year without 
members of management being present, where necessary. 
The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee.

During 2017 the Committee met three times for scheduled 
meetings and twice for ad-hoc meetings. Details of members’ 
attendance at each meeting are shown on page 23. 

Annual evaluation of performance
An internal evaluation of the performance of the Committee was 
carried out during the year, following the externally facilitated Board 
evaluation exercise undertaken during the previous year and the 
Committee was found to be operating effectively. Further details of 
the evaluation are given on page 22 of the Corporate Governance 
Statement.

Responsibilities of the Committee
The Audit Committee (the “Committee”) has been established in 
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”).

The full terms of reference of the Committee, reviewed in 2017, are 
available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.
The Committee’s principal responsibilities include: 
 › reviewing the content of the Annual Report and Financial 

Statements and advising the Board on whether, taken as a whole, 
it is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the 
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s 
position, performance, business model and strategy;

 › reviewing the interim and full year financial statements prior to 
their submission to the Board, considering whether the Group’s 
chosen accounting policies have been properly applied and 
whether any changes to financial reporting requirements have 
been properly dealt with; 

 › reviewing the Group’s principal risks on a bi-annual basis;
 › ensuring that the Group has in place the internal controls, 

systems and procedures reasonably needed to mitigate its 
identified risks and ensure the integrity of financial information;

 › monitoring the Group’s internal audit requirements; 
 › ensuring that the Group has in place the systems and procedures 

necessary to comply with relevant legislation, regulation and best 
practice concerning social, environmental and ethical matters;

 › reviewing the Group’s arrangements for its employees and 
contractors to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible 
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters, reviewing the 
systems and controls for the prevention of bribery and the 
procedures for detecting fraud;

 › considering all matters relating to the recommendation for 
appointment, re-appointment, remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the Group’s external auditor; 

 › maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external 
auditor, reviewing their effectiveness, objectivity and 
independence, considering both the scope of their work and the 
fees paid to them for audit and non-audit services; and

 › developing and implementing the policy for the provision of 
non-audit services by the external auditor. 

The Committee is satisfied that it receives sufficient, reliable 
and timely information from management to allow it to fulfil its 
responsibilities. The ways in which the Committee discharged its 
responsibilities during the year are described below.

Oversight of the Financial Reporting Process
On behalf of the Board the Committee reviewed and considered the 
following areas in respect of financial reporting and the preparation 
of the interim and annual financial statements:
 › appropriateness of the accounting policies applied by 

management;
 › extent of compliance with external and internal financial 

reporting standards and policies;
 › appropriateness of the significant judgements made by 

management;
 › adequacy of statutory disclosures;
 › completeness and adequacy of the disclosure of the principal 

risks and uncertainties faced by the Group; and
 › whether the Annual Report and Financial Statements are fair, 

balanced and understandable.

To carry out this work, the Committee considered the work and 
recommendations of the finance team led by the Finance Director, 
Richard Lowes. In addition, the Committee received regular reports 
from the external auditor setting out their views of the accounting 
treatments and judgements included in the financial statements. 
The reports from the external auditor are based on a full audit of the 
annual financial statements and a review of the unaudited interim 
financial statements. 

Internal Control and Risk Management
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing 
the most significant risks faced by the Group has been in place 
throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual 
Report and Accounts. That process, which accords with the 2014 
FRC Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related 
Financial and Business Reporting, is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate risk and applies to all material controls, including financial 
and compliance controls. This is supported by regular meetings of 
the Board and Committee along with:
 › Formalised management structure – comprising a clear 

organisational structure with well-defined lines of reporting 
and responsibility, along with set parameters under which the 
business can operate without further or specific consideration 
by the Board;

 › Financial reporting disciplines – covering performance 
monitoring, profit and cash flow forecasting and the preparation 
of the consolidated accounts;

 › Investment appraisal procedures – a clearly defined framework 
for capital and development expenditure and subsequent 
on-going appraisals; and

 › Risk identification and management procedures – risk 
identification and management is an integral part of the system 
of internal control. Identified risks along with the associated 
controls and monitoring procedures intended to mitigate them, 
are documented in a risk register. The risk register is reviewed 
bi-annually and updated where appropriate, reports are received 
from the executive on control procedures, and any areas for 
improvement are agreed for subsequent action. Information 
regarding the key risks the Group faces in pursuing its strategy 
and achieving its objectives is reported in the Strategic Report on 
pages 1 to 19.

The Committee has concluded that the systems of internal control 
and risk management within the Group are effective.
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Report of the Audit Committee | continued

Internal Audit
The majority of the processing and accounting for the day-to-day 
transactions of the Group is outsourced to third-party suppliers. 
Management maintain a close relationship with these suppliers and 
perform regular detailed reviews of their work, reporting to the 
Committee if any significant concerns are raised by these reviews. 
The Committee regularly reviews the internal controls to ensure that 
they are adequate for the size and complexity of the business. 

The Committee believes that the outsourcing of day-to-day 
processing and accounting routines, combined with the oversight 
and review procedures performed by management and the 
independent challenge and assurance provided by the external 
auditor, provides three lines of defence that mitigate the need for an 
internal audit function at this time. The Committee and the Board 
will continue to monitor this position on an ongoing basis.

Whistleblowing
The Group has in place a formal whistleblowing policy and a 
dedicated independent whistleblowing hotline, as part of the 
arrangements set up and monitored by the Committee, so that 
employees can report any matters of concern. The Board has 
appointed the Audit Committee Chair as the Board member with 
responsibility for the Company’s whistleblowing arrangements.

External Audit – Compliance with CMA Order 2014
The Committee confirm that the Company has complied with 
The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market 
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes 
and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014.

External Audit – Appointment
Deloitte has been the Group’s external auditor since 2006 when the 
Group prepared its first Annual Report and Financial Statements. 
The audit partner responsible for the Group’s audit matters is 
changed every five years in accordance with the Ethical Standards 
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. The current audit partner, 
Claire Faulkner, was appointed to that position with effect from 
19 March 2016. 

The Committee has established a tendering policy that requires an 
audit tender every 10 years. The last audit tender was carried out in 
2015 following which the Board approved the reappointment of 
Deloitte for the year ended 31 December 2016.

External Audit – Independence and objectivity
In forming their opinion on the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditor, the Committee takes into account the safeguards 
operating within Deloitte and they are asked to provide a formal 
statement of their independence annually. 

To safeguard the independence of the external auditor, the 
Committee ensures compliance with its policy governing the 
provision of non-audit services by the external auditor under which 
Deloitte may not provide a service which places them in a position 
where they may be required to audit their own work. Specifically, 
Deloitte are precluded from providing services relating to 
bookkeeping or other services relating to the accounting records or 
financial statements of the Group, financial information system 
design and implementation, appraisal or evaluation services, 
actuarial services, any management functions, investment banking 
services, legal services unrelated to the audit, remuneration related 
services or advocacy services. 

To further fulfil its responsibilities regarding the independence and 
objectivity of the external auditor, the Committee reviewed:
 › the scope of the audit as set out in the external auditor’s 

engagement letter;
 › the external auditor’s overall work plan;
 › the external auditor’s fee proposal;
 › a report from the external auditor describing their arrangements 

to ensure objectivity and to identify, report and manage any 
conflicts of interest; and

 › the extent, nature and associated fees of non-audit services 
provided by the external auditor.

The Committee believes that it receives particular benefit from 
certain non-audit services being provided by the external auditor 
due to their wide and detailed knowledge of the Group and so 
discretion is used, subject to the controls set out above, in obtaining 
such services from Deloitte.

In accordance with the Ethical Standards issued by the Auditing 
Practices Board the Group prohibits the engagement of the external 
auditor to provide services including inter-alia, taxation, internal 
audit, the design of internal controls and HR services.

Where non-audit services are provided, the fees are based on the 
work undertaken and are not success related. Consideration is 
given to the nature of and remuneration received for other services 
provided by Deloitte to the Group and confirmation is sought from 
them that the fee payable for the annual audit is adequate to enable 
them to perform their obligations in accordance with the scope of 
the audit. 

In addition to acting as external auditor to the Group during 2017, the 
main engagement by Deloitte under permitted non-audit services 
was that of a working capital review in respect of the disposal of the 
German and Dutch Companies and subsequent return of capital to 
Shareholders. In line with EU Audit Directive and Regulation on Audit 
Reform, the Committee is responsible for approving all non-audit 
services provided by the auditor. 

Payments made by the Group for non-audit fees for the year 
represented 75% of the audit fees paid to Deloitte. Further details 
of audit and non-audit fees for the year are disclosed on page 73. 
The Committee has fully evaluated all non-audit work undertaken by 
Deloitte during the year against its policy and remains comfortable 
that it is appropriate, the fees justified, and that Deloitte remain 
independent. The level of non-audit fees are unusually high in the 
current year as a result of the reporting accountant work in respect 
of both the disposal of the German and Dutch portfolio and the 
return of capital. Non-audit fees are not anticipated to remain at 
this level.

External Audit – Effectiveness
The Committee has adopted a formal framework in its review of the 
effectiveness of the external audit process which includes:
 › considering how the audit process can support the work of the 

Committee;
 › determining the scope of the audit, including the completeness 

of the risks of material misstatement identified in the 
independent auditor’s report;

 › monitoring the planning and execution of the audit;
 › reviewing communications received from the auditor;
 › assessing the quality of the formal audit report to shareholders; 
 › appraising the audit partner and the audit team;
 › evaluating the extent to which the audit contributes insights and 

adds value; and 
 › assessing the effectiveness of the management team in the 

audit process.

A comprehensive auditor assessment questionnaire is completed 
annually by each member of the Committee and the Finance 
Director. In addition, feedback is obtained from members of the 
senior management team, including the Joint Chief Executives, and 
from the wider finance team. The responses are collated and the 
resulting analysis considered by the Committee with any concerns 
being discussed with the auditor. Every year the external audit 
partner meets with the Committee Chair and Finance Director to 
formally discuss the quality of the external audit process using this 
evaluation framework and the outcome of those discussions feeds 
into the audit process for the subsequent three years.

The Committee meets as considered necessary with the external 
auditor without management being present. The effectiveness of 
the management team’s role in the external audit process is 
assessed principally using the following performance measures:
 › the timely identification and resolution of areas of accounting 

judgement; 
 › the quality and timeliness of papers analysing those judgements;
 › the management team’s approach to the value of independent 

audit and the booking of any audit adjustments arising; and
 › the timely provision of draft public documents for review by the 

auditor and the Committee. 
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The Committee concluded that it was satisfied with the performance and independence of Deloitte LLP as external auditor and 
recommended their re-appointment.

FRC’s Audit Quality Review
The Committee considered the findings of the FRC’s Audit Quality Review (“AQR”) team’s report into the conduct of Deloitte’s audits 
generally. In addition, the AQR team selected to review the audit of the Group’s 2016 financial statements as part of its annual inspection of 
audit firms. The Chairman of the Committee received a copy of the findings of the AQR team and has discussed this with Deloitte. Whilst 
there were no significant findings, some areas of Deloitte’s audit procedures were identified as requiring limited improvement and we are 
satisfied with the responses implemented by Deloitte in the audit of the Group’s 2017 financial statements. None of the findings related to 
the Group’s accounting policies. 

Areas of significant accounting judgement considered by the Audit Committee during 2017
The areas of significance considered by the Committee in relation to the financial statements and its responses to them were as given below. 
In each case the Audit Committee agreed and approved the action taken. 

Area considered Audit Committee response Audit Committee conclusion

Accounting for the 
Group’s stepped 
acquisition of 
Industrial Multi 
Property Trust PLC 
(“IMPT”)

 > The Committee considered the form and 
substance of the Group’s influence over IMPT 
in the period from when it acquired its initial 
investment in IMPT in February 2017 through to 
the Group’s purchase of the remaining minority 
interest in July 2017.

 > The Committee considered the classification in the 
Group accounts of the investment in IMPT during 
the period of the stepped acquisition and changing 
degrees of control.

 > The Committee considered if the acquisition 
should be treated as a business combination or an 
asset purchase. 

 > The Committee concluded that prior to 7 April 
2017 the Group did not have control of IMPT 
and therefore it was held as an investment and 
was not a subsidiary of the Group.

 > Assets and Liabilities of IMPT were 
consolidated after 7 April 2017 with the 
minority interest recognised on the balance 
sheet and full profits recognised after 
completion of the purchase of the 
minority interest.

 > Further information is given in notes 4 and 18 
to the financial statements.

Accounting for the 
Group’s disposal of 
the Dutch and 
German businesses

 > The Committee considered whether the disposal 
of the Dutch and German businesses should be 
classified as a discontinued operation.

 > The Committee considered the presentation of 
the disposal in the Group accounts including the 
recycling of translation reserves realised on the 
disposal to the Income Statement.

 > The Committee considered the tax implications of 
the disposal.

 > The Committee concluded that the disposal of 
the Dutch and German businesses would be 
classified as a discontinued operation within 
the interim accounts.

 > Further information is given in notes 4, 15 and 
16 to the financial statements. 

Accounting for the 
settlement of the 
Group’s €100 million 
Convertible Bonds

 > The Committee considered the accounting 
treatment of the settlement by way of part 
cash and part conversion to equity of the 
Convertible Bonds.

 > The Committee considered the presentation in the 
Group accounts of the settlement.

 > The Committee considered the impact of the 2006 
Companies Act Merger Relief provisions on the 
transaction.

 > The Committee agreed that the premium 
arising on the part conversion to equity of 
Convertible Bonds should be transferred to 
retained earnings.

 > Further information is given in note 26 to the 
financial statements.

Accounting for the 
return of £580 
million capital to the 
shareholders

 > The Committee considered the working capital 
statement prepared to demonstrate that the 
Company had sufficient working capital for the 
twelve months following the Circular issued in 
connection with the return of capital.

 > The Committee considered the forecasts and the 
stress testing of those forecasts prepared by the 
Company and concluded that the Company had 
sufficient resources to make the working capital 
statement included in the Circular dated 4 October 
2017 and found at www.hansteen.co.uk/investors. 

 > The Committee concluded that the Company 
had sufficient working capital to make the 
£578.1 million return to shareholders.

 > Further information is given in note 29 to the 
financial statements.

Investment 
property valuations

 > Members of the Committee with relevant and 
current expertise in property valuations met with 
the external valuers of the Group’s property 
portfolio to understand and challenge, where 
necessary, the valuations.

 > The Committee considered and debated the 
external auditor’s findings in this area.

 > The Committee concluded that the external 
property valuations were reasonable.

 > Further information is given in note 18 to the 
financial statements.
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Report of the Audit Committee | continued

Area considered Audit Committee response Audit Committee conclusion

Judgements and 
disclosures made in 
relation to going 
concern and 
long-term viability

 > The Committee reviewed and challenged the 
underlying assumptions used in the going concern 
forecasts and long-term viability calculations as 
well as the reasonableness of the stress tests 
carried out by management in relation to those 
forecasts.

 > The Committee considered the support for, and 
adequacy of, the disclosures made in the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements in relation to 
going concern, long-term viability, debt maturity 
and covenant compliance.

 > The Committee considered and debated the 
external auditor’s findings in this area.

 > The Committee concluded that the Company 
remained a going concern and that long-term 
viability calculations were suitably stress 
tested.

 > The Committee also determined that the 
disclosure in the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements were justified.

 > Further information is given in the Directors’ 
Report on pages 47 to 51. 

Basis for 
qualification for 
REIT status and the 
recognition of 
overseas deferred 
tax assets

 > The Committee considered the Group’s process 
for monitoring and maintaining REIT status.

 > The Committee considered the supporting 
evidence for recognition of overseas deferred tax 
assets, particularly in relation to tax losses.

 > The Committee considered the reasonability of 
management’s assessment of the likelihood of 
future utilisation of tax losses in each relevant 
entity and jurisdiction.

 > The Committee considered and debated the 
external auditor’s findings in this area.

 > The Committee have assessed the 
management’s processes of monitoring and 
maintaining REIT status and overseas income 
and conclude that the Group had complied 
with the REIT status requirements.

 > Further information is given in note 12 to the 
financial statements.

Recognition of 
expense for the 
Founder Long-Term 
Incentive Plan 
(“Founder LTIP”)

 > The Committee reviewed and challenged the 
assumptions applied by management in its 
valuation of the Founder LTIP, the charge to be 
recognised for the year and the dilutive impact on 
the calculation of Earnings per Share and EPRA 
NAV.

 > The Committee considered the adequacy of the 
presentation and disclosure regarding the Founder 
LTIP in the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements.

 > The Committee considered and debated the 
external auditor’s findings in this area.

 > The Committee concluded that the 
assumptions applied by management in its 
valuation of the Founder LTIP, the charge to be 
recognised for the year and the dilutive impact 
on the calculation of Earnings per Share were 
robust. The Committee also concluded that 
the presentation and disclosure regarding the 
Founder LTIP in the Annual Report and 
Financial Statements is adequate.

 > Further information is given in note 4, 14 and 32 
to the financial statements.

An ongoing focus of the Committee in its work is assisting the Board in ensuring that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are 
fair, balanced and understandable (FBU) and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and 
performance, business model and strategy. The Committee considers the Code provisions which require the Board to make this statement 
on the report, together with information on the processes to support the statement to be made. 

Robust year-end governance processes are in place to support the Committee’s considerations, which include: 
 › ensuring that all of those involved in the preparation of our Annual Report have been appropriately trained and fully briefed on the 

FBU requirements;
 › regular engagement with and feedback from senior management on proposed content and change; 
 › feedback from external advisers (corporate reporting specialists, remuneration and strategic reporting advisers, external auditor) 

to enhance the quality of our reporting; and
 › early opportunity for review and feedback on our annual report by Committee members.

The Committee, having completed its review, recommended to the Board that, when taken as a whole, the 2017 Annual Report and Accounts 
is fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and 
performance, business model and strategy.
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Introduction by the Chairman of the 

Nomination Committee

The Committee is required, in accordance with its terms of 
reference, to meet at least twice a year. During 2017 the Committee 
met three times to:

The report below describes the Nomination Committee, its 
responsibilities and its key activities during the year. approve the Nomination Committee report in the 2016 

Annual Report;
A key obj ective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure that the review of size, structure and composition of the Board and 
Board has the right balance of skills and experience to enable it to Committees;
provide leadership and accountability. It was therefore pleasing to review diversity and ethnicity at Board and senior management 
see that the feedback from the Board e�ectiveness evaluation level; 
process undertaken during the year provided con�rmation that the review its terms of reference; and
Board, and the Board Committees, continue to operate e�ectively. to consider a replacement for Rebecca Worthington as Audit 

Committee Chair and Independent Non-Executive Director.
Following Rebecca Worthington’s decision to resign from the 
Company on 10 November 2017, the main focus of the Nomination The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, 
Committee has been the appointment of a new Audit Committee reviewed in October 2017, are available on the Company’s website 
Chair and Independent Non-Executive Director. On 27 February www.hansteen.co.uk
2018 Jim Clarke was appointed to the Board as an independent 
Non-Executive Director and was appointed to the Audit, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committees with e�ect from that date. Rebecca Hansteen strives to have an equal, diverse and inclusive workforce 
Worthington steps down from the Board and its Committees with 
e�ect from 20 March 2018 to be succeeded by Jim Clarke as Audit Hampton Alexander and Parker reviews. The Company embraces 
Committee Chair. diversity, including age, background, gender and ethnic diversity, and 

provides an environment where every employee has the opportunity 
to achieve their full potential. It is one of Hansteen’s core values 

The Board has established a Nomination Committee (the that people treat each other with dignity and respect. The Board 
“Committee”), the maj ority of members of which are Independent approved Hansteen’s diversity and inclusion policy in 2013 and last 
Non-Executive Directors as required by the 2016 UK Corporate reviewed it in October 2017. The Board’s policy on diversity is to 
Governance Code. ensure that the Directors on the Board have a broad range of 

experience, skills and knowledge, with diversity of thinking and 
Throughout the year the Nomination Committee has comprised perspective. Appointments to the Board are always made on merit 
of Melvyn Egglenton (Chairman), Rebecca Worthington, Margaret against obj ective criteria, having regard to the bene�ts of diversity, 
Young, David Rough and either of the Joint Chief Executives, including gender and ethnic diversity, and the current and future 
Ian Watson and Morgan Jones, at any one time. During 2017 the needs of the business. The Board has not set any speci�c gender 
Committee met twice for scheduled meetings and once for an ad or diversity targets. When identifying candidates for appointment 
hoc meeting. Details of members’ attendance at each meeting are to the Board or senior position, any search �rm engaged will be 
shown on page 23. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to instructed to include a range of candidates, including women and 
the Committee. people from diverse backgrounds for consideration.

The policy is set out in the Employee Handbook and, as part of their 
The role of the Committee is to keep under review the composition induction, all new employees must con�rm that they have read and 
of the Board and its Committees, to plan for their refreshment, with understood the policy. The Board’s policy on diversity, including 
regard to the balance of skills, experience, knowledge and structure, gender and ethnicity, together with obj ectives that it has set for 
and to consider issues of succession. implementing the policy, and progress on achieving these obj ectives 

are set out in the Corporate and social responsibility section of the 
The Committee is responsible for a number of matters relating to Annual Report on pages 16 and 17.

its responsibilities gives careful consideration to the Group’s policies 
on diversity, including those relating to gender and ethnicity. The The performance of the Committee was evaluated as part of the 
Committee’s responsibilities include: internal Board and Committee questionnaire this year, as an 

externally facilitated evaluation exercise was undertaken during 
regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition (including 2016, and the Committee was found to be operating e�ectively. 
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and Further details of the evaluation are given on page 22 of the 
making recommendations to the Board with regard to any Corporate Governance Statement. The Chairman led on the 
changes required; evaluation of the Directors’ performance whilst the Senior 

Independent Director led the review of the Chairman and the 
executives, taking into account the challenges and opportunities Nomination Committee has con�rmed that the Chairman’s and 
facing the Company, and what skills and expertise are therefore Directors’ performance were e�ective.
needed on the Board in the future; 
keep up to date and fully informed about strategic issues and 
commercial changes a�ecting the Company and the market in 
which it operates;
identifying and nominating, for Board approval, candidates to �ll 
Board vacancies as and when they arise;
before any appointment is made by the Board, evaluate the 
balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity on the 
Board, and, in the light of this evaluation prepare a description of 
the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment; 
review the results of the Board performance evaluation process;
reviewing annually the time commitment required of Non-
Executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board regarding membership of 
the Board, Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees in 
consultation with the Chair of each Committee.

Diversity

Composition of the Committee

Role and responsibilities of the Committee

Committee evaluation

Report of the Nomination Committee
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continued

Activities during 2017

 ›
 ›

 › considering the recommendations and targets of the Hampton 

 ›

 › appointing Lomond Consulting as recruitment consultants  to 

has a rigorous and transparent procedure for appointments to the 

The process for the appointment of a Director

Stage 1 Role requirement 

Stage 2 Process 

Stage 3 Search 

Stage 4 Selection

discusses the preferred candidate and decides 

Directors’ Performance and Re-Election

Melvyn Egglenton
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› 

› 

› 
The primary role of the Committee is to determine and recommend 

› 

› 

› 

to discuss the Company’s current remuneration policy and the 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Introduction by the Chair of the 

Remuneration Committee

 Chair of the Remuneration Committee

reviewed the pay and bene�ts packages of senior employees for 
the year ending 31 December 2017;
reviewed the Remuneration Policy for Directors of the Company 

The current members of the Committee are shown on pages 20 and submitted it to the 2017 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for 
and 21. shareholder approval; 

reviewed the settlement terms of employees leaving the Group 
following the disposal of the Group’s Dutch and German 

to the Board the speci�c pay and bene�ts packages for the businesses;
Executive Directors and senior employees, to ensure that they are reviewed the calculation methodology of the performance under 
fairly but responsibly rewarded for their individual contributions to the Founder LTIP and the PSP to allow for the impact of the 
the Group’s overall performance taking into account their existing return of capital to shareholders during 2017; and
contractual entitlements. The Committee’s obj ective is to support reviewed the Committee’s terms of reference and performance 
the business strategy of the Group (details of which are set out in the during the year.
Strategic Report on pages 1 to 19), to promote the Group’s long 
term success and to align remuneration with shareholders’ returns. An internal evaluation of the performance of the Committee was 
The Committee also administers the Group’s share incentive plans. carried out during the year, following the externally facilitated Board 

evaluation exercise undertaken during the previous year, and the 
During the year, the Committee carried out the following activities: Committee was found to be operating e�ectively. 

held consultation meetings with a number of maj or shareholders 

terms of the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”);
agreed the termination of the Founder LTIP with the Joint Chief 
Executives at the end of the current three year performance Base salaries for each of the Executive Directors was increased by 
period (i.e. 31 December 2018) following shareholder 4.8% in 2017, which compared with 6.7% increases for employees 
consultation feedback; across the Group as a whole.
reviewed the achievement of the 2016 annual bonus scheme 
performance measures against target;
reviewed and approved the Directors’ Remuneration Report for The Group’s performance during 2017 resulted in an increase of 
the year ended 31 December 2016; 55.0% in the Normalised Total Pro�t (“NTP”) from £69.4 million to a 
reviewed the base salaries for the Executive Directors for the record level of £107.6 million. The disposal of the Dutch and German 
year ending 31 December 2017; businesses contributed £49.2 million to the increased NTP and, in 
approved awards under the Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) to addition, crystallised previously unrealised exchange gains of £72.2 
the Executive Directors; million and property revaluation gains of £184.1 million, enabling the 
agreed the design of, and targets for, the annual bonus scheme Group to make a signi�cant return of capital during the year.
for the year ending 31 December 2017;
reviewed the contractual terms of the Founder LTIP in the light of The sale of the Dutch and German businesses on 16 June 2017, 
shareholder feedback and proposed certain amendments; representing 61.9% of the book value of the Group’s property 
reviewed the terms of the PSP; portfolio at 1 January 2017, generated total returns well in excess of 

Performance and reward during 2017

Base salaries – Executive Directors

Performance related bonus – Executive Directors

Margaret Young

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to 
introduce the Report of the Remuneration 
Committee (the “Committee”) for the year 
ended 31 December 2017.

1. Annual statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Report of the Remuneration Committee | continued

all of the individual �nancial bonus targets. In recognition of this The Committee has concluded that existing arrangements should 
outcome and taking into consideration that the bonus targets were be adj usted to meet future incentivisation needs, and that no new 
set at levels re�ecting the property portfolio before the sale of the incentive plans are necessary. The Committee therefore proposes 
Dutch and German businesses, the bonus targets for Normalised the following changes to the Joint Chief Executives’ remuneration 
Income Pro�t (“NIP”) and cost e�ciency have been adj usted packages with e�ect from 1 January 2019:
accordingly. they will be readmitted to participation in the PSP and each will be 

eligible for annual awards subj ect to a maximum value at grant of 
In this context, the Committee is satis�ed that the level of payment 100% of base salary; and
under the annual bonus scheme for the Executive Directors is their potential annual bonus will be increased from 100% to 150% 
appropriate at 100% of the maximum. of base salary.

The following report has been prepared in accordance with the 
– In respect of PSP awards with a three year performance Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-

period ended 31 December 2017, under which 50% of each award is Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 
measured against Net Asset Value (“NAV ”) targets and 50% against 2013 and meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of 
Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) targets, 100% of the NAV part and the Financial Conduct Authority and the UK Corporate Governance 
100% of the TSR part is expected to vest. Code. The Report is presented in two parts – the Remuneration 

Policy Report and the Annual Report on Remuneration. The parts 
The Joint Chief Executives agreed to give up their participation in of the Annual Report on Remuneration that are subj ect to audit 
the PSP during 2018 in view of their participation in the Founder LTIP. are indicated in that report. The Statement by the Chair of the 

Remuneration Committee and the Remuneration Policy Report 
 – The Founder LTIP was established at IPO in are not subj ect to audit . 

November 2005 to reward the Joint Chief Executives (as founder 
directors) for the delivery of high absolute returns over an extended An Ordinary resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
period. Under this plan, if the growth in net asset value adj usted in General meeting on 12 June 2018 to approve the Annual Report on 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the European Public Real Remuneration and this Statement (which is subj ect to an advisory 
Estate Organisation (“EPRA NAV ”) per ordinary share (plus dividends vote). The proposed amendments to the Remuneration Policy that 
and other returns to shareholders) exceeds compound growth of are intended to take e�ect in 2019 will be subj ect to a binding 
more than 10% per annum over a �xed three year performance shareholder vote at the following Annual General Meeting in 2019.
period, the Joint Chief Executives each receive awards in ordinary 
shares equivalent in value to 12.5% of the excess growth. The plan is 
repeated over consecutive three year performance periods. The 
current, and �nal, performance period began on 1 January 2016 and 
ends on 31 December 2018.

Fees paid to Non-Executive Directors remain unchanged from those Chair of the Remuneration Committee
agreed and implemented on 23 August 2016. 19 March 2018

In response to the concerns that some shareholders expressed 
about the Founder LTIP at meetings held by the Chairman and the 
Chair of the Remuneration Committee with maj or shareholders in 
January 2017, the Joint Chief Executives agreed to a number of 
changes to the Founder LTIP and their overall remuneration 
packages. In addition, the Joint Chief Executives agreed to the 
termination of the Founder LTIP following completion of the current 
three year performance period ending 31 December 2018 and the 
payment of any share awards in respect of that performance period. 
These changes were agreed subj ect to shareholders’ approval of the 
proposed updated Remuneration Policy at the AGM on 13 June 2017. 

At the Annual General Meeting on 13 June 2017, 96.49% of votes 
were cast in favour of the Annual Report on Remuneration and 
96.85% of votes were cast in favour of the Remuneration Policy, 
and the various amendments to the Founder LTIP and the overall 
remuneration packages of the Joint Chief Executives were duly 
implemented.

As noted in my Annual Statement last year, the agreement of the 
Joint Chief Executives to the termination of the Founder LTIP at 
the end of the current three year performance period represented a 
very signi�cant concession on their part and re�ected the Board’s 
understanding of the strength of shareholder views on this matter.

In view of the forthcoming termination of the Founder LTIP at 
31 December 2018, the Committee has reviewed all aspects 
of executive remuneration and consulted with shareholders 
concerning the appropriate replacement arrangements to be 
put in place with e�ect from 1 January 2019.

Share schemes – Executive Directors

Fees – Non-Executive Directors

PSP awards 

Founder LTIP awards

Proposed amendments to the Remuneration Policy

Margaret Young

1. Annual statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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This part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee provides details on how the Group’s current approved Remuneration Policy was 
applied in the year ended 31 December 2017 and will be subj ect to an advisory vote by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. 

The remuneration of the Directors during 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Ian Watson

2017 57 450 70 1,457

54 268 67 1,011

2017 52 450 70 1.452

50 268 67 1,007

Richard Lowes

2017 289 50 998

295 38 188 128 47

Melvyn Egglenton�

2017 150 150

David Rough�

2017 56 56

Margaret Young�

2017 58 58

50 50

Rebecca Worthington�

2017 58 58

53 53

James Hambro�

2017

�

2017

Salaries and fees comprise base salary for Executive Directors and fees for Non-Executive Directors. 

The fees for the Non-Executives remained unchanged in 2017 from those set on 23 August 2016.

Taxable bene�ts comprise the monetary or deemed monetary value of the car allowance, private fuel and private medical insurance for the 
Executive Director and immediate family, and life assurance and income protection insurance provided by the Group. No analysis of the 
individual elements of taxable bene�ts has been given as the amounts are not considered to be signi�cant in the context of an understanding 
of total remuneration.

35

Introduction

Audited Information

Salary and fees

A . Single total fgure table

Taxable benefts

Taxable 

Salary/fees bene�ts bonus

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Performance

related Share 

schemes Pension Total

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Total 2017 1,512 148 1,190 1,189 190 4,229

440 440

2016 420 202

Morgan Jones

440 440

2016 420 202

310 39 310

2016 696

– – – –

2016 90 – – – – 90

– – – –

2016 49 – – – – 49

– – – –

2016 – – – –

– – – –

2016 – – – –

– – – – – –

2016 60 60– – – –

Humphrey Price

– – – – –

2016 21 21– – – –

 

Total 2016 1,458 142 724 532 181 3,037

Notes:

1  The fees payable to Melvyn Egglenton, as Chairman, were increased from £89,250 plus £3,000 per annum in respect of individual committee membership to £150,000 per 

annum, inclusive of fees in respect of individual committee membership, with e�ect from 23 August 2016.

2  The fees payable to David Rough, Margaret Young and Rebecca Worthington, as Non-Executive Directors, were increased from £42,000 per annum plus £3,000 per 

annum in respect of individual committee membership to £48,000 per annum, inclusive of fees in respect of individual committee membership, with e�ect from 

23 August 2016. The additional fees for the Chairs of the Audit (Rebecca Worthington) and the Remuneration Committee (Margaret Young) were increased from £7,500 to 

£10,000 with e�ect from 23 August 2016. The additional fees for the role of Senior Independent Director (David Rough) remained unchanged throughout 2016 and 2017 

at £7,500 per annum.

3  James Hambro retired from the Board on 23 August 2016.

4  Humphrey Price retired from the Board on 6 June 2016.

2. Annual Report on Remuneration
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Report of the Remuneration Committee | continued

Performance related bonus
The maximum potential bonus for the year ended 31 December 2017 for each of the Executive Directors was 100% of base salary 
(2016: 75%).

The 2017 bonus awards were measured against the following targets:

Target Performance Measure Actual achieved % Award Granted

Financial Targets  
(up to 40% of award)

 › NIP before tax from 
£63 million to £67 million, 
with adjustment for any 
capital raising excluding the 
Founder LTIP and PSP shares, 
to achieve full award. Adjusted 
from £37 million to £40 million 
to reflect the sale of the 
Dutch and German 
businesses1.

 › NIP before tax £51.9 million. 20% awarded.

 › NTP before tax from 
£65 million to £71 million, 
with adjustment for any 
capital raising excluding the 
Founder LTIP and PSP shares, 
to achieve full award.

 › NTP before tax £107.6 million. 20% awarded1

Occupancy/Cost Efficiency 
Targets (up to 20% of award)

 › The occupancy target range 
is set at a minimum/maximum 
range of 33,000 square 
metres to 66,000 square 
metres (representing 10% to 
20% of opening vacancy).

 › Improvement of 254,920 
square metres (pro-rata).

10% awarded.

 › The cost efficiency target 
range is an administrative 
expenses/rent ratio of 15% to 
16% (pro-rata). Adjusted to 
19% to 20% pro-rata to 
reflect the sale of the Dutch 
and German businesses1.

 › Administrative expenses / 
rent ratio of 17.6%.

10% awarded.

Corporate Target  
(up to 20% of award)

 › Produce a clear plan for 
strategy and finance.

 › Further and regular 
consideration of the 
options in relation to the 
Convertible Bonds.

 › Implement a move to 
electronic Board papers.

 › Carry out a review of financial 
advisers.

 › All Corporate Targets were 
achieved.

20% awarded.

Discretionary Element  
(up to 20% of award)

 › Based on overall 
performance.

 › Given the record results and 
restructuring of the business, 
the maximum awards have 
been granted.

20% awarded.

1  The disposal of the Dutch and German businesses on 16 June 2017 meant that the NIP and cost efficiency targets set for the Executive Directors were not achievable. 
The shortfalls in these areas were significantly less than the outperformance of £36.6 million in relation to the £71 million upper limit of the NTP target as a result of the 
disposal. Accordingly, as noted in the Annual Statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee on page 34, the Committee considered that the bonus targets for 
NIP and cost efficiency ratios should be adjusted to reflect the impact of the loss of rental income, the additional administration costs to achieve the disposal and the 
rationalisation costs as a result of the disposal.

In total, the Committee awarded bonuses to each Joint Chief Executive of £440,000, representing 100% of his maximum potential bonus, 
and £310,000 to the Finance Director, representing 100% of his maximum potential bonus.

Share schemes – Performance Share Plan
The value included under share schemes includes an estimate of the value of the PSP awards that will vest subject to TSR and NAV 
performance targets for the three year period that ended on 31 December 2017. Based on an assessment of performance targets as at the 
date of this report, it is estimated that the Group will achieve 100% of the TSR ranking and 100% of the NAV growth ranking (i.e. a total vesting 
of 100%). The value of the share awards expected to vest is based on £1.37, being the average share price over the last quarter of 2017. To the 
extent that the share awards vest, the options over the vested shares will become exercisable in three equal annual tranches from March 
2018 to March 2020.

In the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016, the share price used to calculate the value of the awards in 
2016 was £1.09. The share price on the day that the awards vested was £1.25. The comparative amounts disclosed in the 2016 table above 
have been restated to reflect these changes to the estimated value.

2. Annual Report on Remuneration
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Share schemes – Founder LTIP

Pensions

Payments to past Directors

B. Share scheme interests awarded during the year

Performance Share Plan

Share price

at date of
grant (p) Performance period

of options 

C. Directors’ shareholdings and share interests

Shareholding guidelines

Directors’ interests as at 31 December 2017

Shares
to Founder  

Ordinary 
shares

performance 
measures

during the 
year

– –
Morgan Jones – –

– –
– – – – –
– – – – –

– – – – – –
– – – – – –
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Report of the Remuneration Committee | continued

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones participate in the Founder LTIP. Provided that the performance conditions are met, the number of shares that 
will be issued at the end of the current three year period (31 December 2018) depends on the Group’s net asset value growth per share. As a 
result, the number of shares that will be issuable is not yet known.

There have been no changes to the beneficial and other interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of Hansteen Holdings PLC as shown 
on the previous page from 31 December 2017 to the date of this report.

Review of the impact on the Founder LTIP and PSP on the return of capital to shareholders during 2017
As indicated in the Circular of 4 October 2017, the tender offer and subsequent repurchase of shares (the “buyback”) was expected to have 
an impact on participants’ entitlements under the Founder LTIP and PSP (the “Share Plans”). The Share Plans require the Committee to 
make fair and reasonable adjustments to the awards under those plans in the event of any variation in the share capital of the Company. The 
Committee, having taken independent advice, agreed that the following adjustments to the operation of the Share Plans were appropriate.

Founder LTIP
The Founder LTIP was established at IPO in November 2005 to incentivise the Joint Chief Executives, as founders of the Company, and to 
reward the delivery of exceptional returns over an extended period. Under the Founder LTIP, if the growth in the Company’s EPRA NAV per 
ordinary share (plus dividends and other returns to shareholders) exceeds compound growth of more than 10% per annum over a fixed three 
year performance period (“Target EPRA NAV”), the Joint Chief Executives will each receive an award of ordinary shares with a value equal to 
12.5% of the EPRA NAV per share growth in excess of the Target EPRA NAV multiplied by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the end 
of the three year performance period. The current, and final, performance period under the Founder LTIP runs from 1 January 2016 to 
31 December 2018.

The rules of the Founder LTIP require the Committee to make alterations to the LTIP calculations if, for example, there are changes in the 
capital structure, and to do so in a way that achieves the intended original objective of this plan. The calculation of performance in the final 
performance period under the Founder LTIP will be materially altered by the buyback at the price of 140p per ordinary share. The Committee 
considered that an adjustment to the calculation was necessary to achieve the intended objective of the Founder LTIP. The Committee 
therefore adjusted the performance condition to measure EPRA NAV per share growth over two periods:

The first period will run from 1 January 2016 to the date immediately before the buyback proceeds were paid to the shareholders on 
14 November 2017 and will be measured by reference to the number of ordinary shares in issue at such date. The second period will run 
from the date immediately after the buyback proceeds were paid to the shareholders on 14 November 2017 to the end of the three year 
performance period and will be measured by reference to the number of ordinary shares in issue at the end of that period. 

The outperformance or underperformance in the two periods will be aggregated to arrive at the performance over the full three year 
performance period.

The EPRA NAV at 1 January 2016 was 111.2p per share and the Target EPRA NAV at 14 November 2017 was 132.9p per share. The actual 
EPRA NAV (plus dividends and other returns to shareholders) achieved at the end of the first period was 146.9p per share resulting in a 
potential Founder LTIP award of £14.4 million to each of the Joint Chief Executives.

The EPRA NAV at the start of the second period was 131.0p per share and the Target EPRA NAV at 31 December 2018 is 145.9p per share.

PSP
Under the PSP, participants are entitled to a share award dependent on Company performance. The number of ordinary shares of the 
Company vesting under the PSP will depend on the following:

 › 50% of the award will vest depending on the Company’s EPRA NAV per share growth (plus dividends and other returns to shareholders) 
relative to a comparator group.

 › 50% of the award will vest depending on the Company’s TSR per ordinary share (being the increase in share price plus dividends and other 
returns to shareholders) relative to a comparator group.

 › For both EPRA NAV and TSR, median performance will result in 25% vesting of their respective elements, with 100% vesting at upper 
quartile performance or above.

As at 2 November 2017, which was the last day of trading before the entitlement to participate in the share buyback ended, there were 
three outstanding PSP awards within their performance periods: PSP 5 (1 January 2015 – 31 December 2017), PSP 6 (1 January 2016 – 
31 December 2018) and PSP 7 (1 January 2017 – 31 December 2019).

The buyback of shares at a premium to both the EPRA NAV per share and the share price on 2 November 2017 led to a reduction in the 
Company’s EPRA NAV per share and share price immediately after the buyback. The performance calculations for the outstanding PSP 5, 
PSP 6 and PSP 7 awards have been amended so that the overall performance over the whole performance period is not distorted by this 
one-off reduction. 

In addition, as the holders of both these outstanding PSP awards and previous PSP awards which had vested but were not exercisable could 
not participate in the share buyback, the number of ordinary shares subject to their awards were also amended so they were not 
disadvantaged. As a result, 2,866 ordinary shares were added to the awards over 434,144 ordinary shares which had vested but were not 
exercisable and 16,664 ordinary shares were added to the awards over 2,525,353 ordinary shares which were unvested and subject to 
performance measures.

Non-audited information

D. External directorships

The Executive Directors are permitted, subject to the prior written consent of the Board, to accept appointments as Non-Executive 
Directors on other Boards so long as none of such interests prejudice the business interests of the Company or of any Group Company. 
None of the Executive Directors have any fee paying external directorships.

2. Annual Report on Remuneration
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12 months

12 months

12 months

9 June 2014

 

9 June 2014
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E. Service contracts

F. Performance graphs and Joint Chief Executives’ remuneration table

The date of each Executive Director’s service agreement with the Company and its unexpired term is stated below.

Morgan Jones (Joint Chief Executive) 22 November 2005

Ian Watson (Joint Chief Executive) 22 November 2005

Richard Lowes (Finance Director) 18 October 2010

The Non-Executive Directors each have speci�c terms of engagement with the Company and their dates of engagement are set out below. 
Their terms of engagement contain no notice period.

Melvyn Egglenton� 12 June 2018

David Rough 1 October 2015 12 June 2018

Resigned with e�ect from 
Rebecca Worthington� 20 March 2018

Margaret Young 1 October 2015 12 June 2018

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all the Directors, both Executive and Non-Executive, will retire and o�er themselves 
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Copies of the Directors’ service contracts or letters of engagement are available 
for inspection at the Company’s registered o�ce.

The following graphs compare the Company’s TSR to two FTSE Real Estate indices. TSR measures share price growth, with dividends 
deemed to be reinvested on the ex-dividend date. The comparator indices used have been chosen by the Committee as they are considered 
the most appropriate benchmarks against which to assess the relative performance of the Company for this purpose and for these time 
periods. The graphs are based on underlying data provided by Thomson Reuters Datastream. 

The following graph details the Company’s TSR performance since �otation. Prior to 6 October 2009, the index used for comparison is the 
FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment & Services Index (which up until that point the Company would have been a constituent member of ). 
From 6 October 2009, the index used for comparison is the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment Trusts Index, to re�ect the Company’s 
conversion into a REIT with e�ect from that date.

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Date of service agreement Unexpired term

Date on which next subj ect to 

re-appointment or re-election

 

Date of engagement

1 Melvyn Egglenton entered into a new letter of engagement with e�ect from 23 August 2016 following his appointment as Chairman of the Company.

2 As announced on 22 February 2018, Rebecca Worthington resigned from the Board with e�ect from 20 March 2018.

Performance since �otation

250
Hansteen Index

200

150

100

50

0

29/11/05 31/12/06 31/12/07 31/12/08 31/12/09 31/12/10 31/12/11 31/12/12 31/12/13 31/12/14 31/12/15 31/12/16 31/12/17
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Morgan Jones

2016

Morgan Jones

Morgan Jones

2014

Morgan Jones

2013

Morgan Jones

2012 –

Morgan Jones –

2011 –

Morgan Jones –

2010 604 –

Morgan Jones 600 –

2009 499 –

Morgan Jones –

64

All other employees*

40

 Nine-year performance

Joint Chief Executives’ remuneration table

The following nine-year performance graph compares solely g a ainst the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment Trusts Index.

The following table shows the single �gure remuneration and percentage of bonus and incentive vesting for the Joint Chief Executives for the 
last nine years.

2017 Ian Watson 1,457 100.0 100.0
1,452 100.0 100.0

Ian Watson 1,011 85.0 50.0
1,007 85.0 50.0

2015 Ian Watson 25,866 61.7 37.5
25,863 61.7 37.5

Ian Watson 1,109 97.5 50.0
1,106 97.5 50.0

Ian Watson 1,052 97.5 56.25
1,050 97.5 56.25

Ian Watson 793 82.9
789 82.9

Ian Watson 671 95.0
667 95.0

Ian Watson 97.7
87.7

Ian Watson 89.8
497 89.8

As described on page 37, the Joint Chief Executives participate in the Founder LTIP. The potential share entitlement is not subj ect to a 
maximum opportunity, but based on performance against set criteria. The long-term incentive vesting rates against maximum opportunity 
therefore relate only to the PSP.

The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration of the Joint Chief Executives for the last �nancial year compared with the 
remuneration of all employees.

Joint Chief Executives 4.8 4.8
6.7 6.3 17

Long-term incentive 

Annual bonus pay out against vesting rates against 

Single �gure maximum opportunity maximum opportunity

Year Joint Chief Executive £000 % %

Salary/fees Taxable bene�ts Related bonus

% change 2016 to 2017 % % %

 

 

Performance

G. Percentage change in remuneration

* Excluding j oiners and leavers during the year.
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H. Relative importance of spend on pay

I. The Committee and its advisers

The chart below shows the relative importance of overall expenditure on pay by the Group compared to the Group’s key �nancial measures 
and dividends paid to shareholders in the year.

NIP has been chosen as a metric for this comparison as the Directors believe that it represents underly gin  earnings of the Group and is a key 
performance indicator. The percentage movement re�ects the year-on-year change. The principal reason for the increase in the overall 
expenditure on pay in 2017 is due to the £20.4 million IFRS 2 charge in the year (2016: £1.5 million) for the Founder LTIP awards, PSP awards 
and associated social security costs. This re�ects the substantial increase in the EPRA NAV in the year principally as a result of the sale of the 
German and Dutch businesses and the increase in investment property valuations in the year.

During the year, the Committee comprised Margaret Young (Chair), Melvyn Egglenton, Rebecca Worthington and David Rough, all being 
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Jim Clarke, having been appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 27 February 2018, 
was also appointed a member of the Committee with e�ect from the same date. Rebecca Worthington resigned from the Board and the 
Committee with e�ect from 20 March 2018. Melvyn Egglenton, the Chairman of the Board, was a member but not the Chair of the 
Committee. Accordingly, the membership of the Committee complies with provision D2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code 2016.

The Committee meets regularly, and no less than twice a year. In 2017, the Committee met three times for scheduled meetings. Details of 
attendance at meetings can be found in the Corporate Governance Report on page 23.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, updated following a review undertaken in October 2017, are available on the 
Company’s website at www.hansteen.co.uk.

The performance of the Committee was assessed during the year as part of the internal evaluation of the Board and its committees and was 
found to be operating e�ectively. Further details of the evaluation are given on page 22 of the Corporate Governance Statement.

The Committee seeks external advice to assist it where appropriate. PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the Committee in 
September 2015 following a review of the Company’s remuneration advisers, through a tender process. The Committee consulted 
PricewaterhouseCoopers during 2017 and approved fees to them of £240,360, excluding VAT, for independent remuneration advice, 
charged on a time and expenses basis. Having considered that PricewaterhouseCoopers provided tax advisory and compliance services to 
the Company during the year, the Committee is satis�ed that the advice provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers is both independent and 
obj ective. PricewaterhouseCoopers adhere to the Remuneration Consultants’ Group Code of Conduct. 

The Committee seeks internal support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary where necessary. They may all attend 
Committee meetings by invitation, but are not present for any discussions that relate directly to their own remuneration.

We summarise below the key elements of the 2018 remuneration package for the Executive Directors in line with the current approved 
Remuneration Policy. Those key elements are:

Fixed pay/bene�ts – base annual salary and bene�ts, pension contributions and insurance cover.
Variable annual pay – cash payments under the annual performance related bonus scheme.
Variable long-term pay – share based long-term incentives under the PSP and the Founder LTIP with performance criteria.

J. Implementation of policy for 2018

1,469%

38% 234%

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

39.8
22.7

8.2

624.4

31.3 27.4

Normalised Income Profit Dividends and share buybacks Overall expenditure on pay

from continuing operations
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Fixed pay/benefits
The Committee has approved no increase to base annual salary for Morgan Jones and Ian Watson and an increase to base annual salary of 
4% for Richard Lowes with effect from 1 January 2018 as set out below. No increase has been approved for the Non-Executive Directors.

Executive Directors

2017
Salary

£000

2018
Salary

£000

Morgan Jones 440 440
Ian Watson 440 440
Richard Lowes 310 322

No changes will be made to pension and benefit provision.

Variable annual pay
The Board has set new targets for the Executive Directors for the annual bonus in line with the Group’s strategic, financial and operational 
objectives. In line with the current Remuneration Policy, the maximum potential bonus is set at 100% of base salary for each of the Executive 
Directors. The changes to the annual bonus targets are within the scope of the current approved Remuneration Policy. The bonus criteria for 
2018 include five elements:

Target Performance Measure % of Potential Award

Financial Targets  
(up to 40% of award)

 › NTP before tax from £29 million to £34 million, with adjustment 
for any material change in capital excluding the Founder LTIP and 
PSP shares, to achieve full award.

Up to 40% of award  
on a sliding scale.

ERV (up to 10% of award)  › The ERV target is to achieve an increase in lease renewals, rent 
reviews and lettings in the year in excess of the ERV for those 
properties at 31 December 2017 by a range of 0%–5%.

Up to 10% of award  
on a sliding scale.

Cost Efficiency Target  
(up to 10% of award)

 › The cost efficiency target is to reduce administration costs in 
respect of the continuing business to be in the range £13.3 million 
to £12.8 million.

Up to 10% of award  
on a sliding scale.

Corporate Target  
(up to 20% of award)

 › To prepare a detailed plan of action to close down the surplus 
corporate entities following the disposal of the Dutch and 
German businesses in 2017 and to make meaningful progress 
during 2018 to implement the plan.

Up to 20% of award.

Discretionary Element  
(up to 20% of award) 

 › Following recent changes to the composition of the Group and its 
capital structure, to fully investigate strategic options and agree a 
clear path to implementation.

Up to 20% of award.

Performance Share Plan
Annual awards are subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary but, in line with the current approved Remuneration Policy, no 
awards will be made to either of the Joint Chief Executives for 2018 in view of their participation in the Founder LTIP. The Finance Director will 
be awarded nil-cost share options under the PSP with a value at grant of 100% of his base salary. The award will vest based on two separate 
performance conditions: 50% will vest by reference to the Group’s TSR ranking and 50% by reference to the Group’s EPRA Net Asset Value 
ranking, in each case relative to a comparator group over a three year performance period. To the extent that an award vests, the options 
over the vested shares will become exercisable in three equal annual tranches following the end of the performance period.

The comparator group is determined by the Committee and comprises a peer group of companies in the property sector. When granting 
awards, the Committee reserves the right to vary the constituents of the comparator group or take such other actions as it considers 
reasonable in the event that any member of the comparator group ceases to exist, or its shares cease to be listed in the Official List of the 
London Stock Exchange or other recognised stock exchange, or it is so changed as to make it, in the opinion of the Committee, unsuitable as 
a member of the comparator group. The percentage of the award that vests is subject to the following schedule:

TSR/NAV Growth Ranking % of Potential Award

Below Median Nil

Median 25%

Between Median and Upper Quartile On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100% in proportion to the  
Company’s ranking between Median and Upper Quartile

Upper Quartile 100%
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Founder LTIP
Under the Founder LTIP, the current, and final, three year performance measurement period commenced on 1 January 2016 and will end on 
31 December 2018. Each of the Joint Chief Executives will be entitled to an award of ordinary shares with a value equivalent to 12.5% of the 
Company’s EPRA NAV growth per share (including dividends and other returns to shareholders) in excess of a 10% per annum compound 
growth in the EPRA NAV per share over the performance measurement period. An adjustment to the calculation of the performance 
condition to allow for the return of capital to shareholders during the period will be made as set out on page 38. The awards will be subject to 
the following conditions:

 › Award shares may be satisfied by the issue of new shares and/or the use of market purchase shares.
 › Shares awarded will be subject to a two year holding period whilst a Director remains employed as Joint Chief Executive, subject to his 

being allowed to sell sufficient shares to cover any income tax and national insurance obligations arising as a result of the award. This 
requirement will not apply in the event of a change of control of the Company.

 › Awards will be subject to malus and clawback, with potential awards subject to cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to 
clawback over a period of two years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial results or fraud or 
gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

K. Voting at the Annual General Meeting

At the Annual General Meeting held on 13 June 2017, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Annual Report on 
Remuneration were as set out below. The current Remuneration Policy was most recently put to shareholders and approved at the Annual 
General Meeting on 13 June 2017, and votes cast by proxy and by a poll at the meeting were as set out below.

Resolution text Votes for % For
Votes  

against % against
Total  

votes cast
Votes withheld  

(abstentions)

13 June 2017
Approval of Annual Report on Remuneration 541,434,772 96.49% 19,698,720 3.51% 561,133,492 6,492,338
13 June 2017
Approval of Remuneration policy 548,913,834 96.85% 17,856,786 3.15% 567,770,620 855,210
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This part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee sets out the principal sections of the Remuneration Policy for Directors of the 
Company which was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 13 June 2017. Details of the full Remuneration Policy can 
be found in the 2016 Annual Report available on the Company’s website at www.hansteen.co.uk/investors.

Summary policy table

Executive Directors

Fixed Pay

Element % of Potential Award

Purpose and link to strategy • To attract, retain and motivate high-calibre individuals.
• To provide competitive non-variable remuneration relative to the external market.
• To recognise and reward performance, skills and experience.

Operation Normally reviewed in January each year having regard to market practice, to Group and 
individual performance, to salary increases across the Group and to the individual’s 
experience, skills, qualifications and scope of responsibility.

Maximum opportunity There is no prescribed maximum. Salary increases will generally be limited to the average 
increase in salary for employees across the Group as a whole, although the Committee has 
discretion to award increases above this level to take account of individual circumstances 
such as increase in scope and responsibility, individual development and performance in 
role, and alignment to market level.

Performance measures None, but individual and Group performance will be considered when deciding salary levels.

Element Pension

Purpose and link to strategy To help recruit and retain high-calibre individuals reflecting their skills and experience.

Operation Individuals will be responsible for their own pension arrangements and funds will be 
provided by the Company to enable them to facilitate those arrangements.

Maximum opportunity Employer contribution of maximum of 16% of base salary.

Performance measures None.

Element Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package appropriate to the role and 
location of individuals.

Operation Benefits will comprise the provision of a company car allowance, private fuel, private 
medical insurance for the individual and immediate family, life assurance and income 
protection insurance. Individuals will also be provided with the technology required to 
enable them to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.

The benefits package may be adjusted by the Committee from time to time to reflect an 
individual’s particular circumstances and to align to market level. 

In addition to the above, other benefits such as relocation allowances may be offered if 
considered appropriate and reasonable by the Committee.

Maximum opportunity There is no prescribed maximum as the costs of provision may fluctuate depending on 
individual circumstances and changes in provider costs, but the Committee must be 
satisfied that the cost is reasonable in the particular individual’s circumstances.

Performance measures None.

Variable Pay

Element Annual performance related bonus scheme

Purpose and link to strategy To reward excellent financial performance and achievement of strategic, financial and 
operational objectives linked to investor expectations at the beginning of the year.

Operation Measures and targets will be reviewed and set annually by the Committee at the beginning 
of the financial year and the levels of award will be determined by the Committee after the 
year-end based on the performance against targets. Bonus awards will be paid in cash, 
will be non-pensionable and will be subject to malus and clawback, with potential awards 
subject to cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to clawback over a period 
of two years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s 
financial results or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity Up to 100% of base salary.

Performance measures A combination of financial and non-financial targets, such as occupancy and cost efficiency 
targets, corporate targets and a discretionary element to reward overall performance. The 
exact measures, weightings and targets will be determined by the Committee each year 
taking into account the Group’s key strategic priorities, financial and operational objectives, 
and the budget for the year.
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Executive Directors

Element Performance share plan (“PSP”)

Purpose and link to strategy To incentivise and reward outstanding performance and ensure alignment with 
shareholders’ interests.

Operation Awards of conditional shares or share options on an annual basis. Awards will normally 
vest no earlier than three years from grant, subject to continued employment and 
performance conditions. Awards will be subject to malus and clawback, with awards subject 
to cancellation or reduction and, after awards have vested, to clawback over a period of two 
years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial 
results or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity Annual awards subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary, but the Joint 
Chief Executives will not be eligible for awards in view of their participation in the Founder 
Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Performance measures Targets are set by the Committee in accordance with the strategic, financial and 
operational objectives of the Group at the time the awards are granted and measured over 
a three year performance period commencing with the beginning of the financial year in 
which the awards are granted.

Element Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”)

Purpose and link to strategy Legacy contractual arrangements forming part of the Joint Chief Executives’ service 
agreements established at IPO (November 2005) to incentivise them and to reward the 
delivery of exceptional returns to shareholders that will be discontinued at the end of the 
current three year performance period ending 31 December 2018. The Founder LTIP is not 
available to any other Directors.

Operation Contractual rights to share awards operating over a three year performance period where 
the Company’s EPRA NAV growth per share (including dividends and other returns to 
shareholders) exceeds 33.1% over that period (the Target EPRA NAV). The current, and 
final, performance period is 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 and awards in relation to 
that period will be subject to the following conditions:
 › Award shares may be satisfied by the issue of new shares and/or the use of market 

purchase shares. 
 › Shares awarded will be subject to a two year holding period whilst a Director remains 

employed as Joint Chief Executive, subject to their being allowed to sell sufficient shares 
to cover any income tax and national insurance obligations arising as a result of the 
award. This requirement will not apply in the event of a change of control of the 
Company.

 › Awards will be subject to malus and clawback, with potential awards subject to 
cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to clawback over a period of two 
years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial 
results or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity For each Joint Chief Executive, an award of ordinary shares, subject to the above 
conditions, with a value equal to 12.5% of the EPRA NAV per share growth in excess of the 
Target EPRA NAV multiplied by the number of shares in issue at the end of the relevant 
three year performance period.

Performance measures In the relevant three year performance period, the EPRA NAV per share will be required 
to have compound growth in excess of 10% per annum. The EPRA NAV per share growth 
and the Target EPRA NAV will be measured after including dividends and other returns 
to shareholders. The performance measure has been chosen to reward the Joint Chief 
Executives if the Group’s return to shareholders is significant in absolute terms.

Element Shareholding requirement

Purpose and link to strategy To demonstrate the commitment of individuals to the Company and to ensure alignment 
of their personal interests with those of the Company and the shareholders.

Operation Within three years of their appointment, individuals will be required to build and then 
maintain a shareholding in the Company equal in value to their pre-tax base salary. In the 
case of each of the Joint Chief Executives, this requirement will be 200% of their pre-tax 
base salary in view of their participation in the Founder LTIP.

Element Fees

Purpose and link to strategy To attract and retain high-calibre individuals.
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Non-Executive Directors

Element Fees

Purpose and link to strategy To attract and retain high-calibre individuals.

Operation Fees will be reviewed periodically. Non-Executive Directors will not participate in the annual 
bonus or long-term incentive schemes and will receive no other benefits.
Fees will be paid in cash.

Maximum opportunity There will be no individual maximum fee or maximum fee increase. Fees will be set at a level 
to reflect time commitment and responsibilities of the relevant role and by reference to 
surveys of fees paid to Non-Executive Directors of companies with comparable market 
capitalisation. 

The Chairman will be paid an all-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities determined by the 
Board on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

Non-Executive Directors will be paid a basic fee plus additional fees for chairing Board 
Committees or for acting as Senior Independent Director. These will be determined by the 
Board on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive Directors will participate in the determination 
of their own pay. Overall fees will be required to remain within the limit in the Articles of 
Association of £750,000 in aggregate.

Performance measures None.

The proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy that are intended to take effect from 1 January 2019, subject to approval by the 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in 2019, are as follows:

 › the Joint Chief Executives will be re-admitted to participation in the PSP and each will be eligible for annual awards subject to a maximum 
value at grant of 100% of base salary; and

 › the potential annual bonus that each of the Joint Chief Executives may earn under the annual performance related bonus scheme will be 
increased from 100% to 150% of base salary.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Margaret Young
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Report of the Remuneration Committee | continued

3. Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report



Financial statem
ents

G
overnance

Strategic repo
rt

47

The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 
31 December 2017. This report on pages 47 to 51 together with the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 19 and the Corporate Governance 
Statement and Framework on pages 22 to 25 form the Management report as required by the Financial Conduct Authority’s (“FCA”) 
Disclosure and Transparency Rule 4.1.5R. Other information that is relevant to the Directors’ Report, and which is incorporated by reference 
into this report, can be located as follows:

Information Section in Annual Report Page numbers

Financial instruments and risk management Note to the financial statements 91 to 94
Future developments Joint Chief Executives’ Statement 12 to 15
Directors in office during the year Board of Directors 20 and 21
Directors’ interest in shares Annual Report on Remuneration 37
Employee involvement Corporate and social responsibility 16 and 17

The Company has chosen, in accordance with Section 414 C (1) of the Companies Act 2006 and as noted in this Directors’ Report, to include 
certain matters in its Strategic Report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report. The Strategic Report can be 
found on pages 1 to 19.

Principal activities
The Company is the parent company of a group whose principal activities comprise property investment, development, management and 
associated business, focusing on industrial property investments, principally in the UK, although it will also seek to profit from opportunistic 
acquisitions in other property sectors both in the UK and abroad.

The subsidiary undertakings of the Group in the year are listed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Business review
The Group’s focus is principally on UK industrial investments, which in the opinion of the Board have high income yields compared to 
relatively low financing costs. To date these investments have been in the UK, Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. A smaller 
part of the Group’s activity is dedicated to opportunistic property investment opportunities which to date have included land and residential 
investments. More detailed information about the Group’s business, activities and financial performance is incorporated into this report by 
reference and can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 19.

There are no further matters to report under Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006.

Results
The results for the year ended 31 December 2017 are shown in the income statement on page 59 of the financial statements. The pre-tax 
profit from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 was £70.3 million (2016: £48.1 million) and the net assets are shown 
in the balance sheet on page 61 was £557.5 million (2016: £924.2 million). The EPRA NAV per share was 130.6p (2016: 128.9p). In the Directors’ 
view the Normalised Income Profit, Normalised Total Profit and EPRA NAV are the most appropriate performance measures for the Group. 
These terms are defined in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 19.

Key performance indicators
The Directors consider the following to be key performance indicators (“KPIs”), as disclosed in the Strategic Report:

Key performance indicator 2017 2016

Normalised Income Profit £51.9m £64.5m
Normalised Total Profit £107.6m £69.4m
IFRS Net asset value (“NAV”) per share 135.1p 124.0p
EPRA NAV (per share) 130.6p 128.9p
Annualised rental income £57.5m £131.4m
Net debt to value 27.6% 40.9%
Dividend (per share) 6.1p 5.9p
Yield 7.5% 7.6%
Occupancy (area) 92.3% 91.2%

Dividend
For the year ended 31 December 2017, an interim dividend of 2.3p per share was paid on 27 October 2017 (2016: 2.2p), of which 2.1p per share 
(2016: 1.9p) was attributable to a REIT Property Income Distribution (“PID”) in respect of the Group’s tax-exempt property rental business. 
The second dividend of 3.8p per share will be payable on 17 May 2018 (2017: 3.7p) to shareholders on the register on 6 April 2018 of which 3.7p 
per share (2016: 2.1p) will be attributable to a PID.

The total dividend payable in relation to the 2017 results will be £34.6 million (2016: £43.9 million). Details of the Company’s dividend policy are 
explained on page 6 of the Strategic Report.

Post balance sheet events
A second dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of 3.8p per share will be payable on 17 May 2018 to shareholders on the 
register on 6 April 2018. Based on the number of shares in issue at 31 December 2017 this will result in a distribution of £15.7 million.

Contracts were exchanged for the sale of the IMPT portfolio in the UK for £116 million with completion due on 26 March 2018 as referred 
to above, 

A Compulsory Purchase Order (“CPO”) notice was irrevocably served to acquire the Group’s property at Saltley. Negotiations are ongoing to 
agree the disposal price.

The Company has proposed a return of capital of 35p per share (£144.5 million) to shareholders subject to approval by the courts and the 
shareholders.

Directors’ Report
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Financial instruments and risk management
The Board agrees and reviews policies and financial instruments for risk management. Further information on financial instruments is 
contained in note 35 to the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed are detailed in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 19.

Going concern and future developments
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position as well as the 
financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and the borrowing facilities are described in the Strategic Report on pages 
1 to 19. In addition, note 35 to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; 
its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and 
liquidity risk.

The Group’s debt maturity profile for its long-term funding is detailed in the Strategic Report on page 15. None of the Group’s significant 
current bank loan facilities are due to expire within the next 12 months. As part of its risk management process the Group has considered its 
forecast cash flows and forecast covenant compliance taking into account:

 › the impact on the various loan covenants of reasonable reductions in the property valuations, decline in rental income and increase in 
interest rates; 

 › the impact of potential events arising from adverse movements in general economic conditions on the Group’s operating cash flow 
generation, including tenancy failures and increased vacancies; and

 › the proposed capital distribution of 35p per share (£144.5 million) to shareholders in the first half of 2018.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient headroom and available finance to manage its business risks successfully. Based on 
this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. Thus, they continue to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Long-term viability statement
In accordance with provision C2.2 of the 2016 Code, and considering the Group’s current position and the principal risks detailed on pages 18 
and 19, the Directors have assessed the Group’s prospects and viability. 

The Group’s future prospects are assessed primarily through its annual strategy review. This review is led by the Joint Chief Executives 
drawing on expertise from across the management team. It includes an assessment of the macro-economic environment, forecasts of key 
property market metrics (including yields and value growth), and annual valuation progressions for the portfolio.

The Directors’ assessment for the purposes of viability is over a three-year period to December 2020 in line with the typical lease lengths of 
its tenants. The review is based on a detailed three-year forecast, taking into account financial and operating positions, forecast cash flows, 
debt maturity and renewal prospects, forecast covenant compliance and REIT compliance along with current and available mitigating actions.

The financial model has been stress tested for severe but plausible scenarios, such as increases in interest rates, reduction in property 
valuations and a 10% reduction in earnings before interest and tax, both individually and in aggregate, specifically to understand the impact of 
reductions in property valuations, declines in rental income and therefore operating profit and increases in interest rates along with current 
and available mitigating actions. The stress tests enable the Group to model the impact of a variety of external and internal events that could 
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity and allow the Board to assess the effectiveness of any management 
actions that may be required to mitigate the impacts of the events.

The nature of the Group’s business as the owner and asset manager of a diverse high-yielding portfolio of industrial property principally 
located throughout the UK and let to a wide variety of tenants reduces the impact of adverse changes in the general economic environment 
or market conditions in any one sector on the overall Group.

The Group’s property portfolio comprises predominantly light industrial units. These are the most simple, flexible and economical of all 
commercial property types and have shown themselves to be extraordinarily adaptable to changing working practices and new occupational 
trends. Furthermore, in the main the properties are valued at substantially below replacement cost and let at rents below the levels necessary 
to justify new builds. Taken together these factors operate to limit the supply of new stock and help to maintain the demand for the existing 
stock.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its 
liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period of their detailed assessment.

Share capital
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the year, are shown in 
note 29 to the financial statements. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries 
the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions of 
the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s 
shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights. As a REIT Hansteen Holdings PLC must comply with 
REIT regulations in order to preserve its REIT status and accordingly it is not permitted to pay distributions to shareholders who hold 
“excessive rights”. Excessive rights are defined as an interest of over 10% in our share capital.
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The Hansteen Employee Benefit Trust is an Employee Benefit Trust (the “Trust”) which holds property (the “Trust Fund”) including inter-alia 
money and ordinary shares in the Company in trust in favour or for the benefit of employees of the Group. The Trustee of the Trust has the 
power to exercise the rights and powers incidental to, and to act in relation to, the Trust Fund in such manner as the Trustee in its absolute 
discretion thinks fit. The Trustee has waived its rights to dividends on ordinary shares held by the Trust. Details of employee share schemes 
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

Own shares
At the Company’s AGM held on 13 June 2017 the shareholders authorised the Company to issue up to 248,117,560 ordinary shares on a 
non-pre-emption basis and to purchase up to 74,435,268 of its own shares, such authority to expire on the date 15 months after the AGM or, 
if earlier, the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held in 2018. Under these authorities the Company has issued 80,165,610 new 
shares, details of which are given below, and it has not acquired any shares under the authority to purchase shares. A separate authority was 
approved by the shareholders at a General Meeting of the Company held on 25 October 2017 to purchase up to 412,946,759 ordinary shares 
in respect of the Tender Offer, details of which are also set out below. The authority approved at the General Meeting was subject to expiry at 
the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2018 or, if earlier, 4 October 2018.

The Company has in previous years purchased its own shares into Treasury to meet the Company’s future obligations to participants under 
the Company’s Performance Share Plan 2012 (“PSP”) and on 8 March 2016 the Company established the Hansteen Employee Benefit Trust 
(the “HEBT”) to be used, in addition to Treasury shares, to satisfy awards made to employees under its employee share option schemes 
including the PSP and the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”).

Share activities
 › On 30 June 2017, the Company gifted the HEBT a further £748,740. This sum was immediately used to purchase 600,000 10p ordinary 

shares in the Company which will be used together with the then existing 600,000 10p ordinary shares held by the HEBT to satisfy awards 
under the Company’s share plans, including the PSP and the LTIP.

 › On 10 July 2017, the Company issued 80,165,610 10p ordinary shares pursuant to the conversion of the Hansteen (Jersey) Securities 
Limited 4% Guaranteed Convertible Bonds as announced on 29 June 2017. A Valuation Report was not required pursuant to section 594 
of the Companies Act 2006.

 › On 31 August 2017, the Company transferred from treasury to participants in the PSP, 196,290 10p ordinary shares in the Company for nil 
consideration in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

 › On 9 October 2017, the Company transferred from treasury to participants in the PSP, 340,205 10p ordinary shares in the Company for nil 
consideration in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

 › On 16 October 2017, the Company transferred from treasury and HEBT to participants in the PSP, 838,070 and 929,110 10p ordinary 
shares respectively in the Company for nil consideration in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

 › Subsequently at the Company’s General Meeting held on 25 October 2017 the shareholders approved the Tender Offer for the Company 
to purchase and subsequently cancel up to 412,946,759 of its own shares at a cost of 140p per share and on the 7 November 2017 the 
Company purchased 412,946,522 10p ordinary shares at a total cost of £578,125,130.80 (being 50% of the issued share capital) and on the 
8 November 2017, it reduced its issued share capital from 825,893,517 to 412,946,955 10p ordinary shares. The Directors have no 
intention of purchasing and cancelling the remaining 237 shares as permitted under this authority. 

 › As at 31 December 2017 the Company’s issued share capital was 412,946,995 ordinary share of 10p each of which the HEBT held 103,471 
ordinary shares of 10p each and there were nil shares held in Treasury. The HEBT holding represents 0.251% of the issued ordinary shares.

Appointment and replacement of Directors
The Directors who served throughout the year are detailed on pages 20 and 21. Rebecca Worthington resigned from the Company effective 
from 20 March 2018 and was succeeded by Jim Clarke who was appointed to the Board on 27 February 2018. The appointment and 
replacement of Directors is governed by the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”), the Companies Act 2006 and related 
legislation. The Articles provide that the Directors may be appointed by ordinary resolution of the shareholders or by the Board. The 
Company must have not less than two. Where Directors are appointed by the Board they may only hold office until the next AGM of the 
Company where they will be eligible for election. Each Director must then retire from office at the third AGM after the AGM at which he was 
last elected. However, the Board has decided to comply with best practice corporate governance on a voluntary basis, and all Directors will 
seek re-election at each AGM. The Company may remove a Director by ordinary resolution. 

In accordance with the Code, all the current serving Directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2018 Annual 
General Meeting.

The Company may alter its Articles by special resolution passed at a general meeting of the Company. The Company’s Articles are available 
on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk.

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Articles, any legislation and any directions given by special resolution, the 
business of the Company will be managed by the Directors, who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to the 
management of the business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money 
and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capital, to issue debentures and other securities, give 
security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company to any third party and to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares.

Significant agreements
The Company is not a party to any significant agreements that would take effect, alter or terminate on a change of control of the Company.

Political donations
No political donations were made by the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

Research and development
The Group did not undertake any research and development activities during the year.

Overseas branches
The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hansteen Limited, had branches in Germany and the Netherlands during the year, all of which were 
closed by 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ indemnities
The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the year and 
remain in force at the date of this report.

Compensation for loss of office
The Company does not have arrangements with any Director that would provide compensation for loss of office or employment resulting 
from a takeover, except that provisions of the Company’s share plans may cause options and awards granted under such plans to vest on a 
takeover. Further information is provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 46.

Requirements of Listing Rule 9.8.4 
Certain information is required to be included in the Annual Financial Report by Listing Rule 9.8.4. The following table provides references to 
where this information can be found in this Annual Report. If a requirement is not shown, it is not applicable to the Company.

Section Listing Rule Requirement Disclosure

LR 9.8.4 R (1) A statement of the amount of interest capitalised by the Company 
during the period under review with an indication of the amount and 
treatment of any related tax relief

The Company has not capitalised any interest 
in the period under review

LR 9.8.4 R (4) Details of any long-term incentive schemes Directors’ Remuneration report pages 44 to 45

LR 9.8.4 R (12) (13) Details of waiver of dividends by a shareholder Directors’ Report page 49

Substantial interests
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had been notified, in accordance with the UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and 
Transparency Rules, that the following shareholders held, or were beneficially interested in, 3% or more of the voting rights in the Company’s 
issued share capital:

Number of ordinary  
shares held %

Standard Life Aberdeen 51,047,955 12.36
BlackRock Inc. 30,658,475 7.42
Aberforth Partners 15,744,769 3.81
The Vanguard Group Inc. 13,901,441 3.37
Legal & General Group 13,244,232 3.21

124,596,872 30.17

As at 19 March 2018, the Company had been notified, in accordance with the UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency 
Rules, that the following shareholders held, or were beneficially interested in, 3% or more of the voting rights in the Company’s issued 
share capital:

Number of ordinary  
shares held %

Standard Life Aberdeen 64,738,332 15.68
BlackRock Inc. 30,658,475 7.42
Aberforth Partners 15,744,769 3.81
The Vanguard Group Inc. 13,901,441 3.37
Legal & General Group 13,244,232 3.21

140,238,333 33.97

Payment policy
The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities within the terms established with suppliers. At 31 December 2017, there are 15 days’ 
purchases outstanding (2016: 15 days) in respect of the Company’s trade creditors.

Corporate and social responsibility
Greenhouse gas emissions
It is Hansteen’s policy to comply with environmental legislation and relevant codes of practice. In line with recent guidance issued by DEFRA 
(the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs), we set out below the required information for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Quantification and reporting methodology
We have followed the 2013 UK Government environmental reporting guidance. DEFRA greenhouse gas conversion factors have been used 
for the purposes of this report.

We have used the operational control approach, which therefore only includes information regarding those emissions for which we have 
direct control and influence on. We have therefore included carbon emissions derived from gas, electricity, heating oil and district heating 
consumptions attributable to Hansteen. Energy consumption is assessed as attributable to Hansteen if it is used for the benefit of vacant 
property space or for common parts or communal facilities at properties which are held directly or managed by Hansteen.

Operational scopes
We have measured our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions as detailed below.

Base year
We have used 2013 as our base year as it is the first year for which we have reliable data and it was typical in respect of our operations.
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Intensity measurement
We have chosen the metric gross global Scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e per vacant m2, per m2 and per £ million revenue as these 
are common metrics for our industry sector.

2017
2017

(tonnes CO2e)

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/ 

vacant m2

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/ 

vacant m2

Intensity 
measurement

tonnes 
CO2e/£m 

revenue

Specific 
exclusions, 

% this 
represents 
for relevant 

scope

Scope 1 – direct emissions from owned/controlled operations – – – – None
Scope 2 – indirect emissions from the use of purchased electricity 

and heating under our operational control:
 Belgium 132 0.0143 0.0044 0.0022 None
 France – – – – None
 UK 423 0.0045 0.0003 0.0072 None

Total gross emissions 555
Carbon offsets –
Green tariff –

Total annual net emissions 555

Note: The German and Dutch portfolios were disposed on 16 June 2017. The relevant data for carbon emissions is not available for the period from 1 January 2017 to the 
date of disposal.

2016
2017

(tonnes CO2e)

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/ 

vacant m2

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/ 

vacant m2

Intensity 
measurement

tonnes 
CO2e/£m 

revenue

Specific 
exclusions, 

% this 
represents 
for relevant 

scope

Scope 1 – direct emissions from owned/controlled operations – – – – None
Scope 2 – indirect emissions from the use of purchased electricity 

and heating under our operational control:
 Belgium 156 0.0501 0.0052 0.0012 None
 France – – – – None
 Germany 1,687 0.0122 0.0011 0.0130 None
 Netherlands 273 0.0035 0.0004 0.0021 None
 UK 454 0.0037 0.0003 0.0035 None

Total gross emissions 2,570
Carbon offsets –
Green tariff –

Total annual net emissions 2,570

Targets
A target had been set to reduce our gross global Scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e/m2 on a like-for-like basis by 10% from 2015 to 
2020 (2% per annum). Changes in the portfolio makeup caused a more significant reduction during 2015, however we are continuing to target 
a 2% reduction year-on-year going forward (subject to acquisitions and disposals). We achieved a like-for-like reduction of 9% during 2017 
(2016: 2%).

Employees
The average number of employees employed by the Company in each week during the year ended 31 December 2017 did not exceed 250.

Auditor
So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the 
Company’s auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make 
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Marco Murray
For and on behalf of Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary of Hansteen Holdings PLC
19 March 2018
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the �nancial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare �nancial statements for each �nancial year. Under that law the Directors are required to 
prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European 
Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent company �nancial statements under IFRSs as adopted 
by the EU. Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satis�ed that they give a true and fair view of the 
state of a�airs of the Company and of the pro�t or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these �nancial statements, International 
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

properly select and apply accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information; 
provide additional disclosures when compliance with the speci�c requirements in IFRSs are insu�cient to enable users to understand the 
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s �nancial position and �nancial performance; and
make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are su�cient to show and explain the Company’s transactions 
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the �nancial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the �nancial 
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and �nancial information included on the Company’s 
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of �nancial statements may di�er from legislation 
in other j urisdictions.

We con�rm that to the best of our knowledge:

the �nancial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, �nancial position and pro�t or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the 
consolidation taken as a whole;
the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the 
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they 
face; and
the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information 
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors and is signed on its behalf by:

Joint Chief Executives
19 March 2018
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to the members of Hansteen Holdings PLC

Independent Auditor’s report

Opinion on financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC
In our opinion:

 › the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 
2017 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

 › the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

 › the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union 
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

 › the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the 
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) which comprise:

 › the consolidated income statement;
 › the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;
 › the consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets;
 › the consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity;
 › the consolidated cash flow statement; and
 › the related notes 1 to 35.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union 
and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

 › Investment property valuations. 
 › Significant one-off transactions. 
 › Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (Founder LTIP).

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £10.8 million which was determined on 
the basis of 2% of net assets. 

In addition to net assets, we considered EPRA Earnings (as defined in note 14) to be a critical financial 
performance measure for the Group and we applied a lower threshold of £1.5 million for items affecting 
EPRA Earnings.

Scoping We have performed a full scope audit over 96% of the Revenue, 99% of the Profit before tax and 96% of the 
Group’s net assets. 

Significant changes in 
our approach

We have identified the Founder LTIP as a key audit matter for 2017 due to the quantum of the charge in 
the current year, the estimates made by management in determining the charge and the complexity in the 
calculation due to the return of capital in the year. 
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Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement
Going concern
We have reviewed the Directors’ statement in note 3 to the financial 
statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt 
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their 
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group’s and Company’s 
ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the 
date of approval of the financial statements.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw 
attention to in relation to that statement required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) 
and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our knowledge 
obtained in the audit.

Principal risks and viability statement
Based solely on reading the Directors’ statements and considering 
whether they were consistent with the knowledge we obtained in the 
course of the audit, including the knowledge obtained in the evaluation 
of the Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, we are required to state whether we have 
anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

 › the disclosures on pages 18 and 19 that describe the principal risks and 
explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

 › the Directors' confirmation on page 18 that they have carried out a 
robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including 
those that would threaten its business model, future performance, 
solvency or liquidity; or

 › the Directors’ explanation on page 48 as to how they have assessed the 
prospects of the Group, over what period they have done so and why 
they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to 
whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able 
to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the 
period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing 
attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to report whether the Directors’ statement relating to 
the prospects of the Group required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially 
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or 
draw attention to in respect of these matters.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or 
draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. 
These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and 
directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Investment property valuation 
Key audit matter 
description

At 31 December 2017, the Group held wholly owned investment property valued at £808.1 million. 

Investment properties are held at fair value on the balance sheet. During the year, a net valuation gain of 
£62.0 million was recorded (excluding acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange gains). The fair values 
are calculated by third party valuation experts using factual information, such as lease agreements and 
tenancy data, and their professional judgement concerning market conditions and factors impacting 
individual properties.

The valuation process is a key source of estimation uncertainty, which is why we consider this to be a risk of 
material misstatement as well as a potential fraud risk. In particular, changes in assumptions such as the market 
conditions surrounding property yields, estimated rental values, the time a property will remain vacant when 
a tenant leaves, the rent free period required to attract a new tenant, and the level of expenditure required to 
maintain the property can lead to significant movements in the value of the property. 

See also key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 4, the investment property in note 18 of the financial 
statements and the Audit Committee’s report on pages 26 to 30.

How the scope of our 
audit responded to the 
key audit matter

We assessed and discussed management’s process for reviewing and challenging the work of the external 
valuer. We also assessed the competence, independence and integrity of the external valuer.

We obtained the external valuation reports and met with the external valuer to discuss the results of their work 
on a sample of properties. With the assistance of an audit expert, who is a chartered surveyor, we discussed and 
challenged the valuation process, performance of the portfolio and significant judgements and assumptions 
applied in their valuation model, including yields, occupancy rates, lease incentives and break clauses. We 
benchmarked and challenged the key assumptions to external industry data and comparable property 
transactions, in particular the yield.
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Founder LTIP 

Key audit matter 

description

audit responded to the 

key audit matter 

Signi�cant one-of transactions 

audit responded to the 

key audit matter

continued

We tested the tenancy schedules for integrity by agreeing a sample of entries to lease agreements, and 
agreeing a sample of lease agreements to the tenancy schedule to test for completeness.

Audit analytics were applied to compare the audited tenancy schedule with the data provided to the valuers 
thereby testing the integrity of the underlying data used by the valuers in their valuations. This was supported 
by review of the reconciliation that management had performed to determine whether the data used by the 
valuers matched the tenancy schedules maintained by the Group. 

We further employed audit analytics to identify properties which exhibited valuation movements and yields 
outside of our predetermined benchmarks. These were discussed in detail with the external valuers and key 
explanations provided were corroborated to underly gin  lease or cost data. In addition, we tested a sample of 
other properties to determine whether the valuations were appropriately performed, and considered the value 
realised on property disposals compared to previous valuations to assess historical valuation reliability.

We checked that the valuation reports have been recorded correctly in the �nancial statements and 
appropriate disclosures have been made.

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuation of the portfolio as a whole were supportable in light of 
available and comparable market evidence.

The nature of the Group’s operations gives rise to one-o� transactions which can result in signi�cant gains and losses. 

In the year the Group completed:
the disposal of its German and Dutch property portfolio; and 
the acquisition of the Industrial Multi Property Trust.

These transactions are, by their nature, one-o� and are complex. There are management j udgements inherent 
in their measurement, such as in calculating the value of the transaction or its resulting gain or loss, and their 
presentation in the �nancial statements which has a material impact on the results for the year.

See also signi�cant accounting policies in note 3, the discontinued operations in note 15, disposal of subsidiary 
in note 16 and the Audit Committee’s report on pages 26 to 30.

In relation to the disposal of the German and Dutch portfolio, we have performed the following procedures:
tested the pro�t on disposal following the �nalisation of the completion accounts mechanism;
recalculated the quantum of the recycled foreign exchange gains and losses previously recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income;
assessed the tax treatment arising from the disposal with involvement of a tax specialist; and
reviewed the disclosures and reclassi�cations in the Annual Report required by IFRS 5 

In relation to the Industrial Multi Property Trust acquisition, we have performed the following procedures:
assessed whether the accounting treatment proposed, including the transfer of control to the Group and 
full consolidation as a subsidiary, has been app pro riately recorded in the accounts; and
challenged the allocation of the purchase price between the assets and liabilities on acquisition in line with 
the accounting standards.

We evaluated the presentation and related disclosure of the signi�cant one-o� transactions in the Annual Report.

We concluded that signi�cant one-o� transactions during the year were properly accounted for and disclosed. 

The Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (Founder LTIP) was established at IPO in November 2005 to incentivise the 
Joint Chief Executives. On 1 January 2016, the current three-year Founder LTIP performance period commenced.

As set out in the Report of the Remuneration Committee pages 33 to 46, the calculation methodology in 
the current three year performance period was modi�ed to allow for the impact of the return of capital to 
shareholders during 2017. 

In accordance with IFRS 2  a charge is recognised in the income statement over the 
performance period based upon the expected value that the award will pay out. 

There is a risk of an inapp pro riate recognition of the current period share-based payments charge due to the 
j udgements and assumptions applied in forecasting the future performance of the Group, including no forecast 
change in property values. There is also a risk that insu�cient prominence and disclosure could result in the 
impact of the Founder LTIP scheme not being clear to users of the �nancial statements.

See also signi�cant accounting policies in note 3 and share-based payments in note 32. 

Non-current Assets 

Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Share-Based Pay ments
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We reviewed minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Remuneration Committee, in addition 
to evaluating the scheme agreements and other correspondence between the Group and the Founder 
LTIP members. 

We reviewed the professional advice received by the Remuneration Committee and assessed whether it was 
appropriately implemented by management in the calculation to determine the correct charge of £19.1 million 
to be recognised in the period in accordance with IFRS 2. 

We evaluated the level of disclosure in the Annual Report, in particular the presentation of the charge within 
diluted metrics and adj usted performance measures.

We concluded that the Founder LTIP was app pro riately accounted for and disclosed. 

We de�ne materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the �nancial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of 
a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or in�uenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work. 

Based on our professional j udgement, we determined materiality for the �nancial statements as a whole as follows:

£10.8 million (2016: £14.0 million) and a lower materiality of £1.0 million (2016: £1.5 million).
£1.5 million (2016: £2.7 million) for balances a�ecting EPRA earnings. 

2% of net assets (2016: 1.5% of net assets). Materiality for Parent Company represents less 
than 0.5% (2016: 1.0%) of net assets which we 

The lower materiality used for balances impacting EPRA earnings considered appropriate for the consolidation of 
was determined using 5% (2016: 5%) of EPRA earnings. this set of �nancial statements to the Group’s 

We determined Group materiality using net assets on the basis that We determined the Parent Company materiality 
the Group is an asset-intensive business, with shareholder value 
being driven by net asset value movements. The most signi�cant Company has limited trading and holds signi�cant 
balances in the �nancial statements are investment property and investments in subsidiaries of the Group therefore 
associated borrowings. equity was used as an app pro riate benchmark. 

In addition to net assets, we consider EPRA earnings per share to be a 
critical �nancial performance measure for the Group on the basis that 
it is a key metric to analysts and investors. EPRA earnings per share is 
based on the Group’s EPRA earnings which is reconciled to IFRS pro�t 
after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent in note 14. We 
applied a lower threshold of £1.5 million, which represents 5% of EPRA 
earnings, for testing all balances impacting EPRA earnings.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit di�erences in excess of £540k (2016: £700k) for the 
Group, as well as di�erences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit 
Committee on disclosure matters that we identi�ed when assessing the overall presentation of the �nancial statements.
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Founder LTIP 

How the scope of our 

Key 

observations

Materiality

Basis for  

determining 

materiality

Rationale for the 

benchmark applied

continued

audit responded to the 

key audit matter

Our application of materiality

Group �nancial statements Parent Company �nancial statements

results.

using net assets on the basis that the Parent 

 NAV

 Group materiality

 Component materiality range

 Audit committee reporting threshold

£557.6m

£10.8m

£5.4m-
£7.5m

£0.5m
 EPRA Earnings

 Group materiality

 Component materiality range

 Audit committee reporting threshold

£30m

£1.5m

£0.76m-

£1.06m

£0.5m



Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the 
risks of material misstatement.

As in the prior year, our Group audit scope focused primarily on the audit work in the United Kingdom, Germany and the Netherlands, where 
full audits were carried out based on our assessment of the identi�ed risks of material misstatement identi�ed above. Full audits of Germany 
and the Netherlands were required as these j urisdictions were operational in the Group until the disposal completion in mid-June 2017. The 
Group audit team performed the audits of the wholly owned entities in the United Kingdom and the component audit of Germany, and for the 
Netherlands, local component auditors performed the audits, based on instructions from the Group audit team. 

In addition, the Group team also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to con�rm our conclusion that there 
were no signi�cant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated �nancial information of the remaining components not subj ect to audit 
or audit of speci�ed account balances.

The components subj ect to a full audit represent the principal business units of the Group and account for 96% (2016: 98%) of the Group’s 
revenue, 99% (2016: 99%) of the Group’s pro�t before tax and 96% (2016: 99%) of the Group’s net assets. Our audit work was executed at 
levels of materiality applicable to each component and ranged between £5.4 million to £7.5 million (2016: £7.0 million to £9.1 million), excluding 
the Parent Company.

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report including the Strategic Report, Audit Committee Report, Nomination 
Committee Report, Chairman’s Corporate Governance Statement, Remuneration Committee Report, 
Directors’ Remuneration Report, Directors’ Report and Directors’ Responsibility Statements other than 
the �nancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the �nancial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the �nancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the �nancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the �nancial statements or a material misstatement 
of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are speci�cally required to report to you as uncorrected material 
misstatements of the other information include where we conclude that:

 – the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual 
Report and �nancial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the 
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business 
model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

 – the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not 
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

 – the parts of the Directors’ 
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the Company’s compliance with the UK Corporate 
Governance Code containing provisions speci�ed for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing 
Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate 
Governance Code.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Revenue Pro�t before tax Net assets

Other information

 Full audit scope  Full audit scope  Full audit scope

 Review at Group level  Review at Group level  Review at Group level

1%4% 4%

96% 99% 96%

› 

› 

› 

Fair, balanced and understandable

A udit committee reporting

Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in 

respect of these matters.
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Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our 
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an 
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

 › the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 
is consistent with the financial statements; and

 › the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their environment obtained in the course of the 
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

 › we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
 › adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate 

for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
 › the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records 

and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of 
these matters.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures 
of Directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of 
these matters.

Other matters
Auditor tenure
We were appointed by the Company on 30 November 2005 to audit the financial statements for the years ending 31 December 2006 and 
subsequent financial periods. Following a competitive tender process, we were reappointed as auditor by the Company on 19 March 2016 to 
audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2016 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted 
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 12 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2006 to 
31 December 2017.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK).

Claire Faulkner, FCA 
(Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
19 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s report | continued
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Consolidated income statement

Note

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Continuing operations
Revenue 5 59.0 37.4
Cost of sales 5 (5.3) (5.2)

Gross profit 5 53.7 32.2
Administrative expenses 8 (32.5) (14.1)
Other operating income 10 0.6 0.1
Share of results of associates and profit on sale of associate – 13.4
Negative goodwill and other gains – 4.3
Profit on sale of investment properties 5.9 2.4
Fair value gains on investment properties 18 62.0 15.4

Operating profit 89.7 53.7
Finance income 11 4.3 14.8
Finance costs 11 (23.7) (20.4)

Profit before tax 70.3 48.1
Tax 12 0.8 (0.1)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 71.1 48.0
Profit for the year from discontinued operations net of tax 15 133.2 61.5

Profit for the year 8 204.3 109.5

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 204.1 109.5
Non-controlling interests 0.2 –

204.3 109.5

Earnings per share
Basic
Continuing operations 14 9.8p 6.5p
Discontinued operations 14 18.4p 8.3p

28.2p 14.8p

Diluted
Continuing operations 14 9.7p 6.4p
Discontinued operations 14 18.1p 7.4p

27.8p 13.8p

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations
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for the year ended 31 December 2017

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Profit for the year after tax 204.3 109.5
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
 Exchange differences arising on translating foreign operations 15.2 72.9
 Exchange differences recycled to the income statement on disposal of subsidiaries – (2.3)
 Exchange differences recycled to the income statement on disposal of discontinued operations (72.2) –

Total other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (57.0) 70.6

Total comprehensive income for the year 147.3 180.1

Attributable to:
 Equity holders of the parent 147.1 180.0
 Non-controlling interests 0.2 0.1

147.3 180.1

All components of other comprehensive income may be recycled to profit and loss. 
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Balance sheets

Note

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 0.2 0.4 – –
Investment property 18 694.2 1,717.5 – –
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 19 – – 498.6 661.2
Deferred tax asset 20 – 0.6 – 0.5
Derivative financial instruments 21 2.2 2.1 2.2 1.9

696.6 1,720.6 500.8 663.6
Current assets
Investment properties held for sale 18 113.9 10.4 – –
Trading properties 22 10.0 10.0 – –
Trade and other receivables 23 18.3 31.1 200.3 250.4
Cash and cash equivalents 24 71.2 82.5 48.6 34.8

  213.4 134.0 248.9 285.2

Total assets 910.0 1,854.6 749.7 948.8

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 (30.4) (54.0) (49.8) (124.7)
Current tax liabilities (20.5) (6.6) (7.2) (1.1)
Borrowings 26 (0.3) (20.5) – –
Obligations under finance leases 27 (0.2) (0.2) – –
Provisions 28 – (0.1) – –

(51.4) (81.4) (57.0) (125.8)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 26 (293.8) (793.5) (291.3) (278.0)
Obligations under finance leases 27 (2.3) (2.4) – –
Provisions 28 (0.8) (0.7) – –
Derivative financial instruments 21 – (4.3) – (25.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 20 (4.2) (48.1) (0.1) –

  (301.1) (849.0) (291.4) (303.4)

Total liabilities (352.5) (930.4) (348.4) (429.2)

Net assets 557.5 924.2 401.3 519.6

Equity
Share capital 29 41.3 74.6 41.3 74.6
Share premium 114.5 114.5 114.5 114.5
Other reserves (0.1) (1.9) (0.1) (2.2)
Capital redemption reserves 29 41.3 – 41.3 –
Translation reserves 4.8 61.8 – –
Retained earnings 355.7 674.6 204.3 332.7

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 557.5 923.6 401.3 519.6
Non-controlling interest – 0.6 – –

Total equity 557.5 924.2 401.3 519.6

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company is not presented as part of these 
accounts. The Company’s profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to £394.6 million (2016: £56.7 million). Of the 
Company’s retained earnings of £204.3 million (2016: £332.7 million), £167.1 million (2016: £308.2 million) is available for distribution.

The financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC, registered number 05605371, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised 
for issue on 19 March 2018. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Ian Watson and Morgan Jones 
Joint Chief Executives
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for the year ended 31 December 2017

Statements of changes in equity

Group

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

£m

Other 
reserves

£m

Translation
reserves

£m

Capital 
redemption 

reserves
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total

£m

Non-
controlling 

interest
£m

Total
£m

Balance at 1 January 2016 72.2 114.5 (1.4) (8.7) – 629.6 806.2 0.5 806.7
Shares issued 2.4 – – – – – 2.4 – 2.4
Dividends – – – – – (39.8) (39.8) – (39.8)
Share-based payments – – – – – (24.7) (24.7) – (24.7)
Share options exercised – – 0.2 – – – 0.2 – 0.2
Purchase of own shares – – (0.7) – – – (0.7) – (0.7)
Profit for the year – – – – – 109.5 109.5 – 109.5
Other comprehensive 

income for the year – – – 70.5 – – 70.5 0.1 70.6

Balance at 31 December 2016 74.6 114.5 (1.9) 61.8 – 674.6 923.6 0.6 924.2

Shares issued/settlement of 
convertible bond 8.0 – (0.3) – – 91.4 99.1 – 99.1

Cancellation of shares under 
tender offer (41.3) – – – 41.3 (583.1) (583.1) – (583.1)

Non-controlling interest 
disposed – – – – – – – (0.1) (0.1)

Capital repaid – – – – – – – (0.2) (0.2)
Dividends – – – – – (46.5) (46.5) (0.5) (47.0)
Share-based payments – – – – – 18.0 18.0 – 18.0
Share options exercised – – 2.8 – – (2.8) – – –
Purchase of own shares – – (0.7) – – – (0.7) – (0.7)
Profit for the year – – – – – 204.1 204.1 0.2 204.3
Other comprehensive 

expense for the year – – – (57.0) – – (57.0) – (57.0)

Balance at 31 December 2017 41.3 114.5 (0.1) 4.8 41.3 355.7 557.5 – 557.5

Company

Share
capital

£m

Share
premium

£m

Other 
reserves

£m

Translation
reserves

£m

Capital 
redemption 

reserves
£m

Retained
earnings

£m
Total

£m

Non-
controlling 

interest
£m

Total
£m

Balance at 1 January 2016 72.2 114.5 (1.7) – – 340.5 525.5 – 525.5
Shares issued 2.4 – – – – – 2.4 – 2.4
Dividends – – – – – (39.8) (39.8) – (39.8)
Share-based payments – – – – – (24.7) (24.7) – (24.7)
Share options exercised – – 0.2 – – – 0.2 – 0.2
Purchase of own shares – – (0.7) – – – (0.7) – (0.7)
Profit for the year – – – – – 56.7 56.7 – 56.7

Balance at 31 December 2016 74.6 114.5 (2.2) – – 332.7 519.6 – 519.6

Shares issued 8.0 – – – – 91.4 99.4 – 99.4
Cancellation of shares under 

tender offer (41.3) – – – 41.3 (583.1) (583.1) – (583.1)
Dividends – – – – – (46.5) (46.5) – (46.5)
Share-based payments – – – – – 18.0 18.0 – 18.0
Share options exercised – – 2.8 – – (2.8) – – –
Purchase of own shares – – (0.7) – – – (0.7) – (0.7)
Profit for the year – – – – – 394.6 394.6 – 394.6

Balance at 31 December 2017 41.3 114.5 (0.1) – 41.3 204.3 401.3 – 401.3

Other reserves comprises a deficit relating to the purchase of the Company’s own shares. See note 29. 
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Cash flow statements

Note

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 30 45.2 48.0 23.1 (136.8)
Investing activities
 Interest received 0.4 0.1 4.8 3.8
 Dividends received – – 358.1 63.4
 Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings (24.6) (38.1) (59.6) (76.2)
 Share premium returned by subsidiaries – – 146.7 –
 Investments in associates – (10.2) – –
 Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 662.9 – 154.8 –
 Additions to property, plant and equipment – (0.2) – –
 Additions to investment properties – continuing operations (7.1) (6.4) – –
 Additions to investment properties – discontinued operations (28.4) (14.8) – –
 Proceeds from sale of investment properties – continuing operations 60.6 10.4 – –
 Proceeds from sale of investment properties – discontinued operations 7.4 15.5 – –
 Distributions received from associates – 22.4 – –

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 671.2 (21.3) 604.8 (9.0)
Financing activities
 Dividends paid (47.0) (39.8) (46.5) (39.8)
 Settlement of liabilities in respect of 2015 Founder LTIP – (23.5) – (23.5)
 Cost of issuing shares (0.1) – (0.1) –
 Own shares acquired (0.7) (0.7) (0.7) (0.7)
 Cancellation of shares under tender offer (583.1) – (583.1) –
 Repayments of obligations under finance leases (0.2) (0.2) – –
 New borrowings raised (net of expenses) – continuing operations 119.8 292.0 119.9 294.5
 New borrowings raised (net of expenses) – discontinued operations 0.2 117.2 – –
 Bank loans repaid – continuing operations (212.4) (233.7) (107.0) (95.0)
 Bank loans repaid – discontinued operations (4.0) (121.0) – –
 Additions to derivative financial instruments (0.1) (3.2) – (0.7)
 (Settlement)/proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments (4.0) 0.5 – 0.5

Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities (731.6) (12.4) (617.5) 135.3

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (15.2) 14.3 10.4 (10.5)
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 82.5 63.4 34.8 43.4
 Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 3.9 4.8 3.4 1.9

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 71.2 82.5 48.6 34.8
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Notes to the financial statements

1. General information
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales on 
27 October 2005. The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered 
office is 1st Floor, Pegasus House, 37-43 Sackville Street, London W1S 3DL.

The Group’s principal activity is investing in predominantly industrial properties in the United Kingdom.

These financial statements are presented in Sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 3.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards
In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) 
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2017. Their adoption has not had any material impact 
on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2014-2016 Annual Improvements to IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been 
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 2 (amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
IAS 40 (amendments) Transfers of Investment Property
Annual improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International

Financial Reporting Standards and IFRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective for the current 
accounting period. Certain standards which could be expected to have an impact on the financial statements are discussed in further 
detail below.

Title of standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Nature of change IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 and addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities. It simplifies the existing categories of financial instruments, introduces an expected credit loss 
model and redefines the criteria required for hedge effectiveness.

Impact On adoption of the new standard, these changes are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group. There will however be limited changes to presentation and disclosure.

Date of adoption 
by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules 
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 
2018 are not expected to be restated.

Title of standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Nature of change IFRS 15 combines and replaces a number of previous standards, setting out a five step model for the recognition of 
revenue based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. 
The standard also establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the 
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a 
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact Management has assessed the effects of applying the new standard on the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition
IFRS 15 does not apply to investment property rental income as this falls under the scope of IAS 17 Leases. The 
standard will apply to non-core revenue streams; service charge income, trading property sales and management 
fees. At present the Group does not estimate IFRS 15 to have a significant difference in the amount or timing of the 
recognition of revenue for the non-core income streams that fall under the scope and an immaterial impact on the 
Group Income Statement. 

Disclosures
The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements. These are expected to change the nature and 
extent of the Group’s revenue disclosures.

Date of adoption 
by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard using 
the modified retrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in 
retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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Title of standard IFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change IFRS 16 will replace IAS 17 Leases, and will require the application of a single lessee accounting model. It will result in 
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet for a lessee, as the distinction between operating and finance 
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability, to pay 
future rental payments, are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for 
lessors will not significantly change.

Impact At present, as a lessee the Group holds a limited number of operating leases, with the undiscounted non-cancellable 
future lease payments as 31 December 2017 of £22.7 million (note 31). 

In order to quantify the impact of IFRS 16, management is required to make judgements on a lease-by-lease basis 
including, but not limited to:

 › the appropriate discount rate (by reference to the interest rate implicit in the lease, or the Group’s incremental 
borrowing rate);

 › the lease term, including consideration of options to extend; and
 › index or rate dependent variable payments that could be included in the calculation of the lease liability.

Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards 
until a detailed lease-by-lease review has been completed. 

Date of adoption 
by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to 
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not 
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

3. Significant accounting policies 
Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as detailed in the Directors’ Report on page 48 and in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply 
with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment properties and certain 
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each accounting period.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its 
subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achieved when the Company:

 › has the power over the investee;
 › is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
 › has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of subsidiaries acquired are initially recognised at 
their fair value at the acquisition date. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
income statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity. Non-controlling 
interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of 
changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling 
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interest of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a 
binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the 
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities are recognised at their fair 
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree 
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, if any, over the net amounts of identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. 

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable 
net assets. 

Foreign currencies
The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it 
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group 
Company are expressed in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated 
financial statements.
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In preparing the �nancial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency 
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary 
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange di�erences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in pro�t or loss 
for the period in which they arise. Exchange di�erences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in 
pro�t or loss for the period in which they arise except for di�erences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which 
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also 
recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated �nancial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated 
at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the 
period, unless exchange rates �uctuate signi�cantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are 
used Exchange di�erences arising, if any, are classi�ed as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. 
Such translation di�erences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services 
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes.

Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis. Where a lease incentive is granted, which does not enhance the value of the property, or a 
rent-free period is granted, the e�ective cost is amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Property management fees are recognised in the period to which they relate.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the e�ective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from the sale of trading and investment properties is recognised when the signi�cant risks and returns have been transferred to the 
buyer. This generally coincides with the transfer of the legal tit le or the passing of possession to the buyer. The pro�t on disposal of trading 
and investment properties is determined as the di�erence between the consideration received and the carrying amount of the asset at the 
commencement of the accounting period plus any additions in the period.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line 
basis over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of options that will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by use of a binomial 
model or the Company’s share price less the discounted value of estimated future dividends, as appropriate. The expected life used in the 
binomial model has been adj usted based on management’s best estimate, for the e�ects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and 
behavioural considerations.

Operating pro�t is stated after the share of results of associates, pro�t on sale of subsidiaries and investment properties and fair value gains 
on investment properties, but before changes in fair value of derivative �nancial instruments, �nance income, �nance costs and foreign 
exchange movements.

This comprises computer equipment and �xtures and �ttings, which are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised 

Depreciation is charged so as to write o� the cost or valuation of computers, �xtures and �ttings and o�ce equipment, less residual value, 
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Computer equipment three years

Fixtures and �ttings �ve years

Investment properties, which comprises freehold and leasehold properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are treated 
as acquired when the Group assumes the signi�cant risks and rewards of ownership. Acquisitions of investment properties including related 
transaction costs and subsequent additions of a capital nature are initially recognised in the accounts at cost. At each reporting date the 
investment properties are revalued to their fair values based on a professional valuation at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in pro�t or loss for the period in which they arise. 

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment. 

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise signi�cant in�uence, but not control or j oint control, through 
participation in the �nancial and operating policy decisions of the investee. Signi�cant in�uence is the power to participate in the �nancial 
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or j oint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these �nancial statements using the equity method of accounting. 
Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adj usted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net 
assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest 
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are 
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Revenue recognition

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in associates

Share-based payments

Operating proft

impairment loss. 



Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identi�able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the 
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identi�able 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in pro�t or loss. 

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, pro�ts and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in 
the relevant associate. Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in which case app pro riate provision is made 

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The Group’s liability for current and deferred tax is  
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable pro�t for the year. Taxable pro�t di�ers from net pro�t as reported in the income statement  
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never 
taxable or deductible. 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on di�erences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
�nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable pro�t, and is accounted for using the balance sheet 
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary di�erences and deferred tax assets are recognised 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable pro�ts will be available against which deductible temporary di�erences can be utilised. Deferred 
tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. 
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which 
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are o�set when there is a legally enforceable right to set o� current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and 

Financial assets and �nancial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

All �nancial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose 
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, 
plus transaction costs, except for those �nancial assets classi�ed as at fair value through pro�t or loss, which are initially measured at 
fair value.

Financial assets are classi�ed into the following categories: �nancial assets ‘at fair value through pro�t or loss’ (“FVTPL”), and ‘loans and 
receivables’. The classi�cation depends on the nature and purpose of the �nancial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets are classi�ed as at FVTPL where the �nancial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. 

A �nancial asset is classi�ed as held for trading if :
it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
it is a part of an identi�ed portfolio of �nancial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of 
short-term pro�t-taking; or 
it is a derivative that is not designated and e�ective as a hedging instrument.

A �nancial asset other than a �nancial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if :
such designation eliminates or signi�cantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 
the �nancial asset forms part of a group of �nancial assets or �nancial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is 
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information 
about the Group is provided internally on that basis; or
it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in pro�t or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in 
pro�t or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the �nancial asset.

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have �xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classi�ed as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest method, less any 
impairment. Interest income is recognised by apply gin  the e�ective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of 
interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are 
impaired where there is obj ective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the �nancial 
asset, the estimated future cash �ows of the investment have been impacted. Obj ective evidence of impairment could include:

signi�cant �nancial di�culty of the issuer or counterparty; or
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or �nancial re-organisation.
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liabilities on a net basis.

provisions of the instrument.

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

Taxation

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVTPL

Loans and receivables

Impairment of �nancial assets
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The carrying amount of the �nancial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all �nancial assets with the exception of trade 

receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, 

it is written o� against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written o� are credited against the allowance 

account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in pro�t or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of 

the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related obj ectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through pro�t or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date 

the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to a known amount of cash and are subj ect to an insigni�cant risk of changes in value.

The Group derecognises a �nancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash �ows from the asset expire; or it transfers the 

�nancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest 

in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of a transferred �nancial asset, the Group continues to recognise the �nancial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 

proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classi�ed according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. 

Financial liabilities are classi�ed as either �nancial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other �nancial liabilities’.

Financial liabilities are classi�ed as at FVTPL where the �nancial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A �nancial 

liability is classi�ed as held for trading if :

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or

it is a part of an identi�ed portfolio of �nancial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of 

short-term pro�t-taking; or 

it is a derivative that is not designated and e�ective as a hedging instrument. 

A �nancial liability other than a �nancial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if :

such designation eliminates or signi�cantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 

the �nancial liability forms part of a group of �nancial assets or �nancial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is 

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information 

about the Group is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives that can be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in pro�t or loss. The net gain or loss recognised 

in pro�t or loss incorporates any interest paid on the �nancial liability.

The convertible bonds are designated as fair value through pro�t or loss and are presented on the balance sheet at fair value with all gains 

and losses, including the write o� of issuance costs, recognised in the income statement within net �nancing costs. The interest charge in 

respect of the coupon rate on the bonds has been recognised within net �nancing costs on an accruals basis.

Other �nancial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other �nancial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the e�ective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an e�ective yield basis. 

The e�ective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the �nancial liability, 

or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets; and 

the amount initially recognised less, where app pro riate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition 

policies set out above.

The Group derecognises �nancial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. Where an 

existing �nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially di�erent terms or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modi�ed, such an exchange or modi�cation is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 

liability, and the di�erence in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement. 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Equity instruments

Derecognition of �nancial assets

Other �nancial liabilities

Derecognition of �nancial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 

› 



The Group enters into a variety of derivative �nancial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, 
including foreign exchange forward contracts and options and interest rate swaps and caps. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair 
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in pro�t or loss immediately.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months 
and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classi�ed as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) 
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classi�cation.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classi�ed as held for sale, except investment properties, are measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Investment properties classi�ed as held for sale are carried at fair value.

Trading properties are properties held by the Group in the course of development. The properties are carried at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value and are treated as acquired when the Group assumes the signi�cant risks and rewards of ownership. Cost includes 
development costs on the trading properties during the year. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less further costs 
expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. 

Leases are classi�ed as �nance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classi�ed as operating leases. 

When accounting for a lease of land and buildings, the Group considers the land and buildings elements separately. Where only the buildings 
element of a property lease is classi�ed as a �nance lease, the ground rent payments for the land element are shown within operating leases. 
The Group does not classify those land elements that are held under operating leases as investment property.

Rentals receivable under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
In the event that lease incentives are granted to a lessee, such incentives are recognised as an asset. The agg gre ate cost of the incentives is 
recognised as a reduction in rental income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into an operating lease, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate 
bene�t of the incentives is recognised as a reduction in rental expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Where a property is held under a head lease classi�ed as a �nance lease, it is initially recognised as an asset as the sum of the premium paid on 
acquisition and the present value of minimum ground rent payments. The corresponding rent liability to the head leaseholder is included in 
the balance sheet as a �nance lease obligation. 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash �ows 
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash �ows (when the e�ect of the time value of 
money is material).

When some or all of the economic bene�ts required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make j udgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. In making these estimates and assumptions, the Directors make reference to historical experience 
and other factors that they consider to be relevant. Actual results may di�er from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
a�ects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision a�ects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical j udgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), the Directors have 
made in the process of apply gin  the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most signi�cant e�ect on the amounts recognised in the 
�nancial statements.

The Group frequently enters into transactions for the purchase and sale of investment property, associates, subsidiaries and other �nancial 
assets. These transactions tend to be one-o� and can be complex. Accounting for the transactions requires j udgements to be made over 
matters such as calculating any gain or loss, and deciding upon the presentation in the �nancial statements. 
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4. Critical accounting j udgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Non-current assets held for sale

Trading properties

Leases

Provisions

Critical j udgements in apply gin  the Group’s accounting policies

Leases – the Group as lessor

Leases – the Group as lessee

Accounting for one-o� and complex transactions
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Notes to the financial statements | continued

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued
In 2017 the Group had a number of one-off and complex transactions. These include the following:
 › There are judgements surrounding the German and Dutch portfolio disposal in respect of the presentation in the Group accounts, 

recycling of the translation reserve and considerations associated with the tax implications of the transaction. These transactions were 
accounted for as discontinued operations under IFRS 5 on the basis that the German and Dutch portfolio represented a separate major 
line of business and geographical area of operations. The results of the discontinued operations are disclosed in note 15.

 › The acquisition of Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC occurred over a period of approximately six months in several stages. Key 
judgements arose as to whether to account for the transaction as a business combination or asset acquisition and how to account for an 
acquisition achieved in stages. The Group assessed that no ‘Process’ had been acquired as part of the transaction and therefore it had not 
acquired a business. On this basis the transaction was not accounted for as a business combination but rather as an asset acquisition. The 
additions to investment properties are disclosed in note 18.

In 2016, the Group acquired the remaining Units of Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust and Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust. These transactions 
were accounted for as business combinations.

Accounting for investments in associates
Determining the appropriateness of accounting for investments in associates in 2016 requires management to assess the control the Group 
has over an investee, specifically, the power the Group has over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with 
the investee and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of investor returns.

As noted above, in 2016 the Group acquired the remaining Units of Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust. As a result of this transaction, the 
Group’s investment in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust is now fully consolidated as a subsidiary undertaking. Prior to this transaction, the 
Group’s investment was equity accounted for, the Directors having formed a judgement that it should be classified as an associated 
undertaking. This judgement was made on the basis that while the Group exercised significant influence, it did not at that time have control. 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out below.

Investment property valuations
In determining the fair value of investment properties there is a degree of uncertainty and judgement involved. The valuations are based on a 
number of assumptions, the significant ones of which are the appropriate discount rates, estimates of future rental income and capital 
expenditure. The Group uses external professional valuers to provide independent valuations of the investment properties. 

Details of the investment property valuations undertaken during the year, including the significant assumptions made and inputs used in the 
valuation process, as well as the key sensitivity variables, are set out in note 18. 

Recognition of expense for share-based payments 
In determining whether an expense should be recognised in relation to the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”), the Directors 
are required to form a judgement over the likelihood of an award vesting. 

The current performance period runs from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. In determining the charge to be recognised in the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have performed a detailed calculation to estimate the profits expected in 
2018. A pro rata charge has been recognised in the 2017 accounts.

One of the key drivers for the Founder LTIP is the revaluation of investment properties. A key assumption in determining management’s 
estimate of the Founder LTIP charge is that no future valuation movement is assumed in the calculation of this estimate. A sensitivity analysis 
has been undertaken to assess the impact on the Founder LTIP charge from a movement in the valuation of the investment portfolio. A 1% 
increase, or decrease, in the investment property valuation would correspondingly increase, or decrease, the charge by £1.1 million for the 
year ended 31 December 2017. This sensitivity is assumed to be qualitatively material.

5. Revenue and cost of sales
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales is as follows:

Continuing operations

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Investment property rental income 59.0 34.2
Trading property sales – 1.2
Property management fees – 2.0

Revenue 59.0 37.4
 Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties that generated rental income (4.8) (3.7)
 Direct operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate rental income (0.2) (0.4)

Direct operating expenses (5.0) (4.1)
Cost of sales of trading properties (0.3) (1.1)

Cost of sales (5.3) (5.2)

Gross profit 53.7 32.2

Including interest income of £0.3 million (20161: £0.1 million), total revenue was £59.3 million (20161: £37.5 million).
1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations
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6. Normalised Income Profit and Normalised Total Profit
The Group uses a number of Alternative Performance Measures (“APMs”) which are not defined or specified within IFRS. The Directors use 
these measures in order to assess the underlying operational performance of the Group and allow greater comparability between periods but 
do not consider them to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures. Key APMs used are Normalised Income Profit (“NIP”), Normalised 
Total Profit (“NTP”), measures defined by EPRA and adjusted EPS.

NIP and NTP are adjusted measures intended to show the underlying earnings of the Group before fair value movements and other 
non-recurring or otherwise non-cash items. Fair value movements include those in relation to investment property, financial assets and 
financial liabilities. Non-recurring or otherwise non-cash items include foreign exchange gains or losses and the Founder LTIP charge. A 
reconciliation of NIP and NTP to the Profit for the year prepared in accordance with IFRS is set out below. A reconciliation of EPRA measures 
and adjusted EPS is included within Note 14.

Group

2017 20161

Continuing 
operations

£m

Discontinued 
operations

£m
Total

£m

Continuing 
operations

£m

Discontinued 
operations

£m

Share of 
associates

£m
Total

£m

Investment property rental income 59.0 35.8 94.8 34.2 75.2 17.3 126.7
Direct operating expenses (5.0) (4.2) (9.2) (4.1) (10.6) (2.4) (17.1)
Property management fees – – – 2.0 – – 2.0
Administrative expenses (13.4) (4.4) (17.8) (13.7) (7.0) (2.2) (22.9)
Net interest payable (9.3) (6.6) (15.9) (5.3) (15.8) (3.1) (24.2)

Normalised Income Profit 31.3 20.6 51.9 13.1 41.8 9.6 64.5
 Profit on sale of investment properties 5.9 0.1 6.0 2.4 1.5 0.7 4.6
 (Loss)/profit on sale of trading properties (0.3) – (0.3) 0.1 – – 0.1

Total profits on sale of properties 5.6 0.1 5.7 2.5 1.5 0.7 4.7
 Other operating income 0.6 0.2 0.8 0.1 0.1 – 0.2
 Profit on disposal of discontinued operations – 49.22 49.2 – – – –

Normalised Total Profit 37.5 70.1 107.6 15.7 43.4 10.3 69.4
Negative goodwill and other gains – – – 4.3 – 1.0 5.3
Acquisition and reorganisation costs – – – (0.1) – – (0.1)
Founder LTIP charge (19.1) – (19.1) – – – –
Impairment of goodwill – – – (0.3) – – (0.3)
Change in fair value of investment properties 62.0 – 62.0 15.4 28.0 2.4 45.8
Change in fair value of currency options – – – (9.3) – – (9.3)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps 0.5 0.7 1.2 1.2 0.4 (0.3) 1.3
Change in fair value of convertible bonds (12.1) – (12.1) (2.3) – – (2.3)
Fees incurred on conversion of convertible bonds (0.4) – (0.4) – – – –
Interest incurred on the convertible bond (1.6) – (1.6) (3.4) – – (3.4)
Foreign exchange gains 3.5 – 3.5 13.5 – – 13.5
Exchange differences recycled on disposal of 

discontinued operations – 72.22 72.2 – – – –

Profit before tax 70.3 143.0 213.3 34.7 71.8 13.4 119.9
Tax 0.8 (9.8) (9.0) (0.1) (10.3) – (10.4)

Profit for the year 71.1 133.2 204.3 34.6 61.5 13.4 109.5

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations
2 The profit on disposal of discontinued operations of £49.2 million and the exchange differences recycled on disposal of discontinued operations of £72.2 million 

reconciles to the £121.4 million profit on disposal of discontinued operations included in note 15

Administrative expenses for 2017, as presented in Normalised Income Profit, exclude a charge of £19.1 million relating to the Founder LTIP for 
the 3 year period ending 31 December 2018 (2016: nil). Further details are set out in note 32. 

The £9.3 million change in fair value of foreign currency derivatives in 2016 relates to options to hedge European net assets. The hedges 
expired in June 2016 and were not replaced.

The interest incurred on the conversion of convertible bonds of £1.6 million (2016: £3.4 million) was excluded from the net interest payable in 
NIP as this expense is not recurring. 

During 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the units in the Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust for a net price of £9.3 million, taking 
its ownership to 100% and resulting in a gain on business combination of £0.4 million. The Group also acquired the remaining 18.2% 
of Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust for a net price of £39.5 million, taking its ownership to 100% and resulting in a gain on business 
combination of £3.9 million. The Group’s investments in Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust and Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust are now 
consolidated. The remaining negative goodwill and other gains of £1.0 million relates to a gain recognised upon acquiring further units 
in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust while it continued to be classified as an associate. 
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7. Operating segments
Segment revenues and results
The Group’s reportable segments are determined by geographic location, which represents the information reported to the Group’s 
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance. A segment’s result consists of its gross profit as 
detailed for the Group in note 5. Administrative expenses and net finance costs are managed as central costs and are therefore not allocated 
to segments. Gains/(losses) on investment properties by segment are also presented below.

Group

Continuing operations

Revenue
2017

£m

Result
2017

£m

Revenue
20161

£m

Result
20161

£m

 Belgium 1.1 0.9 1.1 0.9
 France 1.4 2.3 1.6 1.5
 UK 56.5 50.5 34.7 29.8

Total segment result 59.0 53.7 37.4 32.2
Administrative expenses (32.5) (14.1)
Other operating income 0.6 0.1
Share of results of associates and profit on sale of associate – 13.4
Negative goodwill and other gains – 4.3
Changes in fair value of investment properties by segment:
 Belgium (2.9) –
 France (1.1) 0.2
 UK 66.0 15.2

Total changes in fair value of investment properties 62.0 15.4
Profit on disposal of investment properties 5.9 2.4

Total gains on investment properties 67.9 17.8

Operating profit 89.7 53.7
Net finance costs (19.4) (5.6)

Profit before tax 70.3 48.1

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations

Segment assets
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocated resources between segments, the Directors monitor the investment 
and trading properties attributable to each segment. All assets are allocated to reportable segments with the exception of investments in 
associates and elements of cash, derivatives and tax balances that are managed centrally. 

2017

Group

Investment
properties*

£m

Trading 
properties

£m

Total
properties

£m

Other
assets

£m

Total
Assets

£m

Additions
to

investment
properties

£m

Non-
current

assets
£m

Belgium 14.5 – 14.5 1.8 16.3 – 14.5
France 17.2 – 17.2 0.6 17.8 0.1 17.2
UK 776.4 10.0 786.4 33.7 820.1 95.8 662.6

Total segment assets 808.1 10.0 818.1 36.1 854.2 95.9 694.3
Unallocated assets 55.8 2.3

Total assets 910.0 696.6

* Includes investment properties held for sale. 

2016

Group

Investment
properties*

£m

Trading 
properties

£m

Total
properties

£m

Other
assets

£m

Total
Assets

£m

Additions
to

investment
properties

£m

Non-
current
assets

£m

Belgium 17.0 – 17.0 2.3 19.3 0.3 17.0
France 17.7 – 17.7 0.6 18.3 0.7 17.7
Germany 761.7 – 761.7 29.4 791.1 11.7 754.8
Netherlands 264.7 – 264.7 7.4 272.1 3.1 265.0
UK 666.8 10.0 676.8 40.4 717.2 480.0 664.0

Total segment assets 1,727.9 10.0 1,737.9 80.1 1,818.0 495.8 1,718.5
Unallocated assets 36.6 2.1

Total assets 1,854.6 1,720.6

* Includes investment properties held for sale. 
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8. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

Continuing operations

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Net foreign exchange gains 3.5 13.5
Acquisition and reorganisation costs – (0.1)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (0.2) (0.2)
Impairment of goodwill – (0.3)
Negative goodwill and other gains – 4.3
Profit on sale of investment properties 5.9 2.4
Write-down of trading property (0.3) (0.2)
Increase in fair value of investment properties 62.0 15.4
Reduction in provision for bad and doubtful debts on trade receivables 2.5 2.0
Staff costs – share-based payment charge including social security costs (see note 9) (7.1) (6.7)
Staff costs – other (see note 9) (20.3) (1.5)

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations

The analysis of administrative expenses is as follows:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Staff costs (see note 9) 27.4 8.2
Professional fees 1.8 1.8
Impairment of goodwill – 0.3
Other 3.3 3.8

Total administrative expenses 32.5 14.1

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.3 0.2
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.3 0.3

Total audit fees 0.6 0.5
Taxation compliance services – 0.1
Other assurance services  – –
Corporate finance services 0.4 –

Total non-audit services 0.4 0.1

Total auditor’s remuneration 1.0 0.6

In 2016, fees for taxation compliance and advisory services comprise fees for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax advisory 
services. Details of the Company’s policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services and how the auditor’s independence and objectivity 
was safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 26 to 30. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee 
arrangements. In 2017 the corporate finance services were in relation to reporting accountant work for the disposal of the German and 
Dutch portfolios and the return of capital. 

9. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (excluding Non-Executive Directors) was:

Group
2017

Number

Group
2016

Number

Finance and administration 35 35
Property 24 22

Continuing operations 59 57
Discontinued operations 20 38

79 95
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9. Staff costs continued
Their aggregate remuneration was:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Wages and salaries 8.3 8.2
Other social security costs 1.1 1.2
Pension costs 0.4 0.4
Share-based payments (see note 32) 17.9 1.4
Social security costs on share-based payments 2.5 0.1

30.2 11.3

Continuing operations 27.4 8.2
Discontinued operations 2.8 3.1

30.2 11.3

As a result of the disposal of the German and Dutch portfolio the Group incurred redundancy costs of £1.2 million which are not included in 
the staff costs above.

The emoluments and pension benefits of the Directors are set out in detail in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on pages 33 to 46. 
The Executive Directors are considered to be key management for the purposes of IAS 24 Related Party Transactions. 

Pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension schemes of employees.

The Company had no employees in either the current or preceding financial year. 

10. Other operating income
In 2017, other operating income includes £0.5 million of insurance receipts and £0.1 million relating to a forfeited deposit on an exchange 
which did not complete.

In 2016, other operating income includes £0.1 million of insurance receipts.

11. Net finance costs

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Continuing operations
Interest receivable on bank deposits 0.3 0.1

Interest income 0.3 0.1
Interest payable on borrowings (9.5) (5.3)
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases (0.1) (0.1)

Net interest expense (9.3) (5.3)
Change in fair value of currency options – (9.3)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps 0.5 1.3
Change in fair value of convertible bonds (12.1) (2.3)
Fees incurred on conversion of convertible bonds (0.4) –
Interest incurred on the convertible bond (1.6) (3.4)
Foreign exchange gains 3.5 13.4

Net finance costs (19.4) (5.6)

Finance income 4.3 14.8
Finance costs (23.7) (20.4)

Net finance costs (19.4) (5.6)

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations
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12. Tax

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Continuing operations
UK current tax
Credit in respect of prior years – (0.5)
On net income of the current year (0.8) –
Foreign current tax
On net income of the current year 0.6 –

Total current tax (0.2) (0.5)
Deferred tax in respect of prior years (see note 20) – (0.1)
Deferred tax in respect of the current year (see note 20) (0.6) 0.7

Total tax (credit)/charge (0.8) 0.1

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 19.25% (2016: 20.00%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is 
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. In addition to the tax charge on continuing operations above, there is a 
£2.1 million tax charge relating to ordinary profits arising on the discontinued operations and a £7.7 million tax charge arising on the profit on 
disposal of discontinued operations as disclosed in note 15.

The tax (credit)/charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Continuing operations
Profit before tax 70.3 48.1
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.25% (2016: 20.00%) 13.5 9.6
Tax effect of:
UK tax not payable due to REIT exemption (19.5) (7.5)
Deferred tax assets not recognised 4.5 1.5
Effect of different tax rates in overseas subsidiaries 0.1 0.3
Income that is not in taxable profit – (2.7)
Expenses that are not deductible in taxable profit 0.7 –
Change in deferred tax due to change in tax rate (0.1) (0.5)
Adjustment in respect of prior years – (0.6)

Tax (credit)/charge for the year (0.8) 0.1

The Group elected to be a UK REIT in 2009 following admission to the Official List. The UK REIT rules exempt the profits of the Group’s 
property rental business from UK corporation tax. Gains on UK properties are also exempt from tax provided they are not held for trading. 
The Group’s UK activities are otherwise subject to UK corporation tax. To remain a UK REIT there are a number of conditions to be met in 
respect of the principal company of the Group, the Group’s qualifying activity and its balance of business which are set out in the UK REIT 
legislation in the Corporation Tax Act 2010. 

13. Dividends
Group

2017
£m

Group
2016

£m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Second dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of 3.7p (2016: 3.15p) per share 27.5 23.4
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of 2.3p (2016: 2.2p) per share 19.0 16.4

46.5 39.8

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:
Proposed second dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of 3.8p (2016: 3.7p) per share 15.7 27.5

As a REIT, the Company is required to pay Property Income Distributions (“PIDs”) equal to at least 90% of the Group’s exempted net income, 
after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate of 20% (2016 20%). £32.9 million of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 
2017 is attributable to PIDs (2016: £24.2 million).



H
an

st
ee

n 
H

o
ld

in
gs

 P
LC

 | A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o

rt
 a

nd
 A

cc
o

un
ts

 2
01

7 
| F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

76

Notes to the financial statements | continued

14. Earnings per share and net asset value per share
The European Public Real Estate Association (“EPRA”) has issued recommended bases for the calculation of certain earnings per share 
(“EPS”) information. Diluted EPRA EPS is reconciled to the IFRS measure in the following table. 

As noted in note 6 the Group uses a number of APMs which are not defined within IFRS. Normalised Income Profit and Normalised Income 
Profit have been defined in note 6 and adjusted EPS is defined below. 

Group

2017 2016

Earnings
£m

Weighted
average

number of
shares

m

Earnings
per

share
pence

Earnings
£m

Weighted
average

number of
shares

m

Earnings
per

share
pence

Continuing operations
Normalised Income Profit (see note 6) 31.3 725.1 4.3 22.7 740.0 3.1
Normalised Total Profit (see note 6) 37.5 725.1 5.2 26.0 740.0 3.5

Basic EPS 70.9 725.1 9.8 48.0 740.0 6.5
Adjustments:
Mark to market value of convertible bonds – (14.9)
Foreign exchange on convertible bonds – 17.3
Interest charged in period on convertible bonds – 3.3
Dilutive shares relating to convertible bonds – 92.8
Dilutive shares relating to the profit share scheme 2.8 2.3
Dilutive shares relating to the Founder LTIP 6.4 –

Diluted EPS 70.9 734.3 9.7 53.7 835.1 6.4

Basic EPS 70.9 725.1 9.8 48.0 740.0 6.5
Adjustments:
Revaluation gains on investment properties (62.0) (15.4)
Profit on sale of investment properties (5.9) (2.4)
Impairment of goodwill – 0.3
Profit on sale of trading properties 0.1 (0.3)
Negative goodwill and other gains – (4.3)
Change in fair value of derivatives (0.5) 8.1
Change in fair value of convertible bonds  

(excluding foreign exchange) 9.6 (14.9)
Adjustment in respect of associates – (3.8)
Deferred tax on the above items (1.0) –

EPRA EPS 11.2 725.1 1.5 15.3 740.0 2.1
Adjustments:
Interest charged in period on convertible bonds – 3.3
Dilutive shares relating to convertible bonds – 92.8
Dilutive shares relating to the profit share scheme 2.8 2.3
Dilutive shares relating to the Founder LTIP 6.4 –

Diluted EPRA EPS 11.2 734.3 1.5 18.6 835.1 2.2

Founder LTIP charge 19.1 (6.4) – –

Adjusted EPS* 30.3 727.9 4.2 18.6 835.1 2.2
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Group

2017 2016

Earnings
£m

Weighted
average

number of
shares

m

Earnings
per

share
pence

Earnings
£m

Weighted
average

number of
shares

m

Earnings
per

share
pence

Discontinued operations
Normalised Income Profit (see note 6) 20.6 725.1 2.8 41.8 740.0 5.6
Normalised Total Profit (see note 6) 70.1 725.1 9.7 43.4 740.0 5.9

Basic EPS 133.2 725.1 18.4 61.5 740.0 8.3
Adjustments:
Dilutive shares relating to convertible bonds – 92.8
Dilutive shares relating to the profit share scheme 2.8 2.3
Dilutive shares relating to the Founder LTIP 6.4 –

Diluted EPS 133.2 734.3 18.1 61.5 835.1 7.4

Basic EPS 133.2 725.1 18.4 61.5 740.0 8.3
Adjustments:
Revaluation gains on investment properties – (28.0)
Profit on the sale of investment properties (0.1) (1.5)
Profit after tax on disposal of discontinued operations (113.7) –
Change in fair value of derivatives (0.7) (0.4)
Deferred tax on the above items 0.8 5.7

EPRA EPS 19.5 725.1 2.7 37.3 740.0 5.0
Adjustments:
Dilutive shares relating to convertible bonds – 92.8
Dilutive shares relating to the profit share scheme 2.8 2.3
Dilutive shares relating to the Founder LTIP 6.4 –

Diluted EPRA EPS 19.5 734.3 2.7 37.3 835.1 4.5

Founder LTIP charge – (6.4) – –

Adjusted EPS* 19.5 727.9 2.7 37.3 835.1 4.5

* Diluted EPRA EPS has been adjusted to exclude the impact of the Founder LTIP charge on the earnings per share in the current year.

The calculations for net asset value (“NAV”) per share are shown in the table below:

Group

2017 2016

Equity
shareholders’

funds
£m

Number
of

shares
m

Net asset
value

per share
pence

Equity
shareholders’

funds
£m

Number
of

shares
m

Net asset
value

per share
pence

Basic NAV 557.5 412.8 135.1 923.6 745.1 124.0
Unexercised share options* – 15.5 – 2.1
Mark-to-market of convertible bonds – – 109.8 92.8

Diluted NAV 557.5 428.3 130.2 1,033.4 840.0 123.0
Adjustments:
Fair value of interest rate derivatives (2.2) 2.2
Deferred tax 4.1 47.3

EPRA NAV 559.4 428.3 130.6 1,082.9 840.0 128.9

* The 15.5 million shares contains 13.0 million shares in relation to the Founder LTIP awards and 2.5 million in relation to the Performance Share Plan awards.
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15. Discontinued operations
On 20 March 2017, the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of the German and Dutch portfolios. The disposal was completed on 
16 June 2017 on which date control of the disposal group was passed to the acquirer. 

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as follows:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Revenue 35.8 75.2
Cost of sales (4.2) (10.6)

Gross profit 31.6 64.6
Administrative expenses (4.4) (7.0)
Other operating income 0.2 0.1
Gains on investment properties 0.1 29.5

Operating profit 27.5 87.2
Finance income 0.7 0.4
Finance costs (6.6) (15.8)

Profit before tax 21.6 71.8
Tax (2.1) (10.3)

Profit after tax 19.5 61.5
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 121.4 –
Tax attributable to profit on disposal (7.7) –

Profit after tax on disposal of discontinued operations 113.7 –

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 133.2 61.5

Included in the profit on disposal of discontinued operations of £121.4 million is £49.2 million profit on disposal of discontinued operations and 
exchange differences recycled on disposal of discontinued operations of £72.2 million as detailed in note 6. 

16. Disposal of subsidiary
As referred to in note 15, on 16 June 2017 the Group disposed of its interests in the German and Dutch portfolio. The net assets of the 
disposal group at the date of disposal were as follows:

£m

Investment property 1,067.7
Trade and other receivables 17.3
Cash and cash equivalents 8.2
Trade and other payables (20.7)
Current tax liabilities (3.0)
Borrowings (414.4)
Deferred tax liability (33.2)

621.9
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 121.4

Net assets disposed 621.9
Cash proceeds net of transaction costs 671.1

49.2
Release of translation reserve 72.2

Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 121.4

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents 671.1
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (8.2)

662.9
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17. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Fixtures and 
fittings

£m

Computer
equipment

£m
Total

£m

Cost:
At 1 January 2016 0.6 0.6 1.2
Additions – continuing operations – 0.1 0.1
Additions – discontinued operations – 0.1 0.1
Disposals – continuing operations – (0.2) (0.2)

At 1 January 2017 0.6 0.6 1.2
Disposals – discontinued operations (0.1) – (0.1)

At 31 December 2017 0.5 0.6 1.1

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 0.4 0.4 0.8
Charge for the year – continuing operations 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals – continuing operations – (0.2) (0.2)

At 1 January 2017 0.5 0.3 0.8
Charge for the year – continuing operations 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals – discontinued operations (0.1) – (0.1)

At 31 December 2017 0.5 0.4 0.9

Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 – 0.2 0.2

At 31 December 2016 0.1 0.3 0.4

18. Investment property

Group 
2017

Group 
2016

Continuing 
operations

£m

Discontinued
 operations

£m

Continuing 
operations

£m

Discontinued
 operations

£m

At 1 January 698.5 1,019.0 208.6 850.5
Additions – property purchases* 91.2 13.0 478.2 1.1
     – capital expenditure 4.7 15.4 2.8 13.7
Lease incentives 1.4 (0.1) 1.4 1.2
Letting costs 0.1 0.2 0.1 (0.1)
Revaluation 62.0 – 15.4 28.0
Disposals (50.9) (1,067.7) (10.0) (12.1)
Transfer to investment property held for sale (113.9) – (3.0) (7.4)
Exchange adjustment 1.1 20.2 5.0 144.1

At 31 December 694.2 – 698.5 1,019.0

Investment property held for sale:
At 1 January 3.0 7.4 – 1.6
Disposals (3.0) (7.4) – (1.8)
Transfer from investment property 113.9 – 3.0 7.4
Exchange adjustment – – – 0.2

At 31 December 113.9 – 3.0 7.4

* Property purchase additions of £91.2 million includes £88.8 million which relates to the acquisition of Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC.

Included within the property valuation is £5.9 million (20161: £5.5 million) in respect of tenant lease incentives granted. Investment property 
includes £2.0 million of property (2016: £3.0 million) held under finance leases.

Properties classified as held for sale at 31 December 2017 represent properties that were actively marketed as at the year-end and have 
subsequently been sold. 

All investment properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December and have been valued by independent professionally qualified external 
valuers Cushman & Wakefield Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Jones Lang LaSalle or Knight Frank LLP. The valuations have been prepared in 
accordance with the RICS Valuation – Professional Standards January 2014, published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and 
with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards. The valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the significant ones of which are 
the determination of appropriate discount rates, estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. Rental income and yield 
assumptions are supported by market evidence where relevant.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a finance lease granted to the Group (see note 26). 

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group’s investment property has been assigned a valuation level in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3). The Group’s investment property as at 31 December 2017 is categorised as Level 3 (31 December 2016: Level 3). 
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18. Investment property continued
Investment properties are valued using a capitalisation methodology applying a yield to current and estimated rental income. Yields and 
rental values are considered to be unobservable inputs and details of the ranges used in each region are as follows:

Information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair value at
31 December 

2017
£m

Rent per sq m Yield

Min
£

Max
£

Min
%

Max
%

Belgium 14.5 25.7 108.2 3.0 9.7
France 17.2 29.5 29.5 8.3 8.3
UK – Industrial properties 760.0 10.8 178.0 2.5 15.6
UK – Offices 16.4 23.1 625.7 3.0 17.6

Total 808.1

Fair value at
31 December 

2016
£m

Rent per sq m Yield

Min
£

Max
£

Min
%

Max
%

Belgium 17.0 27.2 90.5 6.5 9.4
France 17.7 28.6 31.7 8.6 12.7
Germany 761.7 15.2 109.4 1.3 17.5
Netherlands 264.7 11.6 79.0 3.7 22.0
UK – Industrial properties 646.4 6.1 158.4 1.8 14.4
UK – Offices 20.4 23.1 625.7 3.1 19.1

Total 1,727.9

Everything else being equal, there is a positive relationship between rental values and the property valuation, such that an increase in rental 
values will increase the valuation of a property and vice versa. However, the relationship between capitalisation yields and the property 
valuation is negative; therefore an increase in capitalisation yields will reduce the valuation of a property and vice versa. There are 
interrelationships between these inputs as they are determined by the market conditions, and the valuation movement in any one period 
depends on the balance between them. If these inputs move in opposite directions (i.e. rental values increase and yields decrease) valuation 
movements can be amplified, whereas if they move in the same direction they may be offset, reducing the overall net valuation movement. 
The valuation movement is materially sensitive to changes in yields and rental values however it is impractical to quantify these changes.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had entered into contracts for £0.2 million (20161: £0.3 million) of building works that were not complete. 

1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations

19. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Cost and net book value:
Balance at 1 January 661.2 585.2
Additions 49.2 3.0
Recapitalisation of subsidiaries 10.9 73.2
Impairment of subsidiaries – (0.2)
Disposals (84.5) –
Repayment of share capital (146.7) –
Foreign exchange gain on return of share premium 8.5 –

Balance at 31 December 498.6 661.2

No subsidiaries are excluded from consolidation.
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Nature of the Business
Place of

incorporation
Percentage 

ownership Class of investment held

Held directly
Hansteen France SAS Other letting and operating of  

owned or leased real estate
France 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited Financing activities Jersey1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Jersey Investments Limited Intermediate holding company Jersey1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Luxembourg S.à r.l Intermediate holding company Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Netherlands B.V. Other letting and operating of  

owned or leased real estate
Netherlands 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Netherlands (2) B.V. Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Netherlands 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne 2013 Limited* Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne Industrial (General Partner) Limited Fund management activities United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Belgium Limited Activities of head offices United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Europe Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen FM Limited* Non-trading company United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen (General Partner 2) Limited# Management of real estate on  

a fee or contract basis
United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Germany Residential Limited Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Industrial Estates Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Industrial Investments Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Land Limited Development of building projects United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Limited Management of real estate on  

a fee or contract basis
United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen LP Limited# Management of real estate on  
a fee or contract basis

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen LP NO 2 Limited* Management of real estate on  
a fee or contract basis

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen OBP Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2  100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Office & Retail Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Property Investments Limited Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen SPI Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen SPO Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen STC Limited# Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

United Kingdom2 100.00 Ordinary shares

Held indirectly
Arman B01 BVBA Other letting and operating of  

owned or leased real estate
Belgium 100.00 Ordinary shares

I.P.I Nossegem NV Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Belgium 100.00 Ordinary shares

Small Island Management NV Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Belgium 100.00 Ordinary shares

Waterloo Investments NV Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Belgium 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Jersey2 100.00 Units

Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Jersey2 100.00 Units 

Hansteen Billbrook S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Luxembourg Investments S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Maisach S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Porschestrasse S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Tegel S.à r.l Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Luxembourg 100.00 Ordinary shares

Hansteen Ormix B.V. Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Netherlands 100.00 Ordinary shares
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Nature of the Business
Place of

incorporation
Percentage 

ownership Class of investment held

Ridderkerk Property B.V. Other letting and operating of  
owned or leased real estate

Netherlands 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Nominee
No 1 Limited

Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Nominee
No 2 Limited

Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares

Ashtenne (AIF) Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Ashtenne Caledonia Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom3 100.00 Ordinary shares
Ashtenne (Severnside) Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership Limited Partnership United Kingdom1 100.00 Capital Contribution
Hansteen Saltley Nominee No 1 Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Hansteen Saltley Nominee No 2 Limited Dormant Company United Kingdom1 100.00 Ordinary shares
Norwepp (General Partner) Limited* Fund management activities United Kingdom4 100.00 Ordinary shares

* Subsidiary in the process of being liquidated
# Subsidiary dissolved subsequent to year end

Each of the undertakings listed above is engaged in property development, investment or management.

Each of the undertakings listed above has a 31 December year end.

The addresses of the registered offices of the above subsidiaries differ dependent upon their place of incorporation as follows:

Place of incorporation Address of registered office

Belgium Schalienhoevedreef 20J, B-2800 Mechelen, Brussels, Belgium
France 13 rue Auber, 75009, Paris, France
Jersey1 22 Grenville Street, St Helier, Jersey JE4 8PX
Jersey2 13 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey JE4 5UT
Luxembourg 5 Avenue Gaston Diderich, L-1420 Luxembourg, Grand-Duché de Luxembourg
Netherlands Ninth Floor, New Amsterdam Tower, Claude Debussylaan 163-165, 1082MC, Amsterdam, Netherlands  
United Kingdom1 First Floor, Pegasus House, 37-43 Sackville Street, London, W1S 3DL, United Kingdom
United Kingdom2 The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 9SG, United Kingdom
United Kingdom3 6th Floor, 80 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, G2 5UB, United Kingdom
United Kingdom4 FRP Advisory LLP, Kings Orchard, 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS2 0HQ, United Kingdom

20. Deferred tax
2017

Group

Carrying 
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2017 (51.3) 1.1 2.3 0.4 (47.5)
Credit/(charge) to income – continuing operations 1.1 – (0.5) – 0.6
Credit/(charge) to income – discontinued operations 11.4 (0.8) (0.2) (0.2) 10.2
Disposal 34.5 – (0.5) (0.8) 33.2
Exchange differences (0.8) (0.3) 0.2 0.2 (0.7)

At 31 December 2017 (5.1) – 1.3 (0.4) (4.2)

Deferred tax assets – – – – –
Deferred tax liabilities (5.1) – 1.3 (0.4) (4.2)

2016

Group

Carrying 
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2016 (39.1) 1.0 1.7 0.6 (35.8)
(Charge)/credit to income – continuing operations (0.6) – 0.4 (0.4) (0.6)
(Charge)/credit to income – discontinued operations (4.8) – (0.1) 0.1 (4.8)
Exchange differences (6.8) 0.1 0.3 0.1 (6.3)

At 31 December 2016 (51.3) 1.1 2.3 0.4 (47.5)

Deferred tax assets – 0.6 – – 0.6
Deferred tax liabilities (51.3) 0.5 2.3 0.4 (48.1)

19. Investment in subsidiary undertakings continued
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Company

Carrying 
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2016 – – – – –
Credit to income – – 0.5 – 0.5

At 31 December 2016 – – 0.5 – 0.5
Credit to income – – (0.4) (0.2) (0.6)

At 31 December 2017 – – (0.1) (0.2) (0.1)

Deferred tax assets – – (0.1) (0.2) (0.1)

At 31 December 2017 the Group has unutilised tax losses of £75.5 million (2016: £81.5 million) available for offset against future taxable 
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £4.2 million (2016: £9.1 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been 
recognised in respect of the remaining losses of £71.3 million (2016: £71.0 million) and deductible temporary differences of £27.8 million 
(2016: £25.2 million) due to the unpredictability of future taxable profits. 

Unutilised losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised expire 
as follows:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Losses
Expiring in 2019 – (0.3) – –
Expiring in 2020 16.6 15.0 – –
Expiring in 2024 1.9 1.8 – –
Expiring in 2025 5.4 – –
Carried forward without restriction 47.4 54.5 31.0 41.3

Total – Losses 71.3 71.0 31.0 41.3

Deductible temporary differences (no expiry date) 27.8 25.2 27.8 7.5

The UK corporation tax rate fell from 20% to 19% in April 2017 and will fall to 17% in April 2020. The impact of these rate changes is not 
significant to the Group. 

21. Derivative financial instruments 
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate and foreign exchange risks. 
Further details on interest rate and foreign exchange risks are included in note 35. 

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Interest rate swaps 1.7 (3.2) 1.7 1.1
Interest rate caps 0.5 1.0 0.5 0.8
Convertible bonds – – – (25.4)

  2.2 (2.2) 2.2 (23.5)

Non-current assets 2.2 2.1 2.2 1.9
Non-current liabilities – (4.3) – (25.4)

Foreign currency derivative financial instruments

Group and Company

Average contract exchange rate Notional principal amount Fair value

2017
EUR:GBP

2016
EUR:GBP

2017
£m

2016
£m

2017
£m

2016
£m

Currency options – buy Sterling: sell Euro
In less than one year – 1:1.600 – 57.9 – –

– 57.9 – –
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21. Derivative financial instruments continued
Interest rate derivative financial instruments

Group

Average contract  
fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

2017
%

2016
%

2017
£m

2016
£m

2017
£m

2016
£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year – 0.3 – 8.6 – (0.1)
In more than one year but less than two – 1.0 – 47.2 – (1.1)
In more than two years but less than five 0.5 0.7 150.0 314.2 1.7 (2.0)

  150.0 370.0 1.7 (3.2)

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year – 3.1 – 8.6 – –
In more than two years but less than five 0.8 1.2 50.0 118.5 0.5 1.0

      50.0 127.1 0.5 1.0

Company

Average contract  
fixed interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

2017
%

2016
%

2017
£m

2016
£m

2017
£m

2016
£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In more than two years but less than five 0.5 0.3 150.0 150.0 1.7 1.1

  150.0 150.0 1.7 1.1

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In more than two years but less than five 0.8 0.3 50.0 50.0 0.5 0.8

      50.0 50.0 0.5 0.8

22. Trading properties

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Balance at 1 January 10.0 10.8
Additions 0.3 0.2
Write down (0.3) (0.2)
Disposals – (0.8)

Balance at 31 December 10.0 10.0

23. Trade and other receivables

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Trade receivables 11.1 15.6 – –
Less: allowance for bad and doubtful debts (0.6) (3.1) – –

10.5 12.5 – –
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings – – 197.2 249.5
Other receivables 6.8 12.3 0.8 0.8
Prepayments 0.4 1.0 – –
Accrued income 0.6 5.3 2.3 0.1

18.3 31.1 200.3 250.4

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

24. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less. The carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair value. Included within cash and cash equivalents is £1.2 million (2016: 
£2.0 million) of restricted cash. 
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25. Trade and other payables

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Trade payables 9.3 18.9 – –
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings – – 46.8 123.6
Other payables 2.4 6.5 – 0.5
Accruals 10.0 16.7 3.0 0.6
Deferred income 8.7 11.9 – –

30.4 54.0 49.8 124.7

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period 
taken for trade purchases by the Company is 15 days (2016: 15 days). For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the 
first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the outstanding balances at various interest rates. 

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

26. Borrowings

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Bank loans 297.1 712.5 293.0 280.0
Convertible bonds – 109.8 – –
Unamortised borrowing costs (3.0) (8.3) (1.7) (2.0)

  294.1 814.0 291.3 278.0

Current liability 0.3 20.5 – –
Non-current liability 293.8 793.5 291.3 278.0

The bank loans and convertible bonds are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 0.6 23.2 – –
Between one and two years 0.7 201.1 – –
Between three and five years 294.9 596.6 293.0 280.0
Over five years 0.9 1.4 – –

  297.1 822.3 293.0 280.0

Undrawn committed facilities
Expiring between two and five years 37.0 58.6 37.0 50.0

Covenants

Facility Drawn Expiry Loan to value
Interest 

cover

£330.0 million £293.0 million July 2021 55% 200%

€4.6 million €4.6 million March 2025 – –

Interest charged on the £330 million facility is based on a floating interest rate. The £330.0 million facility is secured through charges against 
the issued share capital of the relevant entities which own properties totalling £638.7 million. The Euro facilities detailed above are secured by 
charges on property with an aggregate carrying value of £13.6 million (2016: £1,081.6 million).

In July 2013, Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited issued €100 million of convertible bonds with a coupon of 4.0% expiring in July 2018.

On 26 June 2017 the Company decided to exercise its right and invited the bondholders, on or before 29 June 2017, to either offer to sell 
their bonds to the Company for a cash settlement and/or to exercise their rights to convert their bonds to ordinary shares in the Company 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds on 29 June 2017. 

All bondholders accepted the invitation to sell or convert their bonds. 159 bonds of €100,000 each elected to settle in cash and 841 bonds 
of €100,000 each elected to convert to shares in the Company. The cash settlement occurred on 5 July 2017 and amounted to £24.0 million. 
The shares were issued to bondholders on 10 July 2017 which have been accounted for as £8.0 million of share capital and £91.4 million of 
retained earnings. 

The carrying amount of borrowings approximates their fair value.
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26. Borrowings continued
Interest rate and currency profile

Group
2017

%
2017

£m
2016

%
2016

£m

Euro 1.5 4.1 2.5 522.3
Sterling 2.1 293.0 2.2 300.0

2.1 297.1 2.4 822.3

The above table details the interest rates charged on the outstanding loans as at 31 December 2017. The Group enters into derivative 
financial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate risk. Further details on interest rate risk are included in note 35 and the 
interest rate derivatives are disclosed in note 21. After taking into account the effect of the interest rate swaps the weighted average interest 
rates, excluding amortised borrowing costs, are 1.5% for the Euro borrowings (2016: 3.2%) and 2.4% for the Sterling borrowings (2016: 2.4%). 

27. Obligations under finance leases

Group

Minimum lease payments
Present value of 
lease payments

2017
£m

2016
£m

2017
£m

2016
£m

Amounts payable under finance lease:
Within one year 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8
After five years 1.4 1.6 1.4 1.6

2.8 2.9 2.5 2.6
Less: future finance charges (0.3) (0.3) – –

Present value of lease obligations 2.5 2.6 2.5 2.6
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months (0.2) (0.2)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 2.3 2.4

The finance lease is denominated in Euro and has an outstanding term of 5 years (2016: 6 years). For the year ended 31 December 2017 the 
interest rate implicit in the lease was 2.8% (2016: 2.8%). Interest rates are fixed every five years, and interest rate and capital repayments 
adjusted to reflect this. 

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under the finance lease are 
secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

28. Provisions

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Legal claims (0.8) (0.7)
Other – (0.1)

(0.8) (0.8)

Current liabilities – (0.1)
Non-current liabilities (0.8) (0.7)

Legal claims
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2017 (0.7) (0.1) (0.8)
Additional provisions in the year (0.1) – (0.1)
Utilisation of provision – 0.1 0.1

At 31 December 2017 (0.8) – (0.8)

The legal claims provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability, based on legal advice, for the ongoing legal 
proceedings with a former tenant. 

The other provision in 2016 related to legal fees on a pending property purchase as at 31 December 2016 which has subsequently completed.
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29. Share capital

Number of 
shares

m

31 December
2017

£m

Number of 
shares

m

31 December
2016

£m

Authorised, issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1 January 745.8 74.6 721.5 72.2
Issue of equity shares 80.2 8.0 24.3 2.4
Cancellation of shares under tender offer (412.9) (41.3) – –

At 31 December 413.1 41.3 745.8 74.6

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to fixed income. There are no specific restrictions on the size of a 
shareholding or the transfer of shares, except for UK REIT restrictions. 

The issue of 80.2 million equity shares relates to the conversion of the convertible bonds on 10 July 2017, as detailed in note 26.

The cancellation of 412.9 million shares under tender offer was completed on 8 November 2017 following the publication of a circular and a 
successful tender offer. The shares were purchased at the tender offer price of 140 pence per ordinary share, representing a par value of 
£41.3 million and a total gross cost of £583.1 million (£578.1 million return to shareholders and £5.0 million associated costs). The £41.3 million 
has been transferred to the capital redemption reserve as required by the Companies Act. 

The issue of equity shares in 2016 relates to shares issued in respect of the Founder LTIP for the performance period ended 31 December 2015. 

During the year, the Company acquired some of its own shares in order to settle obligations under the Performance Share Plan.

Number 
m £m

At 1 January 2017 2.0 2.2
Acquired
30 June 2017 0.6 0.7
Issued to employees
31 August 2017 (0.2) (0.2)
6 October 2017 (0.3) (0.4)
16 October 2017 (1.8) (2.0)
Cancellation of shares under tender offer
8 October 2017 (0.2) (0.2)

At 31 December 2017 0.1 0.1

30. Notes to the cash flow statement

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Profit for the year 204.3 109.5 394.6 56.7
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments – continuing operations 17.8 1.4 18.0 1.4
Share-based payments – discontinued operations 0.1 – – –
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment – 
continuing operations 0.2 0.2 – –
Goodwill impairment – 0.3 – –
Negative goodwill and other gains – (4.3) (0.5) –
Share of profits of associates and gain on sale of associates – (13.4) –
Profit on sale of subsidiaries – – (70.2) –
Profit on sale of discontinued operations (121.4) – – –
Profit on sale of investment properties – continuing operations (5.9) (2.4) – –
Profit on sale of investment properties – discontinued operations (0.1) (1.5) – –
Fair value gains on investment properties – continuing operations (62.0) (15.4) – –
Fair value gains on investment properties – discontinued operations – (28.0) – –
Impairment of investment in subsidiary – – (8.5) 0.2
Dividends received – – (358.1) (63.5)
Net finance costs – continuing operations 19.4 5.6 12.0 4.2
Net finance costs – discontinued operations 5.9 15.4 – –
Tax charge – continuing operations (0.8) 0.1 6.3 (0.5)
Tax charge – discontinued operations 9.8 10.3 – –

Operating cash inflows/(outflows) before movements in working capital 67.3 77.8 (6.4) (1.5)
Decrease in trading properties – 0.8 – –
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (2.3) 1.4 53.0 (165.9)
Decrease/(increase) in payables (1.9) (7.1) (13.7) 39.3

Cash generated from/(used by) operations 63.1 72.9 32.9 (128.1)
Income taxes paid (4.6) (5.0) – –
Interest paid (13.3) (19.9) (9.8) (8.7)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 45.2 48.0 23.1 (136.8)
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30. Notes to the cash flow statement continued
The liabilities arising from financing activities are reconciled as follows:

1 January 
2017

£m
Cash flows

£m
Acquisition

£m

Foreign 
exchange

£m

Fair value 
changes

£m

Bonds 
converted

£m
Other

 £m

31 December 
2017

£m

Long-term borrowings 793.5 (76.2) (354.2) 10.1 14.1 (99.4) 5.9 293.8
Short-term borrowings 20.5 (20.2) – – – – 0.3
Lease liabilities 2.6 (0.2) – 0.1 – – 2.5
Assets held to hedge long-term 
borrowings 2.2 (4.3) 0.9 0.1 (1.1) – (2.2)

818.8 (100.9) (353.3) 10.3 13.0 (99.4) 5.9 294.4

31. Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee
As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 
leases, which fall due as follows:

Group 
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Within one year 0.8 0.9
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1.7 2.3
After five years 20.2 20.4

22.7 23.6

The expense relating to operating leases in the year was £0.9 million (20161: £0.9 million).
1 Re-presented to classify the German and Dutch portfolio as discontinued operations

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for land relating to certain of its buildings that are 
classified as investment properties, rentals payable in respect of its office properties and rentals for company cars. 

The Group as lessor
The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with tenants 
for the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases: 

Group
2017

£m

Group
20161

£m

Within one year 52.8 51.0
In the second to fifth years inclusive 107.7 106.0
After five years 63.3 59.7

  223.8 216.7

32. Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had two equity settled share schemes. 
 › Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan
 › Performance Share Plan

The total share-based payment charge for the year under these schemes was £18.0 million (2016: £1.4 million) with associated social security 
costs of £2.5 million (2016: £0.1 million).

Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”)
The Founders and Joint Chief Executives are entitled to a share award dependent on the growth in EPRA NAV. The target for the Founder 
LTIP is that EPRA NAV per ordinary share (after adding back dividends and other returns to shareholders) must exceed a compound growth 
rate of 10% per annum in a three-year performance period. The Founder LTIP plan has repeated to reward performance in each three-year 
period; the current performance period ending on 31 December 2018. 

The value of the share award for each Chief Executive is calculated as 12.5% of the excess growth over the 10% growth target. Any amount 
payable under the Founder LTIP is to be satisfied by the award of ordinary shares of the Company. 

The total share-based payment charge for the year under this scheme was £16.8 million (2016: nil) with associated social security costs of 
£2.3 million (2016: nil).

Performance Share Plan (“PSP”)
The PSP awards share options with a nil exercise price to Executive Directors and senior employees. The number of options granted is 
calculated with reference to the employee’s salary and the share price prior to the grant date. To reflect the fact that 2012 was a transitional 
year between the 2005 Share Option Scheme and the PSP, two awards were granted to participants, one with a two-year performance period 
and one with a three-year performance period. Vesting of the awards is staggered over the three years following the performance period, 
with one third vesting each year if performance targets are met. Performance targets are based on Total Shareholder Return and Net Asset 
Value growth relative to a peer group of listed UK REITs.
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Year issued
Exercise

price

Outstanding 
at start of 

year Granted Exercised Lapsed

Outstanding 
at end

of year
Number 

exercisable

Average 
remaining life 

(years)

2012 nil 1,177,553 – (1,177,553) – – – –
2013 nil 420,604 905 (283,458) – 138,051 – 5.2
2014 nil 547,583 1,961 (184,797) (65,788) 298,959 – 6.3
2015 nil 946,473 5,757 (73,977) – 878,253 – 7.2
2016 nil 1,203,285 9,315 (132,197) (12,112) 1,068,291 – 8.3

2017 nil – 722,348 (68,423) (58,452) 595,473 – 9.3

On 14 November 2017 the Company completed a share buyback of 140p per issued ordinary share which was at a premium to both the EPRA 
NAV per share and the share price on 2 November 2017, being the last day of trading before the entitlement to participate in the share 
buyback ended.

The holders of outstanding PSP awards which were not exercisable, could not participate in the share buyback, and therefore additional 
awards were granted so they were not disadvantaged. This resulted in an increase of 19,530 awards during the year in relation to PSP 3 to 7. 
Further details are given in the Report of the Remuneration Committee on page 38.

The total share-based payment charge for the year under this scheme was £1.1 million (2016: £1.4 million) with associated social security 
costs of £0.2 million (2016: £0.1 million).

The inputs to the PSP awards share options’ valuation were:

2017 2016

Closing share price at grant date 124.7p 107.3p
Weighted average exercise price nil nil
Weighted average fair value 98.8p 78.1p
Expected volatility 24.19% 19.21%
Expected life 5 years 5 years
Risk free rate 0.65% 0.49%

Expected volatility was calculated by reference to dividend adjusted share prices for a comparator group of companies.

33. Events after the balance sheet date
A second dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of 3.8p per share will be payable on 17 May 2018 to shareholders on the 
register on 6 April 2018. Based on the number of shares in issue at 31 December 2017 this will result in a distribution of £15.7 million.

On 5 February 2018 we announced that we had exchanged contracts for the sale of the Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC portfolio for 
£116.0 million with completion due on 26 March 2018. 

On 13 March 2018 the Secretary of State for Transport acquired Saltley Business Park, Birmingham, by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order 
(CPO) under the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Act 2017, to enable construction of the first phase of the HS2 route. 

The Board is proposing capital distribution of 35p per share (£144.5 million) to shareholders in the first half of 2018.

34. Related party transactions
Group
Trading transactions
Group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who were not members of the Group:

Provision of services
Amounts owed by  

related parties

2017
£m

2016
£m

2017
£m

2016
£m

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership – 1.9 – –

– 1.9 – –

In 2016 the Group provided management services to companies controlled by its associates. In 2017 all companies are consolidated and 
there are no investments in associates. 

Remuneration of key management personnel
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group and the Company, is set out below. 
The remuneration is paid by Hansteen Limited and forms part of the management fee charged to the Company. Further information about 
the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 35 to 38.

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Short-term employee benefits 2.5 2.0
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 1.2 0.5

3.9 2.7
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34. Related party transactions continued
Company
Transactions with subsidiaries
The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment activities. Interest is charged on these 
loans at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 2.5% (2016: 1.75% to 2.5%) or EURIBOR plus 1.75% (2016: 1.75% to 3.75%). Interest on the two facilities with 
Industrial Multi Property Trust Limited is charged at a fixed rate of 10%. 

The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited, which undertakes day-to-day management of 
the Group on behalf of the Company.

Surplus funds in subsidiary companies are loaned to the Company at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 2.50% (2016: 1.75% to 2.5%) or EURIBOR plus 
1.75% to 3.75% (2016: 1.75% to 3.75%). Surplus funds in Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited are loaned at 5.19% (2016: 5.13%) to fund 
acquisitions and working capital and deposit amounts are loaned at the standard current account interest rate.

A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries 59.7 168.8
Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries (111.7) (42.8)
Interest-bearing loans made by subsidiaries (20.9) (8.2)
Interest-bearing loans repaid to subsidiaries 92.6 0.9
Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries 1.2 4.5
Interest-free loans repaid by subsidiaries (0.2) –
Interest-free loans made by subsidiaries – (4.2)
Interest-free loans repaid to subsidiaries 8.7 0.5
Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans 6.5 3.6
Interest paid in respect of interest-bearing loans (3.2) (4.9)
Management fees charged to the Company 1.6 1.6

The balances outstanding at the year end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables 197.2 249.5
Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other payables (46.8) (123.6)

150.4 125.9
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35. Financial instruments
The table below sets out the categorisation of the financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2017. The carrying amount of all 
financial instruments, other than those for which a valuation level has been given below, approximates to their fair values. Where the financial 
instruments are held at fair value the valuation level indicates the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest 
priority level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument in its entirety. 

Valuation
level

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Financial assets
Designated as held for trading
Interest rate caps 2 0.5 1.0 0.5 0.8

0.5 1.0 0.5 0.8
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 17.3 24.8 198.0 250.3
Cash and cash deposits 71.2 82.5 48.6 34.8

    88.5 107.3 246.6 285.1

89.0 108.3 247.1 285.9

Financial liabilities 

Designated as held for trading
Interest rate swaps 2 1.7 (3.2) 1.7 1.1
Convertible bonds derivative 3 – – – (25.4)

1.7 (3.2) 1.7 (24.3)
At fair value through profit and loss
Convertible bonds 1 – (109.8) – –

At amortised cost
Obligations under finance leases (2.5) (2.6) – –
Borrowings (294.1) (704.2) (293.0) (280.0)

(296.6) (706.8) (293.0) (280.0)
Other financial liabilities
Payables and accruals (21.7) (42.1) (49.8) (124.7)
Current tax liabilities (20.5) (6.6) (7.2) (1.1)

(42.2) (48.7) (57.0) (125.8)

    (337.1) (868.5) (348.3) (430.1)

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to 
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes 
the borrowings, the obligations under finance leases, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, 
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings, all as disclosed in the balance sheet.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the Board. As part of this review, 
management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and debt.

Net debt to equity ratio

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Obligations under finance leases 2.5 2.6
Borrowings 294.1 704.2
Convertible bonds – 109.8
Convertible bonds mark-to-market – (24.0)
Cash and cash equivalents (71.2) (82.5)

Net debt 225.4 710.1
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 557.5 923.6

Net debt to equity ratio 40.4% 76.9%
Carrying value of investment and trading properties 818.1 1,737.9
Net debt to value ratio 27.6% 40.9%
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35. Financial instruments continued
Reconciliation of movement in net debt in the year

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Net debt at beginning of year 710.1 441.2
Cash flow
Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 15.2 (14.3)
New bank loans raised (net of expenses) 181.2 567.3
Bank loans repaid (692.2) (354.7)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases (0.2) (0.2)
Other
Foreign exchange movements recognised in equity 5.8 54.5
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the income statement (0.4) 12.3
Amortisation of bank loan fees 5.9 4.0

225.4 710.1

Financial risk management objectives
The Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal risk reports which analyse 
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to economically hedge these risk exposures. 
The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors. Compliance with policies and 
exposure limits is reviewed by the Board and management on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

The Group’s management reports quarterly to the Board and bi-annually to the Audit Committee, an independent body that monitors risks 
and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group 
enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, including:
 › interest rate swaps and caps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and
 › forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on translation of the Group’s investment 

in foreign operations which have the Euro as their functional currency.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises from the fact that there are foreign operations which transact business denominated in 
Euro, with the translation of the local trading performance and local net asset to Sterling for each financial period and at each balance sheet 
date giving rise to an exposure to fluctuations in the Sterling: Euro exchange rate. The Group’s approach to managing this exposure is to fund 
investments in Euro-denominated operations with equity and Euro-denominated debt that is partly hedged by forward currency options to 
limit the overall exposure of the Group. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated financial instruments at the reporting date are as follows. The carrying 
amount of the Group’s non-financial instruments in Euro-denominated operations is also presented.

2017
GBP

£m
EUR

£m
Total

£m

Financial instruments (273.9) 22.8 (251.1)
Less principal amount of currency options – – –

  (273.9) 22.8 (251.1)
Non-financial instruments 778.8 26.8 805.6

Net exposure 504.9 49.6 554.5

2016
GBP

£m
EUR

£m
Total

£m

Financial instruments (270.5) (498.0) (768.5)
Less principal amount of currency options – 57.9 57.9

  (270.5) (440.1) (710.6)
Non-financial instruments 671.3 1,013.1 1,684.4

Net exposure 400.8 573.0 973.8

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to the Euro through its operations in Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. This exposure has decreased 
significantly during the year subsequent to the disposal of the German and Dutch portfolio. At 31 December 2017 the net assets of the Group 
were £557.5 million (2016: £924.2 million) of which £49.6 million were denominated in Euros (2016: £518.5 million). At 31 December 2017 the 
Group had no currency options in place to buy Sterling for an agreed amount of Euros (2016: £42.2 million for €67.5 million). 
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The table below shows the impact of a 10% strengthening or weakening of Sterling against the Euro in relation to financial instruments alone.

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Increase foreign exchange rates by 10%
Increase in profit before tax (2.1) 3.6 (1.4) 1.9
Increase in other comprehensive income 1.5 37.6 – –
Decrease foreign exchange rates by 10%
Decrease in profit before tax 2.7 (4.2) 1.8 (2.1)
Decrease in other comprehensive income (1.9) (46.0) – –

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by 
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts and interest rate 
cap contracts. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative 
instruments during the year.

Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax:

Group
2017

£m

Group
2016

£m

Company
2017

£m

Company
2016

£m

Increase interest rates by 1% (1.5) (3.4) (0.7) 0.5
Decrease interest rates by 1% 1.5 3.4 (0.4) (1.4)

There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity. 

Interest rate swap and cap contracts
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts 
calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Under interest rate cap contracts, the Group has limited its exposure to increases in interest 
rates by capping interest payable on its borrowings. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair 
value of issued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. 

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. 

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £88.5 million (2016: £107.3 million) comprising trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to its trade receivables of £10.5 million (2016: £12.5 million) which consist 
principally of rents due from tenants. The balance is low relative to both the current and net assets of the Group and the Company.

Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. There is no concentration of credit risk 
within the portfolio to either geographical business segment or company as the Group has a well spread diverse customer base with no one 
customer accounting for more than 3.8% (2016: 1.7%) of the gross rent roll. 

Other receivables consist principally of tax and VAT receivables. These items do not give rise to significant credit risk. 

Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. 

Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors the Group’s short, medium and 
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular basis. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate 
reserves and banking facilities. As at 31 December 2017 the net debt to property value was 27.6% (2016: 40.9%) and the Group had 
£804.5 million (2016: £656.3 million) of investment and trading properties that were not secured against the Group’s borrowings.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities. The tables have 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to 
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has 
been determined by reference to the interest and foreign currency rates as at the reporting date.
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35. Financial instruments continued

Group

Less than one 
year

£m

One to two 
years

£m

Two to five 
years

£m

More than 
five years

£m
Total

£m

2017
Borrowings (0.6) (0.7) (294.9) (0.9) (297.1)
Interest on borrowings (6.3) (6.3) (10.1) (0.1) (22.8)
Obligations under finance leases (0.3) (0.3) (0.8) (1.4) (2.8)
Interest rate swaps (0.3) (0.3) (0.5) – (1.1)
Payables and accruals (21.7) – – – (21.7)

(29.2) (7.6) (306.3) (2.4) (345.5)

2016
Borrowings (23.2) (201.1) (596.6) (1.4) (822.3)
Interest on borrowings (19.7) (17.8) (24.1) (0.1) (61.7)
Obligations under finance leases (0.3) (0.3) (0.7) (1.6) (2.9)
Interest rate swaps (2.5) (2.4) (1.2) – (6.1)
Payables and accruals (42.1) – – – (42.1)

  (87.8) (221.6) (622.6) (3.1) (935.1)

Company

Less than one 
year

£m

One to two 
years

£m

Two to five 
years

£m

More than 
five years

£m
Total

£m

2017
Borrowings – – (293.0) – (293.0)
Payables and accruals (49.8) – – – (49.8)

  (49.8) – (293.0) – (342.8)

2016
Convertible bonds derivative – – (25.4) – (25.4)
Borrowings – – (280.0) – (280.0)
Payables and accruals (124.7) – – – (124.7)

  (124.7) – (305.4) – (430.1)



O�cers and advisers

COMPANY SECRETARY PRINCIPAL BANKERS

REGISTERED OFFICE

STOCKBROKERS

REGISTRARS

AUDITOR

SOLICITORS

PROPERTY VALUERS

Link Company Matters Limited The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC

65 Gresham Street

EC2V 7NQ 2 Whitehall Quay

Leeds LS1 4HR

HSBC Bank PLC

8 Canada Square
37-43 Sackville Street

London W1S 3DL E14 5HQ
Registered in England & Wales No. 5605371

Barclays Bank PLC

2nd Floor

Moor House
LS51 5WU120 London Wall

London EC2Y 5ET

Link Asset Services

The Registry Deloitte LLP
34 Beckenham Road 2 New Street Square
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TUEC4A 3BZ

Jones Day LLP

21 Tudor Street 

London EC4Y 0DJ

DLA Piper Scotland LLP

Rutland Square

Edinburgh EH1 2AA

Jones Lang LaSalle

30 Warwick Street

London W1B 5NH

Knight Frank LLP

1 Marsden Street

Manchester M2 1HW

Cushman & Wake�eld Debenham Tie Leung Limited

43-45 Portman Square

London W1H 6LY

5 April 2018

6 April 2018

16 May 2018

17 May 2018

12 June 2018

Corporate Banking

London 3rd Floor 

1st Floor, Pegasus House

London

1 Park RowPeel Hunt LLP
Leeds

London

Financial calendar

EX-DIVIDEND DATE

RECORD DATE

POSTING DIVIDEND

DIVIDEND PAYABLE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



Hansteen Holdings PLC

First Floor 

Pegasus House

37-43 Sackville St 

London W1S 3DL

020 7408 7000

www.hansteen.co.uk


